
William Murdock, AICP 
Executive Director 

Chris Amorose Groomes 
Chair 

Michelle Crandall 
Vice Chair 

Ben Kessler     
Secretary 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

COMMISSION MEETING 
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 
COLUMBUS, OH 43215 

TOWN HALL 

Thursday, December 12, 2024 
1:30 p.m. 

Remote Option 
To join by video and see any screen sharing, click on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” below. You 
do not need to have Microsoft Teams for the link to work. 

Join Microsoft Teams Meeting 
Meeting ID: 268 253 220 749  
Passcode: k2XvQr  

To participate by phone, use the conference call information below. 
+1 614-362-3056 Columbus
(888) 596-2819 United States (Toll-free)
Phone conference ID: 356 398 203#

AGENDA - AMENDED 

1:30 p.m. 1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Welcome and Introductions – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of
Dublin, MORPC Chair

• Recognition of Guests and New Members – Eileen Leuby,
MORPC Membership Services Officer

3. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive
Director

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjJjNWI4NDktNTQ1NS00MGRkLTk0M2EtOTgxODZjOTZhOGU1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22d225c0aa-f4a0-4925-bc81-eaff87943970%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2290194b29-9096-438a-9d8e-b061540a6761%22%7d
tel:+16143623056,,356398203
tel:8885962819,,356398203


 

 

Commission Agenda 
December 12, 2024 
Page 2 

 4. Proposed Resolution 19-24: “Accepting the Village of Alexandria 
as a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
(MORPC)” – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

 
 5. Proposed Resolution 20-24: “Accepting the City of Marion as a 

member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
(MORPC)” – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director  

 
 6. Proposed Resolution 17-24: “Acceptance of the fiscal budget and 

fund account appropriations for the operation of the Mid-Ohio 
Regional Planning Commission for 2025” – William Murdock, 
MORPC Executive Director and Shawn Hufstedler, MORPC Chief 
Operating Officer  
 

 Committees 
 

 7. Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization – Jeff Stauch (Union 
County), Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization Chair  
 

 8. Regional Policy Roundtable – Lourdes Barroso de Padilla (City of 
Columbus), Regional Policy Roundtable Chair  
 

• Proposed Resolution 18-24: “Adoption of MORPC’s 2025-2026 
Public Policy Agenda” – Joseph Garrity, MORPC Senior Director 
of Government Affairs & Community Relations 
 

• Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter and 
Joseph Garrity, MORPC Senior Director of Government Affairs & 
Community Relations 

 
 9. Sustainability Advisory Committee – Ben Kessler (City of Bexley), 

Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair  
 

• Proposed Resolution 21-24: “Authorizing the executive director 
to enter into an agreement with District 17 Natural Resources 
Assistance Council (NRAC) to serve as the liaison for the Clean 
Ohio Green Space Conservation Program” – Jessica Kuenzli, 
MORPC Chief Regional Planning Officer & Senior Director of 
Planning 

 
 10. Transportation Policy Committee (MPO) – Chris Amorose Groomes 

(City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
 

 a. Call to Order – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC 
Chair 



 

 

Commission Agenda 
December 12, 2024 
Page 3 

 b. Metropolitan Planning Organization Report – Parag Agrawal, 
MORPC Chief Mobility & Infrastructure Officer & Senior Director of 
Programming 

 
 c. Transportation Policy Committee Consent Agenda 

 
1) Approval of November 14, 2024 Transportation Policy 

Committee Meeting Minutes 
2) Proposed Resolution T-13-24: “Amending the State Fiscal 

Year (SFY) 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement 
Program” 

3) Proposed Resolution T-14-24: “Support the 2025 ODOT 
Safety Performance Measure Targets” 

 
 d. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee (MPO) – Chris 

Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
 

 11. Commission Consent Agenda 
a. Approval of November 14, 2024 Commission Meeting Minutes 
b. Proposed Resolution 22-24: “Authorizing the executive director 

to enter into agreements for July 1, 2023 through December 31, 
2025, with the Franklin County Board of Commissioners for a 
home repair program” 

c. Proposed Resolution 23-24: “Authorizing the executive director 
to enter into agreements with, and receive funds from the U.S. 
Department of Transportation and procure consulting services 
to execute the 2024 Prioritization Process Pilot Program (PPPP) 
Funding Award”  

d. Proposed Resolution 24-24: “Authorizing the executive director 
to enter into agreements with, and receive funds from the U.S. 
Department of Transportation and the Ohio State University 
(OSU) Injury Biomechanics Research Center (IBRC) to execute 
the FY24 Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Funding Award” 

e. Proposed Resolution 25-24: “Authorizing the executive director 
to enter into agreements with the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) regarding Environmental and Climate Justice 
Community Change Grants Program funding and enter into 
related subcontracts” 

f. Proposed Resolution 26-24: “Authorizing the executive director 
to enter into an agreement with the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) regarding Charging and Fueling 
Infrastructure (CFI) round 2 funding and enter into related 
subcontracts” 

g. Proposed Resolution 27-24: “To authorize the executive director 
to enter into agreements with the U.S. Department of Housing 



 

 

Commission Agenda 
December 12, 2024 
Page 4 

and Urban Development (HUD) for $2,000,000 to be utilized over 
a time period of 42 months to perform the remediation of health 
and safety hazards in homes” 

h. Proposed Resolution 28-24: “To authorize the executive director 
to enter into agreements with the Ohio Department of 
Development (ODOD) for $2,000,000 to be utilized over a time 
period of 36 months to perform the testing and remediation of 
mold and radon” 

i. Proposed Resolution 29-24: “Authorizing the executive director 
to file applications, execute agreements with, and receive funds 
from the Ohio Department of Transportation for grants through 
the U.S. DOT Federal Administration (FTA) and the State of 
Ohio, as authorized under the Federal Transit Laws and the 
State of Ohio laws executing a contract with the Ohio 
Department of Transportation upon project approval” 

j. Approval of Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 
 

 12. Other Business 
 

2:45 p.m. 13. Adjourn – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
 

 
PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org 

IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 
 

The next Commission Meeting is 
Thursday, February 13, 2025, 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
PARKING AND TRANSIT: When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a 
MORPC visitor space or in a space marked with a yellow “M”. Handicapped parking is available 
at the side of MORPC’s building. On Commission meeting days only, additional parking is 
available in numbered spaces toward the west end of the parking lot. Electric vehicle charging 
stations are available for MORPC guests.  
 
Indoor bike parking is available for MORPC guests. 
 
MORPC is accessible by COTA BUS. The closest bus stop to MORPC southbound is High 
Street & W. Blenkner Street. Buses that accommodate this stop are the 5 - West 5th 
Ave./Refugee, and the 8 - Karl/S. High/Parsons. The closest stop to MORPC northbound is 
High Street & E. Hoster Street. Buses that accommodate this stop are the 5 - West 
5th Avenue/Refugee and the 8 - Karl/S. High/Parsons. Accessible from the Courthouse stop by 
a quick walk are COTA lines 1, 2, 4, and CMAX. 
 

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


1 
 

 

 
MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

November 2024 

 
Senior Directors 

Parag Agrawal pagrawal@morpc.org  
Joe Garrity jgarrity@morpc.org 
Shawn Hufstedler shufstedler@morpc.org 

Ralonda Hampton rhampton@morpc.org 
Jessica Kuenzli jkuenzli@morpc.org   
Robert Williams rwilliams@morpc.org 

 
CREATE AN ENVIRONMENT FOR PROSPERITY 

 
208 Planning and Areawide Designation Process 
The 208 committee continues to review and provide input on key decisions, such as the operational structure 
and funding considerations for standing up a designated areawide planning agency. MORPC anticipates 
completing these initial steps for establishing an Areawide Planning Agency in the first quarter of 2025 for 
Board consideration. Following approval, MORPC will work with the Ohio EPA to conduct a public 
engagement process with affected stakeholders. 
 
Regional Water Study 
The Central Ohio Regional Water Study consultants requested an extension through February to complete 
the Water Study. The delay is due to significant modeling efforts to account for numerous growth and 
weather scenarios over the next few decades. It is expected that the consultants will hold a Licking County 
Specific Workshop with elected officials in mid-December, with the full report occurring sometime in February 
2025. Previous webinar recordings and slide deck information can be accessed here. Scroll to the bottom of 
the page to the Regional Water Study section.  
 
Transportation Safety 
Team Members are collaborating with the Heart of Ohio Family Health Center since they were awarded an 
AARP 2024 Community Challenge Grant to conduct walk audits in the Whitehall community. MORPC 
coordinated and led two walk audits, engaging community members, along with staff from COTA, Franklin 
County Public Health, the Age Friendly Innovation Center, and the Ohio Traffic Safety Office. 
 
Team Members participated in the following safety committee meetings: 

• Franklin County Traffic Fatality Review Board 
• Central Ohio Alliance for Safe Transportation 

 
Diversity, Equity & Inclusion 
In celebration of their tenth anniversary, the Conference of Minority Transportation Officials (COMTO) hosted 
“COMTO Columbus Week.” MORPC joined the signature event as a community partner. Councilmember 
Barroso de Padilla recognized COMTO at a Columbus City Council meeting with a council resolution. 
 
MORPC’s DE&I Committee organized a guided tour to the National Veterans Memorial & Museum in honor 
of Veterans Day. This museum is the only site in the country that honors veterans from each branch of 
service. 
 
Team Members facilitated a virtual “Coffee and Chat,” hosted by the Central Ohio Diversity Consortium. The 
event promoted a culture of belonging and informed attendees how this contributes to higher engagement 
within the workplace. 
 
Gohio Commute 
Gohio Commute welcomed a new vanpool from Chillicothe to the Chalmers P. Wylie VA Clinic. Team 
Members promoted Gohio Commute at the Licking County Chamber HR Management meeting and the 
Nationwide Children’s Health & Benefits Fair.  
 
 
 

mailto:pagrawal@morpc.org
mailto:jgarrity@morpc.org
mailto:shufstedler@morpc.org
mailto:rhampton@morpc.org
mailto:jkuenzli@morpc.org
mailto:rwilliams@morpc.org
https://www.morpc.org/tool-resource/sustaining-scioto/#/
https://www.aarp.org/livable-communities/community-challenge/info-2024/2024-grantees.html


2 
 

Active Transportation Planning 
The 2025 Active Transportation Committee meetings are: January 29, April 23, July 30, and October 29. 
New members are welcome to join. Reach out to Lauren Cardoni (lcardoni@morpc.org) if interested. 
 
ODOT announced a special Active Transportation focused funding solicitation toward the end of October. 
Team Members are sharing information and collaborating with local partners to assist with developing 
funding applications for this unique opportunity. The funding is available to any political subdivision within the 
State of Ohio. Many types of projects, studies, and other initiatives are eligible. 
 
MORPC is available to assist with upcoming Safe Routes to School funding applications and provide letters 
of support for those applications. Contact Lauren Cardoni (lcardoni@morpc.org) if you need assistance. 
 
MORPC hosts virtual group viewings of the Association of Pedestrian and Bicycle Professionals monthly 
Professional Development webinars. The webinars are eligible for 1.0 hour of American Institute of Certified 
Planners (AICP) Certification Maintenance credit. Contact Jordan Petrov (jpetrov@morpc.org) if you are 
interested in attending any of the MORPC group viewings. The next webinar is Wednesday, December 18, 
on: “University Transportation Centers 101: An Overview of the UTC Program and Exploring How 
Practitioners Can Engage the Process.” 
 
Team Members participated in the following active transportation meetings and events: 

• Gahanna Transportation and Mobility Plan Steering Committee and Technical Workshops with Jeff 
Speck 

• ODOT Active Transportation Advisory Committee 

• OSU Active Transportation Advisory Group 

• Ohio Statewide Active Transportation Conference Planning Committee 
 
Technical Assistance Program 
MORPC awarded four new Technical Assistance services for the 2025 program: 

• Village of Galena – Complete Streets Safety Audit 

• City of Hilliard – Trail Town Visioning & Wayfinding Study 
• City of Gahanna – Capital Improvement Plan Visualization Tool 

• City of Grove City – Transit-Support Infrastructure Planning on US-62 
 
Central Ohio Greenways (COG) 
The COG Board met November 20 and heard Working Group, legislative, partner, and program updates. 
The board also discussed the progress of Regional Trail Vision.  

• The COG Trail Towns Working Group is developing a brand for the program. The group continues to 
build consensus around the brand and is seeking funding to refine the brand with a designer. The 
group is also seeking funding for a Trail Town Ambassador Training Program, the Trail Towns in the 
Nation’s Heartland Project, and Operational Funding.  

 
In 2025, Central Ohio Greenways will begin adding “Gateways of Regional Significance” to the map to 
identify existing and proposed locations for premier trail heads that offer the amenities trail users need to 
travel the trails safely and comfortably. 
 
Central Ohio Blueways 
Central Ohio Blueways Working Groups continue to prioritize and define their 2025 goals. The Environmental 
Stewardship Working Group is focusing on assembling guidance for Onion Bag Project Installations. The 
User Experience Working Group continues to advance the formation of a hazard removal consortium. The 
Water Trail Designation Working Group is refining an editable field map to distribute to communities along 
the waterways so they can provide details on amenities at access points, and any useful information on the 
waterways’ navigability and seasonality.  
 
Regional Housing Strategy 
Team Members continue having conversations around housing issues with MORPC member communities. 
Staff continues to promote the identification of barriers and solutions related to housing for members through 
connections with MORPC’s Community Assistance Programs and by giving presentations to councils and 
other organizations. Team Members continue to identify ways to expand upon the previous work of the 
regional Housing Strategy. 
 
If you are interested in a housing/growth workshop for your community’s elected officials, staff, or community 
leaders, MORPC is accepting requests for presentations and workshops. Our Team will work with you to 

mailto:lcardoni@morpc.org
mailto:lcardoni@morpc.org
mailto:jpetrov@morpc.org


3 
 

design the agenda, including recommended speakers and learning objectives. Contact Jonathan Miller for 
more information (JMiller@morpc.org). 
 
Sustainability Advisory Committee (SAC) 
The next Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting is December 18 at the Jeffrey Mansion in Bexley and 
includes a special holiday celebration. Team Members are working to confirm 2025 member appointments. If 
you are interested in being considered or would like to make a recommendation for SAC membership, 
contact Brandi Whetstone (bwhetsone@morpc.org).  

• The Regional Sustainability Agenda Subcommittee met November 22 and continues refining goals 
and objectives to promote sustainable, healthy, and resilient communities throughout Central Ohio. 
The next meeting is January 23, 2025. For more information, contact Brandi Whetstone 
(bwhetstone@morpc.org).  

 
Sustainable2050  
The next Sustainable2050 meeting is December 5. The agenda includes updates on the Regional 
Sustainability Agenda and a presentation from Jennie McAdams, Franklin County Public Health, about a 
recent countywide tree canopy study in partnership with the City of Columbus. 
 
Sustainable2050 membership is open to all MORPC members, and current Sustainable2050 members 
interested in earning their tier status certification should contact Brandi Whetstone (bwhetstone@morpc.org). 
A certification workbook will be provided, and a kick-off meeting is encouraged to review the process. Once a 
completed workbook is submitted and reviewed, the next step is to present the proposed certification to the 
SAC for approval.  
 
Sustaining Scioto Board 
The next Sustaining Scioto Board Meeting is December 11 and will focus on the transition to a Regional 
Water Advisory Council. The proposed Regional Water Advisory Council will continue to advance broad 
regional water priorities including sustainable water resource management, climate resiliency, and 
adaptation in the face of growth, development, and changing weather patterns. 
 
Energy & Air Quality 
The Energy and Air Quality Working Group met November 20 and heard updates on the Central Ohio 
Climate Action Plan. The work group is looking for candidates to serve as Chair and Vice Chair. If interested, 
contact Brian Filiatraut (bfiliatraut@morpc.org).  
 
MORPC is in the final stages of awarding and contracting out the full scope of work for the $2 million U.S. 
DOT/FHWA Electric Vehicle Charger Reliability and Accessibility Accelerator (EVC RAA) award to repair 
and/or replace non-operational EV chargers throughout the 15-county region. Team Members plan on 
starting EVC RAA work this month and progressing into 2025 to fulfill the award completion deadline of 
August 2025. 
 
MORPC is moving forward with finalizing the grant agreement with FHWA on the $15 million MORE EVS 
project award to install over 400 EV charging ports in thirteen counties as part of the U.S. DOT/FHWA’s 
Charging and Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) Round 1B Program. As soon as the grant agreement is completed, 
MORPC will issue an RFI to set up the RFP process. Reach out to Brian Filiatraut (bfiliatraut@morpc.org) for 
more information. 
 
Work on the Climate Pollution Reduction Grant Central Ohio Climate Action Plan (COCAP) continues. The 
COCAP Team, led by Sustainable Columbus, MORPC, and others continues to develop a more 
comprehensive climate action plan and pollution reduction strategies through the COCAP for the 10-county 
Columbus Metropolitan Statistical Area. MORPC completed the regional greenhouse gas inventory which will 
serve as a roadmap and benchmark mitigation strategies developed over the coming months. For more 
information, visit the COCAP website or email Brian Filiatraut at bfiliatraut@morpc.org.  
 
Neighborhood Air Monitoring Project/U.S. EPA Project 
Team Members, in partnership with Franklin County Public Health, made great progress on the U.S. EPA 
funded air monitoring project. Under the advisement of the air quality modeling consultant, Ramboll Americas 
Engineering Solutions, MORPC created an interactive map of where sensors should be deployed and began 
sharing this with local community partners. MORPC extended the deadline for sensor deployment to 
December 31 to ensure the best possible placements for analyzing local PM2.5 levels within Franklin 
County. Of the forty newest Purple Air sensors, fifteen were installed by the end of November and the 
remaining 25 are scheduled for installation in the coming weeks. 

mailto:JMiller@morpc.org
mailto:bwhetsone@morpc.org
mailto:bwhetstone@morpc.org
mailto:bwhetstone@morpc.org
mailto:bfiliatraut@morpc.org
mailto:bfiliatraut@morpc.org
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/de67bf70d8a641f0a81afbfce5051c0f
mailto:bfiliatraut@morpc.org


4 
 

Regional Data Advisory Committee (RDAC) 
The RDAC met October 1.  

• Cyber Security Working Group: The Working Group met November 19 to discuss takeaways from 
the October 31 “Cybersecurity for Local Leaders” event. Four MORPC member communities and 
one community stakeholder signed up to engage with the Working Group for assistance in advancing 
their cybersecurity objectives. Interested parties should complete a Cybersecurity Working Group 
Interest Form. 

• Data Day Working Group: The Working Group sent out a Call for Proposals for Data Day 2025. The 
group is also focusing their efforts on identifying potential morning and lunch speakers. Send 
speaker suggestions to Jordan Inskeep at jinskeep@morpc.org.  

• DEI & Data Working Group: The Working Group met November 19 to evaluate progress and identify 
support needed to complete proposals for DEI-focused sessions to be held at Data Day 2025.  

• Regional Data Coaching Working Group: The Working Group met November 21 to coordinate 
marketing and coverage for their second pop-up event at the Columbus Metropolitan Main Library on 
December 7. Members also discussed 2025 outreach plans. 

• Workforce and Job Quality Working Group: The Working Group met November 21 and continued to 
define regional standards associated with five dimensions of job quality: earnings, schedules, 
benefits, safety/security, and learning/development.  

• Central Ohio GIS User Group: The group met November 2, GIS Day. Andrew Wilson, City of Hilliard, 
presented on ArcPro, with discussions on all things GIS, including potential future uses of ESRI AI 
assistants and the steep data management requirements needed to efficiently leverage some of 
ESRI’s more advanced features. 

• Regional Information & Data Group (RIDG): RIDG met November 13. The meeting focused on Data 
Privacy. The next RIDG meeting is in the first quarter of 2025. The RIDG Steering Committee and 
MORPC Team Members are working to develop topics for 2025 and evaluating the structure and 
charter of the Committee to assess areas for improvement and streamlining. 

 
Data & Research Activities 
Team Members expect to launch the next Leaders Listen Survey in early December.  
 
Team Members are collaborating with a group of graduate students in The Ohio State University Master of 
Translational Data Analytics program to conduct a property tax productivity analysis (aka “value per acre”) for 
parcels in Delaware County. Past studies in other locations revealed that traditional walkable neighborhoods 
characteristic of those built prior to World War II produce significantly more tax value per acre than 
automobile-oriented development characteristic of post-WWII development patterns. The project is 
structured as a two-semester capstone course ending May 2025. The students are carrying out the analysis 
under supervision from MORPC Staff. A key project goal is that the analysis will be reproducible and easily 
adaptable to other counties. The processes for working with county parcel data may also facilitate other 
critical MORPC work including sub-county population estimates.  
 

DRIVE INVESTMENT 
 
LinkUS Mobility Initiative 
With the passage of the transit levy, MORPC continues to work with COTA, the City of Columbus, Franklin 
County, and other partners to implement the LinkUS initiative, including the formalization of the transit-
supportive infrastructure program, equitable transit-oriented development policies, bus rapid transit corridor 
planning, and initial fixed-route and COTA//Plus services enhancements. 
 
Passenger Rail 
MORPC continues to work with the City of Fort Wayne on planning for the Midwest Connect corridor 
between Chicago and Pittsburgh. Staff participated in a Rally for Rail and panel discussion in late October. 
Representatives from the Central Ohio Passenger Rail Committee (COPRC) also met with Fort Wayne 
Mayor Sharon Tucker to discuss short- and long-term goals and to strengthen interregional collaboration. 
 
The Central Ohio Passenger Rail Committee met November 12 and heard updates from the Ohio Rail 
Development Commission (ORDC), the Midwest Connect consultant team, and Amtrak. 
 
ORDC is accepting public comments on the State Rail Plan update, including topics related to passenger 
rail, through an online survey. The survey is available at https://metroquestsurvey.com/isd72. Comments or 
questions may be submitted to staterailplan@dot.ohio.gov through the end of December. 
 
 

https://forms.office.com/pages/responsepage.aspx?id=qsAl0qD0JUm8ger_h5Q5cHyK0NFrGMRJk2Vni0Rs5vtUQURJQ0haMUZYUlVCSk9VS0FQMzcySFpJQSQlQCN0PWcu&route=shorturl
mailto:jinskeep@morpc.org
https://metroquestsurvey.com/isd72
mailto:staterailplan@dot.ohio.gov


5 
 

Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS)/Economic Development District 
MORPC hosted a panel, The Future of Infrastructure: Building a Blueprint for Tomorrow, at the December 6 
ED411. Panelists from Nevada, Arizona and Texas shared lessons learned whilst securing large scale 
projects, including how they addressed regional challenges and prepared the region for transformative 
growth. 
 
In partnership with the Ohio Department of Transportation, MORPC is hosting a Rickenbacker Area Freight 
Alliance workshop on December 16. The purpose of the workshop is to create synergies between ongoing 
economic development initiatives in the area and the planned transportation infrastructure investments to 
meet the needs of this important regional economic asset. 
 
Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) 
Team Members ensured applications for MORPC Attributable Funds, OPWC, and other infrastructure 
funding and technical assistance programs were evaluated in congruence with adopted MTP goals. 
 
Competitive Advantage Projects (CAP) 
The relaunch of the Competitive Advantage Projects (CAP) program is on hold until federal funding priorities, 
particularly those of the U.S. Economic Development Administration, are clear. 
 
Brownfield Assessments 
MORPC applied to the U.S. EPA’s Community Wide Brownfield Assessment grant on November 12. If 
successful, this grant could fund phases 1 and 2 of hazardous material assessments as well as clean up 
planning. The grant targets the Linden and South Side Area of Columbus as well as Mt. Vernon in Knox 
County but all members will be able to utilize funds. Award announcements are likely in Q2 2025. 
 
Federal Competitive Programs 
The United States Department of Transportation opened the Rebuilding American Infrastructure with 
Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) FY25 grant program on November 1. The current solicitation includes two 
rounds of funding where only applications that obtained a Project of Merit status in the previous RAISE round 
can participate in round one. MORPC’s application, titled “Trail Towns in the Nation's Heartland Planning 
Project” was a Project of Merit in the previous RAISE round and was resubmitted into round one of the 
current RAISE solicitation. 
 
The United States Department of Transportation opened the Regional Infrastructure Accelerator (RIA) 
program on October 28. MORPC is interested in participating in this program to assist with delivery of Transit 
Supportive Infrastructure that is included in LinkUS. The grant could also help inform the implementation of 
the Central Ohio Greenways (COG) vision. MORPC leadership will meet to discuss next steps. 
 
MORPC established a process for Letters of Support requests. The process will not only help Central Ohio 
communities and other partners receive MORPC’s support letters in a timely manner but will also help track 
and record internally the letters provided for different funding opportunities. You can find the link here.  
 
Drive Investment Portal 
The Drive Investment Portal is a free member resource with up-to-date information on active and proposed 
funding opportunities to help finance regional priorities. For any questions, contact Preston Frick at 
pfrick@morpc.org.  
 
Mobility Management 
Team Members created a “Getting Around Franklin County” guide to highlight the available transportation 
options for seniors and people with disabilities. The guide is available to the public and interested agencies. 
  
FTA Section 5310 Designated Recipient 
The 5310 Advisory Committee met to select awards for the 2024 solicitation cycle. Fifteen recipients are 
recommended for a total of $1,760,329 in federal funding. 
 
Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization (CORPO) 
The CORPO Committee met November 4 and appointed Jeff Stauch (Union County Engineer) the new chair 
and Brian Ball (City of Mount Vernon Engineer) the new vice chair. 
 
Team Members began the process of drafting the 2026-2029 CORPO Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP) with rural consultation at the September CORPO Subcommittee meetings and continued this month 
with submitting documentation from the rural consultation meetings, attending training sessions for the 
E-STIP platform and beginning the drafting of the TIP document. 

https://www.morpc.org/tool-resource/funding-opportunities/
mailto:pfrick@morpc.org


6 
 

The Functional Classification Review process started with a training session at the beginning of the month. 
CORPO will be coordinating with counties and local jurisdictions to complete the Functional Classification 
Review process over the next year to be submitted to ODOT and FHWA by August 2025. 
 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
Team Members prepared a TIP amendment for consideration by CAC, TAC, and the Transportation Policy 
Committee in December. Coordination with ODOT is ongoing for smaller administrative modifications to the 
TIP. 
 
MORPC-Attributable Funding 
Staff provided applicants to the MORPC-Attributable Funds program with draft scores for their applications in 
early November. Applicants were offered the opportunity to discuss their draft scores and provide clarification 
where needed. Revised draft scores were shared with applicants on November 22. The AFC reviewed these 
scores and discussed funding scenarios at their December 4 meeting. 
 
Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) 
Applicants to District 3 (Franklin County) for FY26 SCIP/LTIP assistance were provided draft scores for their 
applications in early November. Applicants were offered the opportunity to meet with MORPC Staff, who 
scored the applications, to discuss their scores and provide clarification of their applications where needed. 
The District 3 PWIC reviewed these scores at their December 6 meeting. 
 
Clean Ohio Conservation Fund 
The District 3 Natural Resource Assistance Council met November 4 and recommended five 
projects totaling approximately $4.9 million for Clean Ohio Funding in the FY 2025 cycle. 

 
 
Preliminary Screeners for FY 2026 are due June 2025. For more information about Clean Ohio funding for 
Franklin County, contact Edwina Teye at (ETeye@morpc.org) or visit MORPC’s Clean Ohio Fund website.  
 
Money Mondays 
MORPC hosted the following Money Monday sessions: 

• November 18 – Grants and Financial Reporting 
• December 2 – EPA’s $8 Million for Solid Waste Infrastructure for Recycling Grants 

 
Upcoming sessions: 

• December 9 – State and Federl Funding to Support Strategic Priority Projects in Upper Arlington 

• December 16 – Small Surface Water and Groundwater Storage Projects 
 

PAY IT FORWARD 
 
Membership Services 
Team Members completed ten member visits. 

mailto:ETeye@morpc.org
https://www.morpc.org/programs-services/clean-ohio-conservation-fund/


7 
 

Member Benefits 
MORPC added two educational partnerships with Capital University and the Columbus College of Art and 
Design. 
 
Events 
MORPC hosted/held the following events: 

• November 14 – Pre-Commission Luncheon with Stephen Steinour 

• November 19 – STEPZ Workshop 
 
Public Involvement & Engagement 
Team Members participated in the following opportunities: 

• COTA’s Adopt-a-Stop 
• Who’s Who in Black Columbus 

• National Center for Urban Solutions “UpliftHer” community forum 
 
MORPC promoted the following through social media and on our website: STEPZ Workshop, Community 
Advisory Committee applications, CURA & MORPC Housing Forum, Data Day registration, Air Quality 
Neighborhood Monitoring. 
 
MORPC’s Residential Services department is being promoted to Franklin County residents through billboard 
advertisements to increase awareness for low-income homeowners and renters. 
 

BUILD VALUE FOR OUR MEMBERS 
 

STEPZ Workshop 
MORPC hosted the Strategic Training for Effective Planning and Zoning (STEPZ) Workshop for Planning 
Officials aimed at training and providing context for elected and appointed planning officials for MORPC’s 
Member Communities. The workshop featured sessions on the roles and responsibilities of planning 
commissions and zoning boards, connecting the work of these entities to community planning as a whole, 
and discussions around the legalities of zoning and how to interact with engaged members of the public. The 
workshop also featured an interactive element in partnership with the Urban Land Institute where attendees 
received firsthand experience in the role of a developer. 
 
The second STEPZ workshop; STEPZ: Planning Staff is in May 2025. If you have any questions about the 
event and how it can assist your community’s planning commissions and boards of zoning appeals, contact 
Tunazzina Alam (talam@morpc.org). 
 
Planner Pool Program 
MORPC is assembling a list of fixed-fee services that relate to the most common issues communities in 
Central Ohio are experiencing. Any and all suggestions on potential services are welcome. If you have 
suggestions for services that MORPC should be offering through the Planning Pool, contact Jonathan Miller 
at jmiller@morpc.org. 
 
Members are invited to submit applications for assistance from the Planner Pool Program. MORPC is 
accepting projects related to planning, zoning, and sustainability.  
 
If you are interested in additional staffing assistance, filling staff vacancies during vacation, assistance with 
gaps in staffing, or other planning or pre-planning activities such as guidance with best practices, contact 
Jonathan Miller (jmiller@morpc.org) to schedule a time to discuss your communities potential needs and 
ways that MORPC may be able to help. 
 
Community-Based Planning Assistance 
The Community-Based Planning Assistance Program (CBPA) continues to be available for community 
assistance requests. Members may learn more about, or request assistance from, CBPA by visiting 
https://www.morpc.org/community-based-planning-assistance.  Contact Jonathan Miller (jmiller@morpc.org) 
with questions or to discuss potential ways that MORPC may assist. 
 
Team Members are reviewing the community assistance provided through the Consultant Services and 
Planner Pool Programs to identify potential additions. If there is any specific topic or area of planning that 
you think should be included in the community assistance services that MORPC provides, please contact 
Jonathan Miller at jmiller@morpc.org. 
 

mailto:talam@morpc.org
mailto:jmiller@morpc.org
mailto:jmiller@morpc.org
https://www.morpc.org/community-based-planning-assistance
mailto:jmiller@morpc.org
mailto:jmiller@morpc.org


8 
 

Consultant Services Program 
Team Members are working on opening prequalification for 2025. New eligible services will include cost 
estimating and feasibility studies.  
 
If you have a Request for Proposal (RFP) you would like advertised through the Consultant Services 
Program or need assistance with writing an RFP, reach out to consultantservices@morpc.org for additional 
information.  
 
Finance Updates 
The Indirect Cost Allocation Plan (ICAP) for 2025 was submitted and is awaiting ODOT approval. The 2025 
agency budget and appropriations are prepared and ready for Commission review and approval. 
 
MORPC in the News 
Links to press releases and news article for the month are available at www.morpc.org/MORPCInTheNews   
 
Personnel Updates 
MORPC is currently recruiting for open positions: 

• Programming Executive Assistant 
• Programming Intern 
• Energy Auditor 

 
The requirements for the posted positions are available for review on the website at 
http://www.morpc.org/careers/.  
 
RFP/RFQ Postings 
The following RFP’s/RFQ’s were posted: 

• Leaders Listen: Economic Development – Public Opinion Survey 
• HVAC Contractor for Residential Energy Programs  
• Insulation Contractor for Residential Energy Programs  

 
The full RFP/RFQs are available at http://www.morpc.org/rfps-rfqs/.  
 

mailto:consultantservices@morpc.org
http://www.morpc.org/MORPCInTheNews
http://www.morpc.org/careers/
http://www.morpc.org/rfps-rfqs/


��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� T8CC8BF�7KO9=JU�HI?JKL8M?�V8O?JL=O��WX4Y6� Z=M?FQ?O�[\]�̂\̂_��àbcYd46� DO=e=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�fg:̂_h�iXjj,klm1n�lo,�pmqq0n,�.r�Xq,s012/m0�0t�0�-,-u,/�.r�lo,�+m2v5om.�S,nm.10q�wq011m1n�d.--mttm.1�x+5Swdyz��;A�Z=M?FQ?O�{]�̂\̂_]�L<?�|8CCB@?�E=KAJ8C�=N�L<?�|8CCB@?�=N�}C?IBA9O8B�eBGG?9�B�O?G=CKL8=A�L=�~=8A�L<?�789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A��7;>DE����<8G�O?G=CKL8=A�BJJ?eLG�L<?�|8CCB@?�=N�}C?IBA9O8B�BG�B�F?FQ?O�=N�7;>DE�?NN?JL8M?��BAKBO��f]�̂\̂�]��<8J<�<?CeG�F??L�L<?�9?G8O?�=N�7;>DE�G�F?FQ?OG<8e�L=�J=AL8AK?�L=�@O=��L<?�=O@BA8�BL8=A�N=O�L<?�Q?A?N8L�=N�B�GLO=A@?O�E?ALOBC�;<8=�O?@8=A����<?�̂\̂��9K?G�BGG?GG?9�L=�L<?�|8CCB@?�=N�}C?IBA9O8B��8CC�Q?��f]̂�\����}LLBJ<F?ALh�>?G=CKL8=A�fg:̂_�����������



���������	
����

����������
���
�������
��
������ !��
�"
�
#�#$�!
��
���
%� &'���
(�������
)�������
*�##�""���
+%'()*,-

./���0�1
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
?4@:9=6A4B
234
=44>
;:?
@:778C:?826D41
@::E4?826D4
E78==6=9
6=
:?>4?
2:
4=BF?4
@:=26=F4
9?:G23
8=>
E?:BE4?62HI
8=>

./���0�1
J��KLMB
N6BB6:=
6B
2:
C4
234
?496:=87
D:6@4
8=>
8
@8287HB2
;:?
BFB286=8C6762H
8=>
4@:=:N6@
E?:BE4?62H
6=
:?>4?
2:
B4@F?4
8
@:NE42626D4
8>D8=2894
;:?
L4=2?87
�36:I
8=>

./���0�1
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
38B
E42626:=4>
;:?
N4NC4?B36E
6=
J��KLI
8=>

./���0�1
62
6B
234
>4B6?4
:;
OPQRSMT
N4NC4?B
2:
@:=26=F4
2:
9?:G
;:?
234
C4=4;62
:;
B2?:=9
@:778C:?826:=
:=
?496:=87
6BBF4BI
8=>

./���0�1
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
G677
C4
8BB4BB4>
>F4B
C8B4>
:=
234
�U��
E:EF7826:=
E?:V4@26:=BI
8=>

./���0�1
:=
	:D4NC4?
W1
�U��1
234
5677894
L:F=@67
:;
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
E8BB4>
8
?4B:7F26:=
8@@4E26=9
234
@:=>626:=B
:;
N4NC4?B36E
@:=286=4>
6=
J��KLMB
0?26@74B
:;
09?44N4=2I
=:G
234?4;:?4

X�
��
�����5�Y
XZ
�/�
%[\&']['
(̂ _['̀ �a
)a�̀ [̀̀_
*'%%[bb['̀ c

�4@26:=
�d
 �382
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
6B
8@@4E24>
8B
8
N4NC4?
:;
J��KL
4;;4@26D4
e8=F8?H
�1
�U�fd


�4@26:=
�d
 �382
234
XH78GB
E?:D6>4
2382
:=4
g�h
?4E?4B4=2826D4
8EE:6=24>
CH
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
6B
47696C74
2:
B4?D4
8B
8
D:26=9
N4NC4?
:=
2346?
C4387;
82
234
J��KL
L:NN6BB6:=
N4426=9Bd

�4@26:=
id
 �382
�U�f
>F4B
G677
C4
8BB4BB4>
2:
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
6=
234
8N:F=2
:;
j�1�fUd

�4@26:=
�d
 �382
234
5677894
:;
074<8=>?68
6B
4=26274>
2:
234
B8N4
?49F78?
B4?D6@4B
:;
J��KL
8B
8?4
:234?
N4NC4?B
8=>
2382
8=H
BE4@687
B4?D6@4B
G677
C4
EF?@38B4>
CH
234
5677894
C8B4>
:=
B28=>8?>
J��KL
?824Bd

�4@26:=
fd
 �382
234
4<4@F26D4
>6?4@2:?
6B
8F23:?6A4>
2:
28k4
BF@3
:234?
8@26:=
8=>
4<4@F24
8=>
>476D4?
BF@3
:234?
>:@FN4=2B
8B1
8@26=9
G623
234
8>D6@4
:;
74987
@:F=B471
34
B3877
>44N
=4@4BB8?H
8=>
8EE?:E?6824
2:
@8??H
:F2
234
6=24=2
:;
236B
?4B:7F26:=d

�4@26:=
ld

�382
236B
L:NN6BB6:=
;6=>B
8=>
>424?N6=4B
2382
877
;:?N87
>476C4?826:=B
8=>
8@26:=B
:;
236B
L:NN6BB6:=
@:=@4?=6=9
8=>
?47826=9
2:
234
8>:E26:=
:;
236B
?4B:7F26:=
G4?4
28k4=
6=
:E4=
N4426=9B
:;
236B
L:NN6BB6:=d



 















































































L3?6B
0N:?:B4
m?::N4B1
L386?

 
 
 
 
 
 %[\&']['
(̂ _['̀ �a
)a�̀ [̀̀_
*'%%[bb['̀ 






���������	
����
����
�

���������
�����
 ����� !
"#
$%$&
'�()�����
(!�
 *�++��)
,� �-�.#
�/�������
0� ���- 
1 �2� ��
(!�
 ��+���
3��(!#
,�)(� 45�2
'� ����4
6����� 
7��5- ��!�
 
 65�-
8���4��
9-��
'����-�
:";<$"
=- 
����-�
�����
 0���)(� 
"$#
$%$>





��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� T8CC8BF�7KO9=JU�HI?JKL8M?�V8O?JL=O��WX4Y6� Z=M?FQ?O�[\]�̂\̂_��àbcYd46� DO=e=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�̂\:̂_f�gXhh,ijk1l�jm,�dkjn�.o�+0/k.1�0p�0�-,-q,/�.o�jm,�+k2r5mk.�S,lk.10s�ts011k1l�d.--kppk.1�u+5Stdvw��;A�;JL=Q?O�̂x]�̂\̂_]�L<?�E8Ly�E=KAJ8C�=N�L<?�E8Ly�=N�7BO8=A�eBGG?9�B�O?G=CKL8=A�L=�z=8A�L<?�789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�{7;>DE|}�~<8G�O?G=CKL8=A�BJJ?eLG�L<?�E8Ly�=N�7BO8=A�BG�B�F?FQ?O�=N�7;>DE�?NN?JL8M?��BAKBOy��]�̂\̂�]��<8J<�<?CeG�F??L�L<?�9?G8O?�=N�7;>DE�G�F?FQ?OG<8e�L=�J=AL8AK?�L=�@O=��L<?�=O@BA8�BL8=A�N=O�L<?�Q?A?N8L�=N�B�GLO=A@?O�E?ALOBC�;<8=�O?@8=A}��~<?�̂\̂��9K?G�BGG?GG?9�L=�L<?�E8Ly�=N�7BO8=A��8CC�Q?����]��̂}����LLBJ<F?ALf�>?G=CKL8=A�̂\:̂_�����������



���������	
����

����������
���
����
��
������
� 
�
!�!"��
��
���
��#$%���
&������'
('������
��!!�  ���
)�%&(�*+

,-���.�/
012
3405
67
89:46;
:2<6=;4>2?
012
;22@
76:
<6AA9B6:904C2/
<66D2:904C2
DA9;;4;=
4;
6:@2:
06
2;?E:2
<6;04;E2
=:6F01
9;@
D:6?D2:405G
9;@

,-���.�/
8��H3I?
J4??46;
4?
06
B2
012
:2=46;9A
C64<2
9;@
9
<909A5?0
76:
?E?094;9B4A405
9;@
2<6;6J4<
D:6?D2:405
4;
6:@2:
06
?2<E:2
9
<6JD20404C2
9@C9;09=2
76:
32;0:9A
�146G
9;@

,-���.�/
012
3405
67
89:46;
19?
D204046;2@
76:
J2JB2:?14D
4;
8��H3G
9;@

,-���.�/
40
4?
012
@2?4:2
67
KLMNOIP
J2JB2:?
06
<6;04;E2
06
=:6F
76:
012
B2;2740
67
?0:6;=
<6AA9B6:9046;
6;
:2=46;9A
4??E2?G
9;@

,-���.�/
012
3405
67
89:46;
F4AA
B2
9??2??2@
@E2?
B9?2@
6;
012
����
D6DEA9046;
D:6Q2<046;?G
9;@

,-���.�/
6;
�<06B2:
�R/
����/
012
3405
36E;<4A
67
012
3405
67
89:46;
D9??2@
9
:2?6AE046;
9<<2D04;=
012
<6;@4046;?
67
J2JB2:?14D
<6;094;2@
4;
8��H3I?
.:04<A2?
67
.=:22J2;0G
;6F
012:276:2

S�
��
�����T�U
SV
�-�
�WX$%YW%
&Z[W%\�]
(]�\\W\[
�%��Ŵ Ŵ%\_

�2<046;
̀a
 �190
012
3405
67
89:46;
4?
9<<2D02@
9?
9
J2JB2:
67
8��H3
2772<04C2
b9;E9:5
̀/
���ca


�2<046;
�a
 �190
012
S5A9F?
D:6C4@2
0190
0F6
d�e
:2D:2?2;0904C2?
9DD64;02@
B5
012
3405
67
89:46;
9:2
2A4=4BA2
06
?2:C2
9?
C604;=
J2JB2:?
6;
0124:
B219A7
90
012
8��H3
36JJ4??46;
J2204;=?a

�2<046;
fa
 �190
���c
@E2?
F4AA
B2
9??2??2@
06
012
3405
67
89:46;
4;
012
9J6E;0
67
g̀c/hh�a

�2<046;
�a
 �190
012
3405
67
89:46;
4?
2;040A2@
06
012
?9J2
:2=EA9:
?2:C4<2?
67
8��H3
9?
9:2
6012:
J2JB2:?
9;@
0190
9;5
?D2<49A
?2:C4<2?
F4AA
B2
DE:<19?2@
B5
012
3405
B9?2@
6;
?09;@9:@
8��H3
:902?a

�2<046;
ca
 �190
012
2i2<E04C2
@4:2<06:
4?
9E016:4>2@
06
09j2
?E<1
6012:
9<046;
9;@
2i2<E02
9;@
@2A4C2:
?E<1
6012:
@6<EJ2;0?
9?/
9<04;=
F401
012
9@C4<2
67
A2=9A
<6E;?2A/
12
?19AA
@22J
;2<2??9:5
9;@
9DD:6D:4902
06
<9::5
6E0
012
4;02;0
67
014?
:2?6AE046;a

�2<046;
ka

�190
014?
36JJ4??46;
74;@?
9;@
@202:J4;2?
0190
9AA
76:J9A
@2A4B2:9046;?
9;@
9<046;?
67
014?
36JJ4??46;
<6;<2:;4;=
9;@
:2A904;=
06
012
9@6D046;
67
014?
:2?6AE046;
F2:2
09j2;
4;
6D2;
J2204;=?
67
014?
36JJ4??46;a



 















































































31:4?
.J6:6?2
l:66J2?/
3194:

 
 
 
 
 
 �WX$%YW%
&Z[W%\�]
(]�\\W\[
�%��Ŵ Ŵ%\







���������	
����
����
�

���������
�����
 ������ 
!"
#$#%
&�'(�����
' �
 )�**��(
+���,�-"
�.�������
/�����,�
0��1����
' �
 ��*���
2��' "
+�('��34�1
&������3
5������
6��4,��� �
 
 54�,
7���3��
8,��
&����,�
9!:;#!
<,�
����,�
�����
 /���('��
!#"
#$#=





��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�E=FF8GG8=A�7?FP?OG��QR5+6� S<BTA�UKNGL?9C?O�E<8?N�;V?OBL8A@�;NN8J?O��WX4Y6� Z=M?FP?O�[\]�[̂[_��àbcYd46� DO=V=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�ef:[_g�hXii,jk01i,�.l�km,�lnoi0p�q32r,k�012�l312�0ii.31k�0jj/.j/n0kn.1o�l./�km,�.j,/0kn.1�.l�km,�+n2s5mn.�R,rn.10p�tp011n1r�d.--noon.1�l./�uvuwx��y<8G�O?G=CKL8=A�?GLBPC8G<?G�BA�B@?AJz�=V?OBL8A@�PK9@?L�=N�{|̂]_|}]|~\�N=O�JBC?A9BO�z?BO�[̂[~�BA9�G?LG�BKL<=O8�?9�BVVO=VO8BL8=A�C?M?CG�N=O�L<?�B@?AJz�=V?OBL8A@�BA9�JBV8LBC�?IV?A98LKO?G�PK9@?L�C8A?�8L?FG���y<?�NKCC�[̂[~�=V?OBL8A@�PK9@?L�9=JKF?AL�T8L<�J=FVBO8G=AG�L=�L<?�[̂[_�PK9@?L�BA9�BA�?I?JKL8M?�GKFFBOz�<8@<C8@<L8A@��?z�?C?F?ALG�=N�L<?�[̂[~�PK9@?L�8G�BLLBJ<?9���y<?�VO=V=G?9�LOBAGN?OG�BO?�BG�N=CC=TGg���yOBAGN?O�{e]̂̂ ]̂̂̂ �̂=KL�=N�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?�L=�L<?�FB8A�=V?OBL8A@�BJJ=KAL������y<8G�LOBAGN?O�T8CC�=ACz�=JJKO]�8N�A??9?9]�8A�BJJ=O9BAJ?�T8L<�L<?�=V?OBL8A@�O?G?OM?�V=C8Jz������yOBAGN?O�{e]̂̂ ]̂̂̂ �̂8AL=�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?�L=�LOBAGN?O��8N�A??9?9��F?FP?O�9K?G�NKA98A@�L=�8AJO?BG?�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?�BA9�O?LKOA�L<?�NKA9G�LOBAGN?OO?9�BG�A=L?9�BP=M?]�8N�BVVC8JBPC?����yOBAGN?O�{~̂]̂̂ �̂=KL�=N�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?�L=�L<?�FB8A�=V?OBL8A@�BJJ=KAL������y<8G�LOBAGN?O�BKL<=O8�BL8=A�8G�N=O�L<?�FBAB@?F?AL�O?G?OM?]�8N�A??9?9]�L=�NKA9�A?T�8AL?A9?9�O?M?AK?:@?A?OBL8A@�BJL8M8Lz�BA9�=O�O?CBL8M?Cz�F8A=O�G<=OLB@?G�8A�NKA98A@�N=O�J?OLB8A�VO=@OBFG������yOBAGN?O�{ê ]̂̂̂ �̂=KL�=N�L<?�FB8A�=V?OBL8A@�BJJ=KAL�L=�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?������y<8G�BKL<=O8�BL8=A�8G�N=O�L<?�VKOV=G?�=N�LOBAGN?OO8A@�V=G8L8M?�A?L�8AJ=F?�NO=F�J?OLB8A�VO=@OBF�@O=KVG�L=�P?�8AM?GL?9�8A�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�BA9�7BAB@?F?AL�>?G?OM?G�8A�BJJ=O9BAJ?�T8L<�L<?�;V?OBL8A@�>?G?OM?�D=C8Jz������LLBJ<F?ALg�>?G=CKL8=A�ef:[_��



���������	
����

�����������
��
���
������
�� !��
�� 
��� 
�������
���"��"�������
��"
���
���"�����
��
���
#� $%���
&�!�����
'������!
(�))������
��"
*+*,-

./���0�1
234
567789986:
;::<;==>
;?6@29
234
;A4:B>
C<?A42
;:?
D<:?
;BB6<:2
;@@E6@E8;286:9F
;:?

./���0�1
234
D8:;:B4
24;71
G6EH8:A
G823
234
4I4B<28J4
?8E4B26E
;:?
;==
K��L5
?4@;E274:291
3;9
D6E7<=;24?
234
�M�N
O<?A42
;:?
D<:?
;BB6<:2
;@@E6@E8;286:9F
;:?

./���0�1
234
�I4B<28J4
567782244
3;9
E4J84G4?
234
�M�N
O<?A42
;:?
D<:?
;BB6<:2
;@@E6@E8;286:9
;:?
E4B6774:?9
;?6@286:F
:6G
234E4D6E41

O�
��
�����P�Q
OR
�/�
#ST$%US%
&VWS%X�Y
'Y�XXSXW
(%##SZZS%X[

�4B286:
�\
 �3;2
234
6@4E;28:A
C<?A42
;22;B34?
;9
@;A4
]
6D
234
�M�N
O<?A42
89
;?6@24?\

�4B286:
�\
 �3;2
234
D8:;:B4
?8E4B26E
89
34E4C>
;<236E8̂4?
;:?
?8E4B24?
26
;?6@2
234
�M�N
D<:?
;@@E6@E8;286:9
;9
936G:
C4=6G
;:?
2E;:9D4E
D<:?9
<@
26
234
;76<:29
=8924?
8:
234
2E;:9D4E
;@@E6@E8;286:
=8:49
C4=6G\

 

 

 _"��̀���
 

 
_�� 
 %"!a
 (����b
 

 *+*,
X�a
 X�a
 %�c���
 

 ���"��"�������


 

 (� �
 �������
d����
 e� !��
fM�g
 �gN�M
 N�MMMM
 �;=;E849
 hi1gNg1M�f
fM�g
 �gN�M
 N�NMMM
 jE8:A4
O4:4D829
 hg1��N1ii�
fM�g
 �gN�M
 N�MMMM
 �4EJ8B49
k
53;EA49
;:?
K;24E8;=9
 h�]1�]�1���
fM�g
 �gN�M
 NgfNMM
 O6;E?
K47C4E
�487C<E9474:29
 hgM1MMM
fM�g
 �gN�M
 NN�MMM
 lE;:29
26
	6:LE6D82
�EA;:8;̂286:9
;:?
l6J4E:74:29
 h�1gig1M�M
fM�g
 �gN�M
 N�MMMM
 5;@82;=
6<2=;>
m
j<E:82<E41
�n<8@74:2
k
�4;9436=?
�7@E6J474:29
 hf�1NMM


 

 

 d%d�Y
 op+q*,+qrs,

 
 
 
 

 
 
 d"�����"
��"
%��"����!
&���"t�
fM��
 ��N�M
 N�ggMM
 �E;:9D4E
0@@E6@E8;286:
m
�<2
 h�1MMM1MMM
fM�g
 �gN�M
 ��ggMM
 �E;:9D4E
0@@E6@E8;286:
m
�:
 h�1MMM1MMM

 
 
 
 
fM�g
 �gN�M
 N�ggMM
 �E;:9D4E
0@@E6@E8;286:

�<2
 h�1MMM1MMM
fM��
 ��N�M
 ��ggMM
 �E;:9D4E
0@@E6@E8;286:

�:
 h�1MMM1MMM

 
 
 

 
 
 d"�����"
��"
#���!�)���
&���"t�
fM��
 ��N�M
 N�ggMM
 �E;:9D4E
0@@E6@E8;286:
m
�<2
 hNM1MMM




���������	
����
����
�

 ����
 �����
 ������
 ������ �
!""�#"�$�%$#�
&
'�
 (��)���

 
 
 
����
 �����
 ������
 ������ �
!""�#"�$�%$#�
&
*+%
 (���)���
���,
 �,���
 ������
 ������ �
!""�#"�$�%$#�
&
'�
 (���)���

 
 
 
 

- .%$#�
�/
 �0�%
%0 
 1 .+%$2 
3$� .%#�
$�
�+%0#�$4 3
%#
%�5 
�+.0
#%0 �
�.%$#�
��3
 1 .+% 
��3
3 6$2 �
�+.0
#%0 �
3#.+7 �%�
��)
�.%$�8
9$%0
%0 
�32$. 
#�
6 8�6
.#+�� 6)
0 
�0�66
3  7
� . ����:
��3
�""�#"�$�% 
%#
.���:
#+%
%0 
$�% �%
#�
%0$�
� �#6+%$#�/

- .%$#�
�/
 �0�%
%0 
�$���. 
3$� .%#�
$�
�+%0#�$4 3
��3
3$� .% 3
%#
7�5 
��:
� . ����:
�66#;.�%$#�
.0��8 �
9$%0$�
�
�$�86 
�+�3
#�
%0 
�""�#"�$�%$#��
+"
%#
�
" �. �%
#�
%0 
%#%�6
�""�#"�$�%$#��
%#
�..#77#3�% 
#" ��%$�8
��3
�..#+�%$�8
� <+$� 7 �%�
#�
%0 
=#77$��$#�/

- .%$#�
�/

�0�%
%0$�
=#77$��$#�
�$�3�
��3
3 % �7$� �
%0�%
�66
�#�7�6
3 6$> ��%$#��
��3
�.;%$#��
#�
%0$�
=#77$��$#�
.#�. ��$�8
��3
� 6�%$�8
%#
%0 
�3#"%$#�
#�
%0$�
� �#6+;%$#�
9 � 
%�5 �
$�
#" �
7  %$�8�
#�
%0$�
=#77$��$#�/


 















































































=0�$�
!7#�#� 
?�##7 �)
=0�$�

 
 
 
 
 
 @ABCDEAD
FGHADIJK
LKJIIAIH
MD@@ANNADI


O�� .%$2 
3�% P
 Q��+��:
�)
,�,�
-+>7$%% 3
>:P
 -0�9�
R+��% 36 �)
=0$ �
*" ��%$�8
*��$. �
S� "�� 3
>:P
 -% 2 
!�7�%�#�8)
T$���. 
U$� .%#�
!+%0#�$%:P
 
 *0$#
V 2$� 3
=#3 
- .%$#�
���/,�
T#�
�.%$#�
3�% P
 U . 7> �
�,)
,�,�
!%%�.07 �%P

 ,�,�
W+38 %






MID-OHIO REGIONAL 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
2025 BUDGET



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ........................................................................... 1 
OPERATING BUDGET & SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES ... 6 
DETAIL OF MEMBER DUES..................................................................... 7 
SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS ........................................................ 8 
APPENDIX 

DETAIL SOURCES BY DEPARTMENT .........................................9-10 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING SOURCES ............................................. 11 
SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTORS ............................................. 12 
INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION BUDGET ....................................... 13 

  TABLE OF CONTENTS 



   

1 
 

2025 Operating and Capital Budget 

 
 

 
 
The MORPC 2025 operating budget is $30,436,359 an increase of $6,806,941 (28.8%) from 
2024’s budget of $23,629,418.   
 
Looking toward 2025, MORPC’s finances are strong. The agency will continue to make 
investments strategically, while also prioritizing the preservation of cash to ensure the long-term 
sustainability of its operations. With relatively high interest rates persisting, uncertainty 
continues around the national economy. However, MORPC remains optimistic – economic 
development projects in the region continue to grow, large amounts of federal funding are 
available to the region, and nationwide inflation is on the decline. This budget seeks to continue 
a balanced approach of using resources responsibly, while still targeting investments that will 
improve services for members and the region.  
 
MORPC will continue to aggressively pursue grants and contracts that will benefit its members. 
While some increases have been budgeted, a mid-year budget amendment will be completed if 
needed to adjust for new funding and programs as we move through 2025.  
 
This budget focuses on MORPC’s Strategic Framework Goals, which include: 

 Drive Investment; 
 Pay It Forward; 
 Create an Environment for Prosperity; and 
 Build Value for Our Members. 

 
MORPC is pursuing a number of initiatives to continue to advance these goals, which include 
the following:  
 
Drive Investment 

 To attract investment to the region and create opportunities for members and all of 
Central Ohio, MORPC will continue to devote more resources toward efforts in the areas 
of economic development and regional investment. This includes continued funding in 
the following positions: Economic Development Director, Regional Investment Officer, 
Economic Development Planner, Grants Coordinator, and Grants Intern. The MORPC 
team continues to implement the Economic Development District that was recognized by 
United States Economic Development Administration (USEDA) in late 2023. 

 MORPC will continue to support planning efforts around major projects, such as the Intel 
Project in Licking County. MORPC is budgeting funding received from ODOT to support 
this planning work. 

 MORPC continues to develop the Regional Water Plan and implement the process for 
208 clean water quality management planning. 

 Through LinkUS, MORPC will continue to invest in smart development to connect 
communities and create opportunities for a more equitable and sustainable region for 
everyone by helping to address growth, affordability, and opportunity gaps in Central 
Ohio.  In collaboration with the City of Columbus, Central Ohio Transit Authority, and the 
Franklin County Board of Commissioners, LinkUS will bring more Bus Rapid Transit to 
the region, create more walkable communities, expand access to opportunities, and 
more. 



2 

2025 Operating and Capital Budget 

 MORPC continues to work on multiple rail projects and stood up the Central Ohio
Passenger Rail Committee to advise and help steer passenger rail planning and
ancillary work in Central Ohio. This includes work on the collaborative effort called
Midwest Connect to connect Chicago, Fort Wayne, IN, Columbus, OH and Pittsburgh
with passenger rail service, as well as continued work on the 3C+D corridor to connect
Cleveland, Columbus, Dayton and Cincinnati.

Pay It Forward 
 MORPC will continue to enhance public service leadership and build capacity in Central

Ohio communities by training local elected officials and appointed leaders; provide
extensive member-focused forums, briefings, and special events; and connect young
leaders to public service through MORPC’s Local Government Internship Program.
MORPC continues to expand our partnership with colleges and universities in the region
to offer educational discounts to employees of all member agencies.

Create an Environment for Prosperity 
 MORPC will continue to deliver essential tools for the region to get better as it grows

bigger, including expanded research, visual tools, and proactive briefings; continued
expertise to tackle the housing challenge; and programs and tools to inform and drive
sustainability and mobility efforts.

 MORPC will implement two large electric vehicle (EV) charging projects in 2025,
including the largest grant ever received by the agency. These programs are designed to
support the maintenance and expansion of electric vehicle charging to improve access
to clean transportation and facilitate the transition to sustainable energy solutions.

Build Value for Our Members 
 In response to the challenges of growth and staffing in many of the region's local

governments, MORPC continues to develop the recently added resources for planning
assistance. This includes a staffing pool of planners available for short-term assignments
with MORPC members to assist with planning and development staffing needs. MORPC
also developed a task order consultant program to streamline the process for local
governments to engage pre-negotiated services from a network of planning and
development firms and consultants.

 MORPC will be an excellent steward of regional resources. In this budget, MORPC is
using $405,215 in funding to bolster its operating reserve, which will further strengthen
MORPC’s finances, improve financial resiliency, and support MORPC’s 60-day or more
operating reserve balance target.

 MORPC will continue to be a strong resource and collaborative forum for Central Ohio
communities. MORPC members will continue to have access to the newly renovated
space and will benefit from virtual meeting tools.

 MORPC will continue to provide a strong return on investment (ROI) for all local
government members.

The details below show some changing initiatives and new programs. Here are some notable 
highlights for 2025: 
MPO& CORPO (Jointly Funded Projects) 

 The Federal Highway Administration funds decreased to $3,393,968 in 2025 from
$4,016,119 in 2024.  This decrease was due to more carry-over funds available in 2024



3 

2025 Operating and Capital Budget 

than in 2025, primarily the result of significant turnover in 2023. This timing difference is 
expected to be balanced out by non-jointly funded project work in 2025. 

Programming and Planning 

 The increase in programming funding for 2025 can be attributed to several key factors.
FTA 5310 Enhanced Mobility Program has seen significant growth, with more funding
available in 2025 compared to 2024. This increase is primarily due to a resolution of
nationwide supply chain issues that had delayed vehicle purchases for subrecipients in
previous years. With these issues now resolved, more funds are expected to be utilized
in the upcoming year.

 In 2025, more funding is being secured through various programs, such as the Safe
Streets for All program, which provides resources for transportation safety and
infrastructure improvements.

 Funds for the newly established Economic Development District are expected to
contribute to the increased funding for programming.

 Various transportation projects include projected funding for rail and the RAISE for trail
towns.

 Planning is budgeted to increase due to 2 new grants related to Electrical Vehicle
charging.  The Charging Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) Grant will add funding of
$3,429,785 and the EV Charger Reliability and Accessibility Accelerator Program will
add an additional $1,917,611.  The projects will repair/replace, maintain, and expand EV
chargers throughout the Central Ohio region.

Residential Services 

 The 2025 budget for Residential Services (RS) shows a slight reduction in funding with
an overall reduction in Weatherization and an increase in Home Repair.  Specifically, the
HWAP budget will decrease from $4,382,032 in 2024 to $4,028,831 in 2025.  The
Columbia Gas budget also decreases from $2,095,620 in 2024 to $1,363,840 in 2025.
These decreases are due to a combination of right-sizing the budgets for contractor
costs and a decrease in eligible applicants reaching the programs.  However, there are
still efforts underway to boost efficiency and revenue generation in MORPC’s
Weatherization programs, including additional installation of funded measures by
MORPC team members.  In addition, MORPC is increasing its focus on broader home
repair and renovation efforts, including radon mitigation and lead safe programs. The
service area for these initiatives is expanding to include the City of Westerville, with
plans to continue broadening outreach to other communities.  The Home Repair budget
has received a significant increase of $847,635 raising funding from $2,102,901 in 2024
to $2,950,535 in 2025. This boost will help MORPC continue providing critical support to
families in need.

The Detailed Revenue by Department schedule, which is in the Appendix, shows additional 
detail on program fluctuations from year to year. 



4 

2025 Operating and Capital Budget 

This budget also makes investments in staffing that will increase program focused positions that 
will support the priority programs of the agency. The budget also shows a similar level of 
turnover/soft funding assumption associated with staffing based on recent turnover trends, 
which is in line with the expectations of other organizations due to the current employment 
climate. 

The fringe rate will rise to 59% of wages in 2025, which is slightly increased from 57.5% in 
2024. Additionally, the indirect cost allocation rate will lower to 61.0% of direct labor (i.e., wages 
and fringe), which was 62.5% in 2024. The net impact of these two modest changes will result in 
a near net zero change to the direct programs. 

Total 2025 sources of $30,436,359 are greater than the 2024 sources budget of $23,629,418 
with the large increases for the EV programs and additional fluctuations in some funding 
sources and programs as is typical for MORPC. 

Revenue from federal sources is budgeted to increase to $21,861,781 (or by 44%) from 
$15,210,779. Federal sources account for 72% of the operating budget. The increase can 
primarily be attributed to the Charging and Fueling Infrastructure Grant (CFI) and the Electric 
Vehicle Charger Reliability and Accessibility Accelerator Program (EV Charger) funds.  

Local and other budgeted revenue is projected to increase by 13% to $4,013,175 in 2025 from 
$3,099,673 in 2024. Housing Local Contracts is the largest increase primarily as a result of the 
new City of Westerville Home Repair program with other modest increases in Planning and 
Data related funding areas. 

Salaries and fringe benefits are budgeted to increase from $10,983,466 to $11,478,913 (or 
4.51%) as a result of new positions, across the board wage increases, some promotions/wage 
adjustments, and fringe benefit cost increases. Staff was budgeted at 95.3 FTEs in the 2024 
budget and is budgeted at 96.3 FTEs in 2025.  

MORPC will increase the amount of funding it is setting aside for its operating reserve to 
$405,215 to further strengthen MORPC’s finances, improve financial resiliency, and support 
MORPC’s 60-day or more operating reserve balance target. 

Services & Charges are higher primarily due to more being budgeted in 2025 for FTA 5310 
Enhanced Mobility Program subgrant funds. 

Subcontractors are expected to increase significantly from $6,996,347 in 2024 to $11,473,672 
due to the addition of several programs that will need to utilize subcontractors including the EV 
Charger, CFI, Lead Safe, and City of Westerville Home Repair. 

SOURCES (Funding Sources – Page 11) 

USES (Page 6) 



5 

2025 Operating and Capital Budget 

Depreciation and Amortization increased from $189,684 in 2024 to $795,559 in 2025 due to the 
implementation of a new GASB pronouncement that records amortization differently for lease 
payments in prior year budgets. The depreciation amount included within the 2025 budget (of 
approximately $186,000) is consistent with the 2024 budget amount for depreciation alone.  

The capital expenditures budget for 2025 is $97,500 down from the 2024 expense of $120,000.  
The 2025 expense is attributable to the planned purchase of a new van for Residential Services 
weatherization and other various equipment for IT and other areas. 

The total 2025 member dues budget is $1,666,760 (a 5.7% increase compared to 2024). Dues 
funding is provided by MORPC members. Revenue is increasing due to the addition of new 
members, an increase in population, and a Commission-approved increase to member dues. Of 
the 2025 budgeted amount: $405,215 of the dues are being set aside to bolster MORPC’s 
operating reserve in support of the Commission-approved 60-day operating reserve target 
(similar to the $400,000 in 2024), $21,009 is being used to cover CORPO transportation 
matching requirements (MPO transportation matching requirements are being met using other 
local funds), and $187,599 is for building lease expenses. 

Services to Members makes up the majority of the dues budget with $900,893 budgeted for 
work for members such as executive director services, proactive legislation, public policy work, 
member services coordination, and other services (including regional investment work). Member 
Dues represent approximately 5.5% of the operating sources budget. Dues are provided by 82 
participating local government members (counties, townships, municipalities, and villages) at 
annual rates set by the Commission. Finally, associate members, which includes eight 
regionally-oriented units of local government, are currently participating as members of MORPC 
at an annual rate of $1,250 each.   

The appropriations are similar to the agency operating expenses, coming in at $30,250,675 for 
2025.  

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES (Page 6) 

USE OF MEMBER DUES (Page 7) 

APPROPRIATIONS (Page 8) 



OPERATING BUDGET

SOURCES
2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

PROGRAMMING AND PLANNING
Jointly Funded Projects (MPO & CORPO) $5,020,149 $4,242,460 ($777,689)
Programming - Transportation & Infrastructure Development $5,510,619 $7,304,974 $1,794,355
Planning $1,960,613 $7,079,610 $5,118,997
Planning - Data and Mapping $336,457 $454,060 $117,603

SUBTOTAL PLANNING, DATA AND TRANSPORTATION $12,827,838 $19,081,103 $6,253,265

RESIDENTIAL SERVICES

Residential Energy Efficiency $6,537,783 $5,524,683 ($1,013,100)
Housing & Rehab Services $2,102,901 $2,950,535 $847,634
SUBTOTAL RESIDENTIAL SERVICES $8,640,684 $8,475,218 ($165,466)

MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT $1,153,431 $1,240,536 $87,105

OPERATING RESERVE $400,000 $405,215 $5,215

OTHER $607,465 $1,234,287 $626,822
TOTAL SOURCES $23,629,418 $30,436,359 $6,806,941
Detail Budgets provided on pages 9-10

USES
2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Salaries and Fringe Benefits $10,983,466 $11,478,913 $495,447
Materials and Supplies $307,517 $183,107 ($124,410)
Services - Subcontractors $6,996,347 $11,473,672 $4,477,325
Services & Charges $4,752,401 $6,099,887 $1,347,486
Additions to Operating Reserve $400,000 $405,216 $5,216
Depreciation and Amortization $189,684 $795,559 $605,875

TOTAL USES $23,629,418 $30,436,359 $6,806,940

NET CHANGE $0 $0 $0

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

SOURCES
2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Cash * $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)

TOTAL SOURCES $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)

USES 
2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Equipment, Vehicles & Other Assets $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)
Furniture & Leasehold Improvements $0 $0 $0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)
* -  Represents cash available and recoverable via grants

6



DETAIL OF MEMBER DUES

SOURCES: 2024 BUDGET
2025 BUDGET INCREASE/ 

DECREASE

RPC Member Dues ($.36 - 2024, $.38 - 2025) $948,124 $1,018,394 $70,270
MPO Member Dues ($.210 - 2024, $.215 - 2025) $410,818 $424,892 $14,074
Associate Members $10,000 $10,000 $0
Building ($.07 - 2024, $.07 - 2025) $183,036 $187,599 $4,563
CORPO Local Match ($.105 - 2024, $.110 - 2025) $24,338 $25,875 $1,537

TOTAL SOURCES $1,576,316 $1,666,760 $90,444

USES:
Transportation Match / Operating Reserve (MPO & CORPO) $422,888 $426,224 $3,336

SUBTOTAL LOCAL MATCH $422,888 $426,224 $3,336
Executive Director Services to Members $44,384 $46,172 $1,788
Proactive Legislative Activity $212,698 $229,684 $16,986
Public Policy & Multi-jurisdictional $265,265 $292,978 $27,713
Member Service Coordination $214,356 $213,648 ($708)
Annual Salary Survey $8,646 $9,070 $424
Mid-Ohio Finance Administrators (MOFA) $2,020 $2,085 $65
Other Services to Members $104,436 $107,255 $2,819

SUBTOTAL FOR SERVICES TO MEMBERS $851,805 $900,893 $49,088
Executive Director Development $43,767 $45,531 $1,764
Executive Director & Staff Travel & Registration $7,400 $14,670 $7,270
Board Travel & Registration $10,595 $12,195 $1,600
Other Development/Business Development $2,149 $4,279 $2,130

SUBTOTAL DEVELOPMENT FUND $63,911 $76,675 $12,764
Diversity, Equity & Inclusion $49,830 $50,877 $1,047
Miscellaneous $3,300 $5,919 $2,619
Contingency & Cost Overruns $1,546 $18,573 $17,027

SUBTOTAL OTHER $54,676 $75,369 $20,693
Building Lease Expense $183,036 $187,599 $4,563
SUBTOTAL BUILDING $183,036 $187,599 $4,563

TOTAL USES OF MEMBER PER-CAPITA FEES $1,576,316 $1,666,760 $90,444

7



ACCT # ACCOUNT TITLES 2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

SALARIES 
Salaries - Regular $7,870,061 $8,342,349 $472,288
Salaries - PTO and Sick Leave Payout $62,301 $10,680 ($51,621)

510000 SUBTOTAL SALARIES $7,932,362 $8,353,029 $420,667
FRINGE BENEFITS

PERS - Regular $1,072,532 $1,124,298 $51,766
PERS - PTO and Sick Leave Payout $10,679 $10,679 $0

SUBTOTAL PERS $1,083,211 $1,134,977 $51,766
Medicare Tax $111,084 $106,045 ($5,039)
Unemployment Compensation $17,100 $17,100 $0
Workers Compensation $93,949 $90,821 ($3,128)
Fringe Benefits Other (includes group $1,745,761 $1,776,941 $31,180
medical, dental, vision, life and disability)

515000 SUBTOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS $3,051,105 $3,125,884 $74,779
$10,983,466 $11,478,913 $495,446

MATERIALS, SERVICES & CHARGES 
Materials & Supplies $307,517 $183,107 ($124,410)
Services & Charges:

Subcontractors $6,996,347 $11,473,672 $4,477,325
Services and Charges $3,976,436 $5,784,857 $1,808,421
Additions to Operation Reserves $400,000 $405,215 $5,215
Rent and Utilities $704,163 $693,455 ($10,708)
Travel $71,802 $133,955 $62,153

520000

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & CHARGES & 
MATERIALS $12,456,265 $18,674,261 $6,217,996

$23,439,731 $30,153,175 $6,713,443
Capital Expenditures

Equipment, Vehicles & Other Assets $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)
Leasehold Improvements $0 $0 $0

540000 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $120,000 $97,500 ($22,500)

$23,559,731 $30,250,675 $6,690,943TOTAL

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS

8



APPENDIX



DETAIL SOURCES BY DEPARTMENT

2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

MPO & CORPO (Jointly Funded Projects)
Federal Highway Administration (MPO & CORPO) $4,016,119 $3,393,968 ($622,151)
Ohio Department of Transportation (MPO & CORPO) $502,015 $424,246 ($77,769)
MORPC Transportation Match (MPO & CORPO) $502,015 $424,246 ($77,769)
SUBTOTAL OF JOINTLY FUNDED PROJECTS $5,020,149 $4,242,460 ($777,689)
Programming - Transportation & Infrastructure Development
Infrastructure Program $200,049 $193,779 ($6,270)
Gohio $796,360 $774,519 ($21,841)
Regional Supplemental Planning $174,399 $209,594 $35,195
FTA 5310 Designated Recipient - Enhanced Mobility Programs $1,781,286 $2,731,917 $950,631
Technical Assistance $284,148 $266,968 ($17,180)
Competitive and Economic Development & Fr. Co TID $587,905 $652,106 $64,201
USEDA Grant $6,398 $293,521 $287,123
Major Growth and Economic Development $736,127 $475,000 ($261,127)
CORPO Safe Streets for All $165,061 $0 ($165,061)
Safe Streets for All $0 $663,429 $663,429
ODOT Mobility Management Planning $224,702 $235,101 $10,399
Local Forecasting/ Modeling (NUC) $50,000 $0 ($50,000)
Various Transportation & Infrastructure Development Projects (NUC) $504,181 $809,041 $304,860

SUBTOTAL PROGRAMMING - TRANSPORTATION & 
INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT $5,510,618 $7,304,973 $1,794,358
Planning
Clean Ohio $21,060 $29,031 $7,971
Regional Supplemental Planning $136,376 $138,042 $1,666
Greenways Program $217,156 $182,236 ($34,920)
Air Quality Awareness $599,520 $566,123 ($33,397)
Insight 2050 Academy $4,000 $0 ($4,000)
Ohio EPA $119,317 $0 ($119,317)
Sustaining Scioto $133,650 $141,839 $8,189
Central Ohio Greenways Wayfinding Strategy $43,410 $0 ($43,410)
Franklin County HAB and Issuer fees $20,500 $20,500 $0
USEPA Air Quality Grant $181,433 $234,633 $53,200
Climate Pollution Reduction Grant $70,818 $54,358 ($16,460)
American Farmland Trust $14,086 $0 ($14,086)
Electric Vehicle (EV) Charger Reliability and Accessibility Accelerator $0 $1,917,611 $1,917,611
Charging and Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) $0 $3,429,785 $3,429,785
Various Planning Projects (NUC) $399,289 $365,452 ($33,837)
SUBTOTAL PLANNING $1,960,613 $7,079,610 $5,118,995
Planning - Data & Mapping
Regional Supplemental Planning $94,692 $90,296 ($4,396)
Various Data & Mapping Projects - Local $50,015 $68,570 $18,555
Various Data & Mapping Projects (NUC) $191,750 $295,193 $103,443
SUBTOTAL PLANNING - DATA & MAPPING $336,457 $454,060 $117,603
TOTAL PROGRAMMING AND PLANNING $12,827,838 $19,081,103 $6,253,266
NUC = Not Under Contract

9



DETAIL SOURCES BY DEPARTMENT

RESIDENTIAL SERVICES 2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Energy Efficiency
Columbia Gas WarmChoice $2,095,620 $1,363,840 ($731,780)
Home Weatherization Assistance Program $1,389,644 $628,814 ($760,830)
Home Weatherization Assistance Enhancement Program $455,048 $273,531 ($181,517)
GLS Home Weatherization Assistance Program $834,638 $1,041,973 $207,335
GLS Home Weatherization Assistance Enhancment Program $322,449 $424,517 $102,068
HWAP Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) $588,029 $676,841 $88,812
GLS HWAP Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) $792,224 $983,155 $190,931
WDBCO Workforce Wx Training NUC $8,000 $0 ($8,000)
Potential Weatherization Funding (NUC) $52,130 $132,012 $79,882

SUBTOTAL ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES $6,537,783 $5,524,683 ($1,013,099)
Residential Programs
FC Home Repair Program $932,661 $506,930 ($425,731)
Franklin County HAB Applications $10,000 $10,000 $0
COCIC Home Repair $100,379 $0 ($100,379)
Ohio Dept. of Health Lead-Safe Home Fund Contract $247,365 $263,838 $16,473
Healthy Homes Production Program (HHPP) Grant $600,876 $629,476 $28,600
Ohio Department of Development Lead Safe Progam $0 $899,505 $899,505
City of Westerville Home Repair Program $0 $483,047 $483,047
Affordable Housing Trust $33,077 $50,597 $17,520
Renew Homes $16,576 $0 ($16,576)
Various Rehab Projects (NUC) $161,966 $107,142 ($54,824)

SUBTOTAL RESIDENTIAL PROGRAMS $2,102,901 $2,950,535 $847,635
TOTAL FOR RESIDENTIAL & ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES $8,640,683 $8,475,218 ($165,464)
NUC = Not Under Contract

MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT 2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Services to Members $851,808 $957,688 $105,880
Development Fund $63,911 $76,675 $12,764
Building Lease Payments $183,036 $187,599 $4,563
Other $54,676 $18,573 ($36,103)

TOTAL MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT (See Dues Page for 
Details) $1,153,432 $1,240,536 $87,105

OTHER 2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Local Government Internship Program - Administrative $25,779 $90,570 $64,791
State of the Region Luncheon $122,463 $160,078 $37,615
Summit On Sustainability $123,782 $136,711 $12,929
Operating Reserve $400,000 $405,215 $5,215
Other $110,467 $109,973 ($494)
Interest $42,800 $98,354 $55,554
Building Depreciation $156,006 $165,293 $9,287
Indirect Costs Variance (carryforward from prior years) $46,957 $325,239 $278,282
Fringe Benefits Variance (carryforward from prior years) ($20,789) $148,070 $168,859

TOTAL OTHER $1,007,465 $1,639,502 $632,037

GRAND TOTAL $23,629,418 $30,436,359 $6,806,944

10



SCHEDULE OF FUNDING SOURCES

FUNDING SOURCES 2024 BUDGET 2025 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

MEMBER DUES $1,576,319 $1,666,761 $90,442

$4,016,119 $3,393,968 ($622,151)
$4,737,818 $5,153,445 $415,627

$987,797 $506,930 ($480,867)
$4,382,033 $4,042,641 ($339,392)

$199,992 $0 ($199,992)
$6,398 $223,521 $217,123

$70,818 $54,358 ($16,460)
$14,086 $0 ($14,086)
$13,410 $0 ($13,410)

$181,433 $234,633 $53,200
$600,876 $629,476 $28,600

$0 $1,917,611 $1,917,611
$0 $3,429,785 $3,429,785
$0 $663,429 $663,429
$0 $899,505 $899,505

FEDERAL FUNDING
Federal Highway Administration (MPO & CORPO)
FTA/Other FHWA 
FC Home Repair Program - CDBG
Home Weatherization Assistance Program - ODOD
Brownfields Grant NUC
USEDA Grant
Climate Polution Reduction Grant -USEPA
American Farmland Trust
Central Ohio Greenways Wayfinding Strategy
USEPA AQ Grant
Healthy Homes Production Program (HHPP) Grant - HUD
Electric Vehicle Charger Reliability & Accessibility Accelerator FHWA  
Charging and Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) - FHWA
Safe Streets For All - FHWA
Ohio Department of Development Lead Safe Program - ARPA
Other Federal Funding NUC $0 $712,480 $712,480

SUBTOTAL FEDERAL FUNDING $15,210,779 $21,861,781 $6,651,001
STATE FUNDING
Ohio Department of Transportation (MPO & CORPO funding) $502,015 $424,246 ($77,769)
Ohio Public Works Commission (Infrastructure/Clean Ohio) $77,549 $88,966 $11,417
Ohio EPA Funding $119,317 $0 ($119,317)
Ohio Dept. of Health Lead-Safe Home Fund Contract $247,365 $263,838 $16,473
Other State Funding $545,841 $56,520 ($489,321)

SUBTOTAL STATE FUNDING $1,492,087 $833,570 ($658,517)
UTILITIES $2,095,620 $1,482,042 ($613,578)
FOUNDATION/CORPORATE FUNDING $128,772 $105,721 ($23,051)
LOCAL & OTHER FUNDING
Infrastructure Program & Clean Ohio $143,560 $133,844 ($9,716)
Summit on Sustainability $123,782 $136,711 $12,929
Housing Local Contracts $116,956 $600,189 $483,233
Transportation & Infrastructure Local Funds $1,163,451 $1,187,651 $24,200
Planning - Data & Mapping Local Funds $346,247 $463,329 $117,082
Planning Local Funds $428,876 $614,948 $186,072
Greenways Local Program $217,156 $182,236 ($34,920)
State of the Region $122,463 $160,078 $37,615
Local Government Internship Program $25,779 $90,570 $64,791
Other $368,603 $345,266 ($23,337)
Interest $42,800 $98,354 $55,554

SUBTOTAL LOCAL & OTHER FUNDING $3,099,673 $4,013,175 $913,502
Interperiod Indirect Receivable/(Reserve) $46,957 $325,239 $278,282
Interperiod Fringe Benefits Receivable/(Reserve) ($20,789) $148,070 $168,859

TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES $23,629,418 $30,436,359 $6,806,941
NUC = Not Under Contract

11



SUBCONTRACTORS BY DEPARTMENT

2024 
BUDGET

2025 
BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

PROGRAMMING - TRANSPORTATION

Major Growth and Economic Development $650,000 $475,000 ($175,000)

Safe Streets for All $0 $800,000 $800,000
Other/Local Transportation Projects (NUC) $239,926 $376,028 $136,102

SUBTOTAL  PROGRAMMING - TRANSPORTATION $889,926 $1,651,028 $761,102
PLANNING & DATA

Air Quality Awareness $80,841 $81,780 $939

Central Ohio Greenways Wayfinding Strategy $13,410 $0 ($13,410)

USEPA Air Quality Grant (NUC) $82,000 $104,366 $22,366

Natural Asset Mapping $12,500 $0 ($12,500)

Electric Vehicle (EV) Charger Reliability and Accessibility Accelerator $0 $1,700,000 $1,700,000

Charging and Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) $0 $3,000,000 $3,000,000
Other Misc./Local Transportation Projects (NUC) $226,305 $0 ($226,305)

SUBTOTAL PLANNING $415,056 $4,886,146 $4,471,090
RESIDENTIAL & ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES

Columbia Gas Warmchoice $1,416,786 $831,858 ($584,928)

Home Weatherization Assistance Program $467,388 $253,321 ($214,067)

Home Weatherization Assistance Enhancement Program $317,990 $210,412 ($107,578)

GLS Weatherization Assistance Program $529,958 $519,918 ($10,040)

GLS Weatherization Assistance Enhancement Program $241,744 $314,043 $72,299

HWAP Readiness $48,741 $48,741 $0

GLS Readiness $21,122 $42,243 $21,121

HWAP BIL $575,901 $359,738 ($216,163)

GLS BIL $792,224 $565,882 ($226,342)

Franklin County Urgent Repair Program $626,000 $408,000 ($218,000)

COCIC Home Repair for Wx Deferrals NUC $80,000 $0 ($80,000)

Ohio Dept. of Health Lead-Safe Home Fund Contract $151,000 $138,202 ($12,798)

Healthy Homes Production Program (HHPP) Grant $311,114 $311,115 $1

Affordable Housing Trust $26,397 $39,845 $13,448

Renew Homes Inspections and Intake Support $10,000 $0 ($10,000)

Ohio Department of Development Lead Safe Program $0 $520,830 $520,830

City of Westerville Home Repair $0 $372,350 $372,350
Weatherization & Housing (NUC) $75,000 $0 ($75,000)

SUBTOTAL RESIDENTIAL & ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES $5,691,365 $4,936,498 ($754,867)

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR EXPENSES $6,996,347 $11,473,672 $4,477,325
NUC - Not Under Contract

SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTORS

12



DIRECT TOTAL INDIRECT
LABOR COST

& FRINGES ALLOCATION
Transportation & Infrastructure $2,855,206 $1,741,676
Planning & Sustainability $1,884,896 $1,149,787
Data & Mapping $1,217,316 $742,563
Residential Services $1,885,193 $1,149,968
Member Dues $511,046 $311,738
Other Grants & Programs $111,743 $68,163
Less:  Estimated Turnover & Soft Funding ($553,589) ($337,693)

TOTAL GRANTS & PROGRAMS $7,911,812 $4,826,201
Indirect Labor & Fringes
Information & Technology Services $604,468
Finance  $785,533
Communications & Engagement $441,115
Executive Management $711,521
Human Resources & Facility $521,999
Contract & Proposal Development, Other Indirect Labor $98,371
Less:  Estimated Turnover & Soft Funding ($120,578)

TOTAL INDIRECT LABOR $3,042,429
General Overhead Expenses
Materials & Supplies $44,260
Services & Charges $889,154
Rent & Utilities $492,374
Other General Overhead $27,744

TOTAL GENERAL OVERHEAD $1,453,532
Retention/Severance $5,000

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS $4,500,961

ACTUAL INDIRECT RATES 56.89%
Carry Forward Balance as of 12/31/23 $325,239

ALLOCATED INDIRECT COSTS $4,826,201

ALLOCATED INDIRECT COSTS RATES 61.00%

INDIRECT GENERAL 
LABOR & FRINGES OVERHEAD TOTAL

Information & Technology Services $604,468 $263,687 $868,155
Human Resources $414,353 $180,707 $595,061
Facility $107,646 $557,226 $664,872
Retention/Severance $0 $5,000 $5,000
Finance  $785,533 $284,919 $1,070,452
Communications & Engagement $441,115 $88,413 $529,528
Executive Management $711,521 $6,340 $717,861
Contract & Proposal Development, Other Indirect Labor $98,371 $72,240 $170,611
Less:  Estimated Turnover & Soft Funding ($120,578) $0 ($120,578)

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS $3,042,429 $1,458,532 $4,500,961

Indirect Cost Allocation Budget
January 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025

13



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
111 Liberty St. Suite 100
Columbus, Ohio 43215

P. 614.228.2663
 info@morpc.org | www.morpc.org



��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� T=G?U<�VBOO8LWX�Y?A8=O�Z8O?JL=O�=N�V=M?OAF?AL�[NNB8OG�BA9�E=FFKA8LW�>?CBL8=AG��\]4̂ 6� _=M?FQ?O�̀aX�̀b̀c��defĝh46� DO=U=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�ij:̀ck�lmnopqros�ot�uvwxyz{�|}|~�������3������.�����]�,120���DC?BG?�N8A9�BLLBJ<?9�>?G=CKL8=A�ij:̀cX�B9=UL8A@�L<?�̀b̀�:̀b̀��DKQC8J�D=C8JW�[@?A9B���<8G������������������������� ��¡��¢���¡�¢��£�¤�¥��¤�£�¡����������¦����§�������̈���������©�[���¦¢��������¦������ ��@=BCGX�MBCK?GX�BA9�JKOO?AL�ª=O«X�8L�ª8CC�Q?�KL8C8¬?9�QW�7;>DE�GLBNN�L=�@K89?�B9M=JBJW�Q?N=O?�L<?�GLBL?�BA9�N?9?OBC�@=M?OAF?ALG����<?�DKQC8J�D=C8JW�[@?A9B�ªBG�N=OKFKCBL?9�QW�B�ª=O«8A@�@O=KU�=N�7;>DE�F?FQ?OG�BA9�J=FFKA8LW�C?B9?OGX�BA9�BUUO=M?9�QW�L<?�>?@8=ABC�D=C8JW�>=KA9LBQC?�=A�_=M?FQ?O�̀iX�̀b̀c����<?�DKQC8J�D=C8JW�[@?A9B�DD[®�̄=O«8A@�VO=KU�ªBG�J<B8O?9�QW�L<?�>?@8=ABC�D=C8JW�>=KA9LBQC?�°8J?�E<B8OX�7BW=O�YC=BA�YUBC98A@�_?ª�[CQBAW®���<?�DD[�̄=O«8A@�VO=KU�ªBG�J=FUO8G?9�=N�B�98M?OG?�@O=KU�=N�C=JBC�QKG8A?GGX�A=A:UO=N8LX�BA9�@=M?OAF?AL�C?B9?OGX�FBAW�=N�ª<=F�BO?�7;>DE�J=FF8GG8=A�F?FQ?OGX�NO=F�OKOBCX�KOQBAX�BA9�GKQKOQBA�J=FFKA8L8?G�BA9�O?UO?G?AL8A@�B�MBO8?LW�=N�U=C8L8JBC�U?OGU?JL8M?G���<?�̄=O«8A@�VO=KU�F?L�=A�L<O??�=JJBG8=AG�Q?Lª??A�[K@KGL�BA9�;JL=Q?O�b̀̀c����<?�>?@8=ABC�D=C8JW�>=KA9LBQC?�O?J=FF?A9G�UBGGB@?�=N�>?G=CKL8=A�ij:̀c�BL�L<?�Z?J?FQ?O�ì�E=FF8GG8=A�F??L8A@�L=�BCC=ª�N=O�UKQC8J�J8OJKCBL8=A�BL�L<?�Q?@8AA8A@�=N�L<?�A?ª�±�Y��E=A@O?GG�BA9�;<8=�V?A?OBC�[GG?FQCW�8A�²i�̀b̀����[LLBJ<F?ALk�>?G=CKL8=A�ij:̀c���



 

RESOLUTION 18-24 
 

“Adoption of MORPC’s 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda” 
 
WHEREAS, members of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) Board, the  
Regional Policy Roundtable, and the Public Policy Agenda Working Group collaborated to create a 
robust, inclusive, and forward thinking 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda; and 
 
WHEREAS, it describes MORPC’s leading and collaborative policy initiatives for the years 2025 and 
2026, which directly relate to its mission, goals, and objectives; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda provides a framework to advocate for policies that 
promote regionalism, enhance Central Ohio’s transportation system, promote sustainability, and expand 
prosperity and opportunity in our growing region; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda provides direction to MORPC members and staff in 
order to act in concert with those initiatives; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda encourages a collaborative approach to public policy 
advocacy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda was designed to reflect the Central Ohio region and 
address important public policy issues and legislation that occur throughout the legislative session; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda will help MORPC lead in local, state, and federal policy 
matters; now therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 
 
Section 1. That it supports and adopts the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda.   
 
Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall deem 
necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 
Section 3.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions of 

this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken in 
open meetings of this Commission 

 
 
 

                                                                                
Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Effective date: December 12, 2024 
Submitted by:  Lourdes Barroso de Padilla, Regional Policy Roundtable Chair 
Prepared by:  Joseph Garrity, Senior Director of Government Affairs and Community Relations 
Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 
For action date: December 12, 2024 
Attachment:  2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda 



������������	�
������������������������
������	����������������������������������������� ����!�"#$%&'(()*+,-.+.#/�0)*�1#2./1$+.3#�$-%�(,41.5�()1.56�1#$%#*/7.(�0*)8�9':;<��=����>����������!?�����?������������!?�������������@�!����@�����������������!���������?��������������������?�������A��!A����	�����������������������!����!��	���!����������?������B����������������!�������!�����!C�D�
������������A������!��������!������������?A�B��������������?��!������������������	@��������@����������������C�D���AA����A������!������B����A�������������������B��������!�������A��������������B���������!�B������������C��D����?�������������������������?�����������	���������������������?A���������E�����	��������@������?��@��������?	��������������C���D���AA���������������!�������F�A������!������A��?��������!��������?������B�������!��������������	����A������������������������?���!������!C�D�
�����������������!�!��������G!� �����=����?������C�D��AA�!������!�����������B�������!������������?������!����?��	���??���	C�D�
����������H�����I��!�?���!������	��	�������	������!�AA������!���������A��J���!����������AA��������!�����������������������������!����!C��D����?����A������!@�A�����?!@�������������?������������B����������K!��������������!��������C�D�L������������!���������������B!����������������?��!���������A������?�����!���������	������������!������C���D���AA��������!�������������������!������������?��!�����!���B����?!������������	�������??�������!@���������������!@��������!@������������������!������������A������A������������������������?�C�D�
������������A������!@��������!@��������������������!�������������K!�!�AA�	����E�����	����!�����������	A�!�����������A����������!C�D����!������������!�AA��������������������??���	���!������A��J���!����!���������!�������������������������D�
������������A������!��������!�����������!�AA������������!�B������B�����������������C�D���AA����A������!��������!���������?������������!��!�AA�	����!�!������������	�D���AA����A������!������!�����!������A��?�����A����������!�������M����@�A�����������!������	����A������@�A��!���@���������B�!��!�!����������?����@�������������������	���!������	���A��������!���������������?��!C��



�����������	
�������������������
���
������������������
����������������������
�������������������
�����������
����
�
����������������	�������������������	����
���������������
���
�������������������������	��
�����������
���������
�
������������
���
��
������������� �������!�	
�
����������
���������
���������
������������������������������
���	�������
����"
������#	�$���
���
������������������	
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!������
��������������
�������������������������������
���	��������
����
��
���������
���������
����������������
����������������	��
�������
���������
����������������������
������������%
������������&�%'���(")*�� ��
���"���
������������
��
����������������	����	����#	�����!������
���������
�����������������	
���
�����
���	������������	
������������
�����
����������
��
��������"
������#	������������	
�
������	�
���������#���
����+���
��
��,�����	���	
�#	��,���*
�
����
���"�������������
��
��	�����	
� ��
���-��
�����
�+���
��
��,���"�������������+����
�����
���������������������
�.�����������
��	����	�
/����
�������������������������������������
������������0
���������
���������������������������������
������������&�%'����#1-#�"�����
�������������������������������

%��
���
�
��
��
�	����������������������������	
������������
�������
�
�����
�
�������+�
�
��
�����������
������
��
������	
�-������������
�-��
���
�������2����!���3--2!4���������������������������
/����������--2!�����������������
�������
����������������
���	��0������
�����������+�����
����
��
������
������
�
�����������������
������������
���������������������������������0�����������	
���
�������������	����������������������������������������!�����
��	
�������������������"
������#	����������������
���
���������������������
�����������������������	
����
�	�������
����������������������������
���	����
��������������
������������������
�������������5����6
���
������������	
����
�����
��!������	�����������������
��
�������������7�������������-�����
�
���*�������37-*�4���"
������#	��������������
����
���
��������������������
�����
���������������
������������������8
���������
�
���
�����
������
�
��������������+����
�����
����������������������
��	
����������,!+-*�9������	
�"
������#	����

����������:��
����������
�
�������
�
�����������
���
�����
��
������
����������������
����%������������!������
������
����������
���	�����
���
�"
������#	���������
���������������������������������
������������
��
�	���������
���
��������������������
�����������������
���
�����
/�������
����
�
������
	��
�������	������������������
�����������������
�������
������
������������0
���
�������
	��
���������
���



���������	
�������������	�
	��
	
�����������
��	���
�������������������
������	����	������
�	���
�������������������
��
	��������������������������������������
�	���
������������������������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������
	�������	��������������������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������
�����������������
�!����������������������������������������������������
��������
�����	���������	����������������������
��������������������������������������"������������������#	�������������
��������������
�����������	����� ��
	�������

���������������������
�����$������%������
����
�������������������	������������
��������������
��������
���������������������������������&	���������&	����������	����������
�	���
�����������	����!�����������!
�����������
�
�����
	��������� �
�����������������������������������	����������������������������������
�	�����������������������	����������	������������������������������
�
������	�����������������������������
�����	���������������������	������������������������������
����
�������	�����
����'����������������������������������������������(������	����
�����

�
�����������������������������������������
��������������)�����	
�������������������������������	����������
��������������
��	��	�������������������&	��������������������������������	���	�����������*
��	�������	��������	����
�����	�
	���	��������������
������������������ �
�������
��	���������)�����������
�������
�������������	��	�����������������
������������+�����
����������%�����	�����,��������������
����������������	�������
�����������������������	����
�������������
��������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������-�����������

����.���������	����
��������������
�	���
����������
������������
�
���
������������������
�����������������(�������	����
�������������������������
������������������
�����	���������������
�
�������	�������	���������������
������
�
���
����������������
����
�����������)���	�
�����/��	�����������������������	����
�����
����������
�������)���������	����
������
	��������������������	
�������!������������	����
����/��	�����������������������������������

������&	��������	
��������	�������������
���������)���������������
�������
�������
���������
��
����	��������������������	�������������
��������
����������
	������������������������������������
���������
���



�����������	
	������������	���	�����	��	����	����������	����	����
������	�������������		��� �!"�	#$%$&�'!$ (	)	*+�!�($	,	+�-./(	, 0	" �&./"%$	+$1"� ,&	$�� �!2	, 0	,�("%$&2	��&&,-�+,($	3"(4	$�� �!"�	0$%$&�'!$ (	, 0	-./" $//	�+1, "5,("� /6	 � 7'+�8"(/6	. "%$+/"("$/6	, 0	&��,&	1�%$+ !$ (/9		)	:("&"5$	;<=*>?/	>�!'+$4$ /"%$	��� �!"�	#$%$&�'!$ (	@(+,($12	(�	-$(($+	&$%$+,1$	" %�&%$!$ (	�8	(4$	'.-&"�6	'+"%,($6	, 0	 � 7'+�8"(	/$�(�+/6	, 0	,0%��,($	8�+	8. 0" 1	, 0	'�&"�"$/	(�	,0%, �$	&��,&	$�� �!"�	0$%$&�'!$ (	" ($+$/(/9		)	@.''�+(	"!'+�%$0	 ,("� ,&	, 0	/(,($	'�&"�"$/	, 0	 $3	8. 0" 1	(�	,0%, �$	$�� �!"�	0$%$&�'!$ (9			)	A0%��,($	8�+	(4$	��� �!"�	#$%$&�'!$ (	=$,.(4�+"5,("� 	A�(6	34"�4	3"&&	-."&0	&��,&	$�� �!"�	0$%$&�'!$ (	�,',�"(26	/.''�+(" 1	&��,&	'+�B$�(	'+$0$%$&�'!$ (	,�("%"("$/6	, 0	" �+$,/$	+$/�.+�$/	,%,"&,-&$	8�+	'&,  " 1	, 0	($�4 "�,&	,//"/(, �$9	)	C$	,	�+"("�,&	',+( $+	(�	< $	>�&.!-./D	%"/"� 	(�	!,E$	>$ (+,&	<4"�	(4$	!�/(	'+�/'$+�./	+$1"� 	" 	(4$	��. (+29			)	A0%, �$	B�-7,((+,�("� 	, 0	+$($ ("� 	" �$ ("%$/6	 $3	(��&/6	, 0	/(+,($1"$/	(�	$ ��.+,1$	 $3	B�-/	, 0	" %$/(!$ (	(4,(	-$ $8"(	(4$	+$1"� 9	)	>�&&,-�+,($	3"(4	',+( $+/	" 	$0.�,("� 6	&,-�+6	, 0	(4$	'+"%,($	/$�(�+	(�	0$%$&�'	,	!�+$	/E"&&$0	, 0	0"%$+/$	3�+E8�+�$	(�	+$,0"&2	!$$(	(4$	 $$0/	�8	>$ (+,&	<4"�	-./" $//$/6	+$0.�$	3�+E8�+�$	/4�+(,1$/6	, 0	$F', 0	.'3,+0	!�-"&"(2	" (�	G.,&"(2	�,+$$+/9	@./(," ,-&$	H+�3(4	)	*+�!�($	$88"�"$ (	, 0	$88$�("%$	./$	, 0	!, ,1$!$ (	�8	3,/($	/(+$,!/	(4+�.14	0"%$+/"� 6	+$./$6	, 0	+$�2�&" 1	'+�1+,!/9	)	A0%��,($	8�+	"  �%,("%$	&, 07./$	+$1.&,("� /	, 0	'&,  " 1	(��&/	,/	,	3,2	(�I	'+�!�($	/./(," ,-&$	0$%$&�'!$ (J	!," (," 	, 0	+$./$	$F"/(" 1	4�./" 1	, 0	��!!$+�",&	-."&0" 1/J	�� /$+%$	$ %"+� !$ (,&&2	/$ /"("%$	,+$,/J	$ ��.+,1$	8,+!&, 0	'+$/$+%,("� J	+$0.�$	$ $+12	�� /.!'("� J	'+�%"0$	(+, /'�+(,("� 	,&($+ ,("%$/J	, 0	'+�!�($	$88$�("%$	!,($+",&	!, ,1$!$ (9	)	A0%��,($	8�+	'�&"�"$/	, 0	8. 0" 1	(4,(	/.''�+(	,	-+�,0	/'$�(+.!	�8	4�./" 1	�'("� /	K	" 	,&"1 !$ (	3"(4	(4$	=$1"� ,&	L�./" 1	@(+,($12	, 0	M" E:@K	(�	!$$(	(4$	+$1"� D/	1+�3" 1	+$/"0$ (",&	, 0	3�+E8�+�$	 $$0/9		)	@.''�+(	'�&"�"$/	, 0	" �$ ("%$/	(4,(	&$%$+,1$	$F"/(" 1	" 8+,/(+.�(.+$	, 0	$ ��.+,1$	+$0$%$&�'!$ (	, 0	+$" %$/(!$ (	" 	>$ (+,&	<4"�D/	 $"14-�+4��0/	, 0	��!!$+�",&	0"/(+"�(/9	#+"%$	N %$/(!$ (	)	@.''�+(	8$0$+,&	8. 0" 1	8�+	0$8$ /$	" /(,&&,("� /6	!"//"� /6	+$/$,+�46	, 0	�(4$+	" "(",("%$/	(4,(	-$ $8"(	>$ (+,&	<4"�9	)	*,+("�"',($	" 	��,&"("� /	, 0	',+( $+/4"'/	8�+	;<=*>	&��,&	1�%$+ !$ (	!$!-$+/	(�	. 0$+/(, 06	$ 1,1$6	, 0	-$(($+	'�/"("� 	(4$!/$&%$/	8�+	8$0$+,&	, 0	/(,($	8. 0" 1	(4+�.14	,''+�'+",("� /6	,.(4�+"5,("� /6	-"&&/6	1+, (/6	, 0	�(4$+	�''�+(. "("$/9	



��������	
������
	����������
�����������
�	
����
�����������	������
�	����������	�
��
�
������������	��������
�����������	�� !������������
���
�	�����

"��������		���	�����	�����
�
������
�	�
�	������	��	
��	��	�#����
���������
��
�����������	���	��
$�������������#	�$��������	��	
���%&��
�	�������
�	���������
�������



��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� T?GG8JB�UK?AVC8�E<8?N�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�;NN8J?O�W�X?A8=O�Y8O?JL=O�=N�DCBAA8A@��Z[4\6� ]=M?FQ?O�̂_̀�̂âb��cdef\g46� DO=h=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�̂i:̂bj�k[3lm./non1p�lm,�,q,r3lns,�2n/,rl./�l.�,1l,/�n1l.�01�0p/,,-,1l�tnlm�Znul/nrl�vw�x0l3/0y�S,u.3/r,u�[uunul01r,�g.31rny�zxS[g{�l.�u,/s,�0u�lm,�yn0nu.1�|./�lm,�gy,01�5mn.�}/,,1�c~0r,�g.1u,/s0ln.1��/.p/0-����<?�789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A��7;>DE��JKOO?ALC��B9F8A8GL?OG�L<?�EC?BA�;<8=��O??A�XhBJ?�E=AG?OMBL8=A�DO=@OBF�N=O�Y8GLO8JL��̀�J=M?O8A@��OBA�C8A�E=KAL�������������������������L=�BJ�K8O?�=h?A�GhBJ?̀�hO=L?JL�BA9�?A<BAJ?�O8hBO8BA�J=OO89=OG�BA9�hO=L?JL�J=AG?OMBL8=A�hO=h?OL8?G�8A�h?Oh?LK8L����A�L<8G�JBhBJ8L�̀�7;>DE�GLBNN�G?OM?G�BG�L<?�=NN8J8BC�C8B8G=A�L=�L<?�;<8=�DKQC8J��=O�G�E=FF8GG8=À��=O�8A@�KA9?O�L<?�@K89BAJ?�=N�L<?�]BLKOBC�>?G=KOJ?G��GG8GLBAJ?�E=KAJ8C��]>�E����7;>DE�<BG�Q??A�BG�?9�L=�J=AG89?O�?IhBA98A@�8LG�O=C?�L=�G?OM?�BG�L<?�C8B8G=A�N=O�Y8GLO8JL�i�̀��<8J<�?AJ=FhBGG?G��B8ON8?C9̀��8J�8A@̀�UA=Ì�7=OO=�̀�D8J�B�B�̀�BA9�Y?CB�BO?�E=KAL8?G���<?O?�8G�JKOO?ALC��B�MBJBAJ��N=O�L<?�C8B8G=A�O=C?�N=O�L<8G�98GLO8JL��X<=KC9�7;>DE�BGGKF?�L<8G�O?Gh=AG8Q8C8L�̀�L<?�O=C?��=KC9�Q?@8A�8A�TBAKBO��̂â���8L<�B�L=LBC�QK9@?L�=N� i�̀�aa�L<O=K@<�7BOJ<�=N�̂â¡�BCC=JBL?9�N=O�B9F8A8GLOBL8M?�J=GLG��7;>DE�BCG=�O?G?OM?G�L<?�O8@<L�L=�BGG?GG�BhhC8JBALG�B�M=CKALBO��N??�=N�Kh�L=�=A?�h?OJ?AL�h?O�BhhO=M?9�hO=¢?JL��U?��O?Gh=AG8Q8C8L8?G��=KC9�8AJCK9?�hCBAA8A@�BA9�<=GL8A@�]>�E�F??L8A@G̀�?AGKO8A@�J=FhC8BAJ?��8L<�hO=@OBF�O?�K8O?F?ALG̀�hO=J?GG8A@�BhhC8JBL8=AG̀�BA9�NBJ8C8LBL8A@�L<?�G?C?JL8=A�=N�hO=¢?JLG�N=O�B�BO9G������LLBJ<F?ALj�>?G=CKL8=A�̂i:̂b��



���������	
����

������������
���
���������
��������
��
�����
����
��
����� ���
!���
"�#�����
$%
&�����'
(�#�����#
�##�#�����
)�����'
*&(�)+
��
#����
�#
���
'���#��
,��
���
)'���
-���
.����
/0���
)��#��������
1����� 2

34���5�6
789
:;<�8;=
�9>;=?@A
BA@??;?>
C=DD;EE;=?
F:��BCG
HIJJ9?7AK
@<D;?;E79JE
789
CA9@?
�8;=
LJ99?
�M@H9
C=?E9JN@7;=?
BJ=>J@D
O=J
P;E7J;H7
Q6
H=N9J;?>
RJ@?SA;?
C=I?7K6
@?<
E9JN9E
@E
789
=OO;H;@A
A;@;E=?
7=
789
�8;=
BITA;H
3=JSE
C=DD;EE;=?
I?<9J
789
>I;<@?H9
=O
789
	@7IJ@A
�9E=IJH9E
5EE;E7@?H9
C=I?H;AU
@?<



34���5�6
789
>=@A
=O
789
MJ=>J@D
;E
7=
@HVI;J9
=M9?
EM@H96
MJ=79H7
@?<
9?8@?H9
J;M@J;@?
H=JJ;<=JE
@?<
MJ=79H7
H=?E9JN@7;=?
MJ=M9J7;9E
;?
M9JM97I;7KU
@?<


34���5�6
:��BC
8@E
T99?
@ES9<
7=
H=?E;<9J
9WM@?<;?>
;7E
J=A9
7=
E9JN9
@E
789
A;@;E=?
O=J
P;E7J;H7
�X
T9>;??;?>
;?
Y@?I@JK
�Z�[6
\8;H8
9?H=DM@EE9E
R@;JO;9A<6
�;HS;?>6
]?=W6
:=JJ=\6
B;HS@\@K6
@?<
P9A@\@J9
C=I?7;9EU
@?<


34���5�6
S9K
J9EM=?E;T;A;7;9E
\=IA<
;?HAI<9
MA@??;?>
@?<
8=E7;?>
	�5C
D997;?>E6
9?EIJ;?>
H=DMA;@?H9
\;78
MJ=>J@D
J9VI;J9D9?7E6
MJ=H9EE;?>
@MMA;H@7;=?E6
@?<
O@H;A;7@7;?>
789
E9A9H7;=?
=O
MJ=̂9H7E
O=J
@\@J<U
?=\
789J9O=J9

_�
��
�����̀�P
_a
�4�
bc"d-ec-
(f.c-&�g
1g�&&c&.
)-bbc//c-&h

�9H7;=?
�i
 �8@7
789
9W9HI7;N9
<;J9H7=J
;E
@I78=J;j9<
7=
9?79J
;?7=
@?
@>J99D9?7
\;78
P;E7J;H7
�X
78J=I>8
:@JH8
�Z�k
\;78
l�X6[ZZ
@AA=H@79<
O=J
@<D;?;E7J@7;N9
H=E7Ei
:��BC
@AE=
J9E9JN9E
789
J;>87
7=
@EE9EE
@MMA;H@?7E
@
N=AI?7@JK
O99
=O
IM
7=
=?9
M9JH9?7
M9J
@MMJ=N9<
MJ=̂9H7i


�9H7;=?
�i
 �8@7
789
9W9HI7;N9
<;J9H7=J
;E
@I78=J;j9<
7=
@MMJ=N9
=?9
=J
D=J9
9W79?E;=?E
O=J
M9JO=JD@?H9
=O
E9JN;H9E
I?<9J
789
O=J9>=;?>
@>J99D9?7E
@?<
H8@?>9
=J<9JE
O=J
@D=I?7E
IM
7=
789
O;?@?H;@A
@I78=J;j@7;=?
A9N9AE
;?
789
:��BC
TKA@\E
\;78=I7
OIJ789J
@I78=J;j@7;=?
OJ=D
78;E
C=DD;EE;=?i


�9H7;=?
Qi
 �8@7
789
9W9HI7;N9
<;J9H7=J
;E
@I78=J;j9<
7=
7@S9
EIH8
=789J
@H7;=?
@?<
9W9HI79
@?<
<9A;N9J
EIH8
=789J
<=HID9?7E
@E6
@H7;?>
\;78
789
@<N;H9
=O
A9>@A
H=I?E9A6
89
E8@AA
<99D
?9H9EE@JK
@?<
@MMJ=MJ;@79
7=
H@JJK
=I7
789
;?79?7
=O
78;E
J9E=AI7;=?i

�9H7;=?
�i

�8@7
78;E
C=DD;EE;=?
O;?<E
@?<
<979JD;?9E
78@7
@AA
O=JD@A
<9A;T9J@7;=?E
@?<
@H7;=?E
=O
78;E
C=DD;EE;=?
H=?H9J?;?>
@?<
J9A@7;?>
7=
789
@<=M7;=?
=O
78;E
J9E=AI7;=?
\9J9
7@S9?
;?
=M9?
D997;?>E
=O
78;E
C=DD;EE;=?i


 















































































C8J;E
5D=J=E9
LJ==D9E6
C8@;J

 
 
 
 
 
 bc"d-ec-
(f.c-&�g
1g�&&c&.
)-bbc//c-&

�OO9H7;N9
<@79h
 P9H9DT9J
��6
�Z��
�ITD;779<
TKh
 Y9EE;H@
]I9?jA;6
C8;9O
�9>;=?@A
BA@??;?>
�OO;H9J
m
�9?;=J
P;J9H7=J
=O

 
 
 BA@??;?>
BJ9M@J9<
TKh
 _J@?<;
3897E7=?96
P;J9H7=J
=O
�IE7@;?@T;A;7K
5I78=J;7Kh
 
 �8;=
�9N;E9<
C=<9
�9H7;=?
X�Qi��
R=J
@H7;=?
<@79h
 P9H9DT9J
��6
�Z��




 
Transportation Policy Committee Members Present in Person 
LaGrieta Acheampong 
Chris Amorose Groomes 
Lourdes Barroso De Padilla 
Paul Brake 
Gary Burkholder 
Ben Collins 
Michelle Crandall 
Brad Foster 
Jeremiah Gracia 
Dave Gulden 

Pam Hykes O’Grady 
James Jewell 
Emily Keeler 
Ben Kessler 
Bill LaFayette 
Rory McGuiness 
Eric Meyer 
Megan O’Callaghan 
Eric Richter 
Elissa Schneider 

Kelly Scocco 
Alana Shockey 
Brandon Standley 
Joe Steager 
Christie Ward 
Trenton Weaver 
Andrew Williams 
Kenneth Wright

Transportation Policy Committee Members Attending Remotely 
Matt Allison 
Tracie Davies 
Joy Evangelista 
Daryl Hennessy 
Rebecca Hermann 
Christine Houk 

Laurie Jadwin 
Jamie Leesberg 
Joe Long 
Glenn Marzluf 
Kimberly Sharp 
Chloe Siens-Núñez 

Joe Stefanov 
Robyn Stewart 
Andy Volenik 
Tim Wilson

 

Commission Members Present in Person 
Joe Antram 
Jamie Brucker 

Ben Carpenter 
Jeff Hall 

RC Wise

 

Commission Members Attending Remotely 
Joe Allen 
Joy Evangelista 
Bill Habig 

Mark Johns 
Mark Mauter 
Bill Narducci 

Nick Shultz 

 

Associate Members Attending Remotely 
Kristin Sutton 
 
MORPC Staff Present in Person 
Parag Agrawal 
Todd Bradley 
Lauren Cardoni 
Joe Garrity 
Ralonda Hampton 
Shawn Hufstedler 

Jessica Keunzli 
Eileen Leuby 
Kelsey Matson 
William Murdock 
Kyle Probert 
Raj Roy 

Padmini Roy-Dixon 
Shari Saunders 
Maria Schaper 
Robert Williams

MORPC Staff Attending Remotely 
Karina Peggau Mary Turner 
 
Guests Present in Person 
Grace Byler, Morrow County 
David Clark, Clinton Township 
Tom Homan 

Anthony Sgro 
Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter

 
Guests Attending Remotely 
Rohn Benedetti 
Gabriel Kelvin, GROW Licking County 

Andy Shifflett, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 
Brent Welch, FCEO

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

  
Date: November 14, 2024 
Time: 2:23 p.m. 

Location: MORPC Town Hall 



Transportation Policy Committee Minutes 

November 14, 2024 

Page 2 

 
 
Meeting Called to Order – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
Chair Chris Amorose Groomes called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 2:23 
p.m. 
 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Report – Parag Agrawal, MORPC Chief Mobility & 
Infrastructure Officer & Senior Director of Programming 
Parag Agrawal presented the Metropolitan Planning Organization Report. Mr. Agrawal provided an 
update on the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) and Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) 
leadership. The CAC is comprised of volunteers representing a broad segment of Central Ohio. The 
new CAC Chair is Erin Synk from the Southside Area Commission and the new Vice Chair is Eric 
May from Bold Penguin. The TAC includes representation from federal, state, and local 
transportation officials as well as from environmental agencies. The new TAC Chair is Fritz Crosier 
from the Franklin County Engineer’s Office and the new Vice Chair is Tom Komlanc from the City of 
Gahanna. The Conference of Minority Transportation Officials (COMTO) President serves on the 
CAC. Mr. Agrawal thanked the City of Columbus for passing a resolution celebrating COMTO’s 10-
year anniversary. 
 
Mr. Agrawal gave an update on the infrastructure funding and technical assistance programs. 

• MORPC has approximately $50 million from various federal programs to help members 
create a multi-modal transportation system in Central Ohio. This year we received 20 
applications seeking $167 million. The Attributable Funds Committee is evaluating 
applications and developing draft funding recommendations that will go out for public 
comment in January 2025. 

• MORPC manages the FTA Section 5310 funding program that enhances the mobility of 
senior citizens and people with disabilities. We received 21 applications seeking 
approximately $3.1 million for the $1.7 million available this round. The evaluation committee 
meets later this month and will send their recommendations through the various advisory 
committees and to the Transportation Policy Committee for approval. 

• MORPC provides technical assistance to enhance active transportation to MPO member 
communities. We received four applications for 2025. The review committee met yesterday to 
identify the communities receiving assistance in 2025. MORPC will notify the winning 
communities tomorrow. 

• MORPC administers the funds for Ohio Public Works Commission District 3 (Franklin 
County). Applications totaling $49 million were received for the $32 million available. 

 
MORPC’s Emma Strange is the Mobility Coordinator for Franklin County. She is responsible for 
providing education for transportation options for residents. The Franklin County Getting Around 
Guide is meant to empower people of all ages and abilities to find transportation options that work for 
their specific needs. It promotes accessible transportation options and includes information on 
biking, walking, and rolling. Copies were available for members. 
 
MORPC continues to work with partners to bring passenger rail to Central Ohio. The Passenger Rail 
Committee met November 12 with presentations from Amtrack and the Ohio Rail Development 
Commission. On October 31, Central Ohio leaders went to Fort Wayne to meet with Mayor Tucker. 
Fort Wayne is the primary applicant for the Midwest Connect project.  
 
MORPC is working with various member communities and COTA to manage the LinkUS Transit 
Supportive Infrastructure (TSI) program. MORPC is proposing 83 projects in the next five years with 
a combined investment of more than $260 million.  
 

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/11-14-2024-MPO-Report.pdf


Transportation Policy Committee Minutes 

November 14, 2024 

Page 3 

 
Safe Streets – Safer Communities: A Comprehensive Overview of MORPC’s Roadway Safety 
Program – Maria Schaper, MORPC Transportation Study Director and Lauren Cardoni, 
MORPC Active Transportation & Safety Program Manager 
Maria Schaper and Lauren Cardoni presented Safe Streets – Safer Communities. One of the goals 
of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) is to provide transportation and mobility options to 
benefit the health, safety, and welfare of all people. Targets adopted for that goal include reducing 
crashes by at least two percent annually, one hundred percent sidewalk coverage for arterials and 
collectors within the urban area, and over 1,000 miles of low stress bikeways by 2050. 
 
While the region is making great strides in improving accommodation for people walking and 
bicycling, the same is not true for reducing fatalities and serious injuries on our roadways. The latest 
crash data shows that 2023 was the deadliest year on record for the MORPC MPO area. Traffic 
safety continues to be a challenge in our region. Over the past year, we grew our team of 
transportation safety experts and leveraged federal dollars to create new local partnerships to 
improve safety on our regional transportation system. 
 
MORPC has been a partner in transportation safety efforts throughout the region since 2005 when 
MORPC first established the regional safety program. Through this program, we conduct crash data 
analyses to understand trends throughout the region and provide technical assistance to local 
agency partners to address safety challenges. In the nearly 20 years this program has existed, the 
needs of our communities regarding transportation safety have grown and changed. MORPC is 
working to not only expand our service area but also to evolve the program to better align with 
national best practices. 
 
The first big change for our program came with the release of the Central Ohio Transportation Safety 
Plan in 2019. This plan was the first regional comprehensive safety action plan in the State of Ohio. 
It represents the first time we took a deep dive into the fatal and serious injury crashes in our region 
to better understand why they occurred.  
 
We have also been successful in expanding our safety programming to include our CORPO 
communities. Through the Safe Streets and Roads for All program, MORPC was awarded $200,000 
to develop a similar comprehensive safety action plan for the CORPO planning area. Since the 
adoption of the CORPO Safety Action Plan in May 2024, Team Members created the CORPO 
Safety Action Plan Dashboard. The dashboard provides valuable data and insights regarding 
crashes that are reported in the CORPO planning area and is a new resource available to anyone in 
the CORPO area.  
 
Through the Safe Streets and Roads for All program, MORPC was awarded additional funding to 
update the Central Ohio Transportation Safety Plan, to do supplemental work with local community 
partners, and to work with the Ohio State University Injury Biomechanics Research Center to do in-
depth investigations into fatal crashes occurring on our roadways. The Safe Streets and Roads for 
All program has now awarded more than $18 million to Central Ohio communities. 
  
MORPC is working across the agency and with external partners to figure out how we can better 
integrate safety into all our policies and programs. 
 
Transportation Policy Committee Consent Agenda 
Emily Keeler made a motion to accept the Transportation Policy Committee Consent Agenda, 
second by Gary Burkholder; motion passed. 
 

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/11-14-2024-Safe-Streets.pdf


Transportation Policy Committee Minutes 

November 14, 2024 

Page 4 

 
The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 2:43 p.m. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Ben Kessler, Secretary 
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 



 
 

 William Murdock, AICP 
Executive Director 

Chris Amorose Groomes 
Chair 

Michelle Crandall 
Vice Chair 

Ben Kessler               
Secretary 

Memorandum 
 

TO: Community Advisory Committee 
Transportation Advisory Committee 

 
FROM: Maria Schaper, Transportation Director 

 
DATE: November 26, 2024 

 
SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-13-24: “Amending the State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2024-2027 

Transportation Improvement Program” 
 

Proposed Resolution T-13-24 will add or modify four (4) projects to the SFY 2024-2027 Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) with commitments totaling over $96 million. These changes are necessary to 
enable the projects to advance and to maintain fiscal constraint. In January, the Ohio Department of 
Transportation (ODOT) will ask the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) to amend the Statewide TIP to include these changes.  
 
Continued maintenance of the TIP is a key element of implementing the strategies in the 2024-2050 
Metropolitan Transportation (MTP). The projects included in this amendment specifically relate to 
implementation of these MTP strategies: 

• OP 5: Improve connections and coordination among transit system operators 

• OP 7: Improve demand response transit service 

• OP 8: Manage, improve and coordinate human service, private and public transportation, to better meet 
the needs and fill the gaps 

• PRES 1: Repair or replace bridges in poor physical condition 

• PRES 4: Replace transit vehicles that are beyond their useful life 

• TRAN 5: Implement appropriate additional/innovative service to address first/last mile needs 

• RDWY 1: Add capacity, where appropriate, to alleviate existing or anticipated congestion along existing 
freeway and at interchanges 

 
Attachment 1 to the resolution provides a description of the funding and scope of the projects, including a 
description of the bicycle and pedestrian components. Two projects include MORPC-attributable funding. 
 
An explanation of the proposed changes to the TIP follows. 
 



 

 

Delaware County Transit: The following modification to the TIP is being made for a DCT project: 

• PID 118103: DCT 2025 Vehicle Replace. Adjusting funding to allocate for related activities 
in later years. Total of $713,167 removed in SFY2025. 
 

Franklin County TID: The following modification to the TIP is being made for a Franklin County TID 
project: 

• PID 115792: Alum Creek Dr from SR 317 to Groveport Rd. Moving $2.5 million from detailed 
design to preliminary engineering in SFY 2025. 

 
MORPC: The following addition to the TIP is being made for MORPC’s FTA Section 5310 
Enhanced Mobility for Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities program: 

• PID Unassigned: This program is funded via FFY2024 Section 5310 funding. Fifteen (15) 
subrecipients are receiving funding through this program. Attachment 2 to this resolution 
provides additional detail regarding the awards. Total of $2,410,943 added in SFY2025. 

 
ODOT: The following additions or modifications to the TIP are being made for ODOT projects: 

• PID 105435: I-71 & I-270 (North Outerbelt), Interchange Modification/Bridge Deck Replace. 
Adjusting funding to reflect updated construction cost estimates. Total of $13,859,254 added 
in SFY2025 and SFY2026. 

 
The additions, removal, and modifications to the TIP via this amendment represent reallocation of existing 
funding as well as new funding being made available to local agencies. Below is a summary of the funding 
modifications as part of this TIP amendment: 

Funding Source Funding Change 

FTA Section 5310 $1,760,329 

ODOT Transit (STBG) ($534,831) 

ODOT Labor $1,972,950 

ODOT Preservation ($14,621,530) 

ODOT Safety ($5,111,001) 

ODOT – State $1,988,630 

ODOT Major Programs (TRAC) $29,630,205 

Local $472,278 

Total $15,557,030 

  
MS:EL 
Attachment:  Resolution T-13-24 



RESOLUTION T-13-24 

 

“Amending the State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) adopted the SFY 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) by Resolution T-5-

23; and 

 

WHEREAS, one project modification to the 2024-2027 TIP has been identified as needed for a 

Delaware County Transit (DCT) project as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, one project modification to the 2024-2027 TIP has been identified as needed for a Franklin 

County TID project as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, one project modification to the 2024-2027 TIP has been identified as needed for an Ohio 

Department of Transportation (ODOT) project as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC completed a solicitation and selection process for FTA Section 5310 Federal 

Fiscal Years (FFY) 2024 funds, with projects selected shown in Attachment 2; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC has requested the addition of the SFY 2025 Section 5310 program to the 2024- 

2027 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the projects are consistent with the transportation policies, plans, and programs, including 

the most recent Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) adopted by the Transportation Policy 

Committee; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its meeting December 2, 2024, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee at its meeting on December 4, 2024 recommended approval of this 

resolution to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the MORPC SFY 2024-2027 TIP be amended to include the project information as 

shown in Attachment 1. 

 

Section 2. That it affirms that the fiscal balance of the SFY 2024-2027 TIP is maintained. 

 

Section 3. That the determination of conformity between the TIP and the State Implementation Plan 

(SIP) is hereby reaffirmed, as the three projects are exempt from conformity 

requirements and one non-exempt project was already included in the most recent 

approved air quality conformity, dated May of 2024. 

 

Section 4.  That it affirms that the amendment was developed in compliance with the transportation 

performance measures as described in Section 6 of the SFY 2024-2027 TIP as 

modified. 



Resolution T-13-24 
December 12, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

Section 5. That this resolution will be transmitted to ODOT and all sponsoring agencies in 

Attachment 1 for appropriate action. 

 

Section 6. That this resolution will be transmitted to FTA and all sponsoring agencies in Attachment 

2 for appropriate action. 

 

Section 7. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption of 

this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee.  

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

_________________________________________  

Date 

 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

Attachment 1: Amended Project Information for the SFY 2024-2027 TIP 

Attachment 2: FTA Section 5310 SFY 2025 Program of Projects 

 



Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Resolution T-13-24

Agency: DCT PID: 118103 TIP ID: 332 MTP ID: 142

Project Type(s): Transit Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: DEL-DCT-2025 Vehicle Replace Length (mi.):

Transit $142,810CRP-S2025

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

DCT 2025 Vehicle Replace, Transit

Not applicable. 

Bicycle racks. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

11.12.04

ALI

Transit $35,703Local2025 11.12.04

Total: $178,513

Agency: Franklin County TID PID: 115792 TIP ID: 341 MTP ID: 1182

Project Type(s): Major Widening/Major Rehabilitation Air Quality: Non-Exempt (Analyzed)

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-CR122-0.00 Length (mi.): 2.7

Detailed Design $78,133State2024

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Alum Creek Dr from SR 317 to Groveort Rd, Major Widening from 4 lanes to 6 lanes & Major Rehabilitation

Sidewalk on 1 side, multi-use path on 1 side.  2.7 mi. added to ped network.

Multi-use path.  2.7 mi. added to bike network.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Detailed Design $312,531Federal2024

Preliminary Engineering $490,214State2025

Preliminary Engineering $1,960,858Federal2025

Right-of-Way $858,462State2025

Right-of-Way $341,538STBG-M2025

Right-of-Way $300,000Local2025

Construction $34,008,767LocalLR

Construction $10,158,463STBG-MLR

Total: $48,508,967

Monday, November 25, 2024 Page 1 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2024 are not included in this report nor in the 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program.

LR = Long Range (after SFY 2027, the last year of the TIP).  LR funds are shown for information only and are not included in the TIP.

G* indicates a grouped project.



Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Resolution T-13-24

Agency: MORPC PID: NP TIP ID: 495 MTP ID: 142

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality:

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-MORPC 5310 FFY 2024- Length (mi.):

Transit $57,131Local2025

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

MORPC 5310 FFY 2024, Transit Activity

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

11.7A.00

ALI

Transit $115,575Sec 53102025 11.13.15

Transit $89,702Local2025 11.7L.00

Transit $28,894Local2025 11.13.15

Transit $474,887Local2025 11.71.13

Transit $881,387Sec 53102025 11.71.13

Transit $358,809Sec 53102025 11.7L.00

Transit $228,526Sec 53102025 11.7A.00

Transit $176,033Sec 53102025 11.79.00

Total: $2,410,944

Monday, November 25, 2024 Page 2 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2024 are not included in this report nor in the 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program.

LR = Long Range (after SFY 2027, the last year of the TIP).  LR funds are shown for information only and are not included in the TIP.

G* indicates a grouped project.



Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Resolution T-13-24

Agency: ODOT D6 PID: 105435 TIP ID: 68 MTP ID: 1582

Project Type(s): Interchange Modification/Bridge Deck Replac Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-IR071/270-28.27/25.99A Length (mi.):

Detailed Design $274,680State2025

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

I-71 & I-270 (North Outerbelt), Interchange Modification & Bridge Deck Replace

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Construction $2,800,080Federal2025

Construction $360,000State2025

Construction $500,000Federal2025

Construction $500,000State2025

Construction $326,250State2025

Construction $2,936,250Federal2025

Construction $3,240,000HSIP2025

Construction $29,630,205Federal2025

Construction $311,120State2025

Construction $3,292,245State2025

Construction $500,000Federal2026

Construction $500,000State2026

Total: $45,170,830

Monday, November 25, 2024 Page 3 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2024 are not included in this report nor in the 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program.

LR = Long Range (after SFY 2027, the last year of the TIP).  LR funds are shown for information only and are not included in the TIP.

G* indicates a grouped project.



Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Resolution T-13-24

Summary of Funding Sources

Source Description Total Amount

Federal Labor - Federal $2,800,080

State Labor - State $311,120

Local Local Public Agency $34,995,084

Federal Major/New Program - Federal $31,903,594

State Major/New Program - State $4,135,272

STBG-M Surface Transportation Block Grant, Attributable to MORPC $10,500,001

State Multi-Lane Major Rehab $858,462

CRP-S Carbon Reduction Program, Attributable to the State $142,810

Federal District Preservation (Pv & Br) - Federal $3,936,250

State District Preservation (Pv & Br) - State $1,326,250

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program $3,240,000

State State Safety $360,000

Sec 5310 Enhanced Mobility - Seniors and Disabilities - Urban $1,760,330

Grand Total: $96,269,254

Monday, November 25, 2024 Page 4 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2024 are not included in this report nor in the 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program.

LR = Long Range (after SFY 2027, the last year of the TIP).  LR funds are shown for information only and are not included in the TIP.

G* indicates a grouped project.



State/Urbanized Area: Columbus, Ohio UZA
5310: FFY 2024 (DS, DM, DL): $1,760,329 (DS = Rural Areas (under 50,000); DM -Small Urbanized Areas (50,000-200,000); DL = Large Urbanized Areas (200,000 or more))
Carryover: $0
Transfer Funds (plus or minus): $0

$1,760,329
Number of subrecipients funded in this Program: 15

Program of Projects 
& Subrecipients

Direct and Sub-recipients City
Service Area 

Urban / Rural
Sub Type Private 

Public
Project 

Description/ALI
Quantity FTA Amount Local Amount Total Amount

Coordination Plan 
Date & Page

Eligible Project 
Type*

Capital/
Operating

Description

FY 2024 5310 Direct and Sub-recipients City Service Area Urban / RuralSub Type Private PublicProject Description/ALI Quantity FTA Amount Local Amount Total Amount Coordination Plan Date & PageEligible Project TypeCapital/OperatingDescription

Sub A Canal Winchester Human Services Inc Canal Winchester, OH Urban Non Profit 11.7A.00 1 $20,000 $5,000 $25,000 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(D) Capital Preventive Maintenance

Sub B City of Dublin Dublin, OH Urban Public 11.71.13 1 $120,000 $30,000 $150,000 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(A) Operating Contracted Transportation

Sub C City of Groveport Groveport, OH Urban Public 11.13.15 1 $60,811 $15,203 $76,014 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(A) Capital

Vehicle Purchase (expansion, 
vans)

Sub D City of Hilliard Hilliard, OH Urban Public 11.71.13 1 $72,000 $18,000 $90,000 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(A) Operating Contracted Transportation

Sub E City of Reynoldsburg Reynoldsburg, OH Urban Public 11.71.13 1 $115,200 $28,800 $144,000 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(A) Operating Contracted Transportation

Sub F Clintonvile-Beechwold CRC Columbus, OH Urban Non Profit 11.71.13 1 $50,800 $12,700 $63,500 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(D) Operating Contracted Transportation

Sub F Clintonvile-Beechwold CRC Columbus, OH Urban Non-Profit 11.7A.00 1 $16,000 $4,000 $20,000 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(D) Capital Preventive Maintenance

Sub G COTA Columbus, OH Urban Public 11.71.13 1 $339,387 $339,387 $678,774 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(B) Operating Contracted Transportation

Sub H DCTB Delaware, OH Urban Public 11.7L.00 1 $198,809 $49,702 $248,511 
June 2024 / 

Page 12
(A) Capital Mobility Management

Sub H DCTB Delaware, OH Urban Public 11.7A.00 1 $148,690 $37,172 $185,862 
June 2024 / 

Page 12
(A) Capital Preventive Maintenance

Sub I LifeCare Alliance Columbus, OH Urban Non-Profit 11.7A.00 1 $19,280 $4,820 $24,100 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(D) Capital Preventive Maintenance

Sub J MORPC Columbus, OH Urban Non Profit - Public 11.7L.00 1 $160,000 $40,000 $200,000 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(A) Capital Mobility Management

Sub K Netcare Corporation Columbus, OH Urban Private For Profit 11.7A.00 1 $20,236 $5,059 $25,295 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(D) Capital Preventive Maintenance

Sub L Open Door Columbus Columbus, OH Urban Non Profit 11.7A.00 1 $4,320 $1,080 $5,400 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(D) Capital Preventive Maintenance

Sub M SourcePoint Delaware, OH Urban Non-Profit 11.71.13 1 $160,000 $40,000 $200,000 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(D) Operating Contracted Transportation

Sub N St. Vincent Family Services Columbus, OH Urban Non Profit 11.71.13 1 $24,000 $6,000 $30,000 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(D) Operating Contracted Transportation

Sub O Tristar Transportation Columbus, OH Urban Private For Profit 11.13.15 1 $54,764 $13,691 $68,455 
June 2024 /

Page 39
(D) Capital

Vehicle Purchase (expansion, 
vans)

        Subtotal 17 $1,584,296 $650,614 $2,234,910

Program Admin MORPC Columbus, OH Urban Non Profit - Public 11.79.00 1 $176,033 $0 $176,033 Program Administration

Grand Total 18 $1,760,329 $650,614 $2,410,943

Total Traditional 5310 Capital Amount  (at least 55%) $1,760,329
Total Other Capital Amount (up to 45%) $0

STATE ADMINISTRATION, PLANNING AND TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 

Subtotal State or Designated Recipient  Administration (funded at 100 percent) $176,033
SUBTOTAL DESIGNATED RECIPIENT  ADMINISTRATION $176,033

(Projects may include reasonable contingencies)
(Subrecipient Types may include: a non-profit organization or a local governmental authority).

* Eligibility Project Type refers to 49 U.S.C. 5310 (b)(1) criteria

Not to exceed 10 percent of Section 5310 apportionment and any flex funds transferred to the Section 5310 account may be used to provide a 100 percent Federal share.

CAPITAL, OPERATING AND PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

Attachment 2 Resolution T-13-24
5310 PROGRAM OF PROJECTS

Total Funds Available:

LIST OF PROJECTS Required subrecipient information includes: name of entity receiving the award, amount of award, location of the entity receiving the award and the primary location of performance under the award, including the city and/or 



 
 

 William Murdock, AICP 
Executive Director 

Chris Amorose Groomes 
Chair 

Michelle Crandall 
Vice Chair 

Ben Kessler               
Secretary 

Memorandum 
 

TO: Transportation Policy Committee 

Transportation Advisory Committee 
Community Advisory Committee 
 

FROM: Maria Schaper, Transportation Director 
 

DATE: November 26, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-14-24: "Support the 2025 Ohio Department of 
Transportation Safety Performance Measure Targets" 

 
The 2024-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) includes strategies specifically related to 
enhancing the safety of the transportation system, with many of the strategies and projects included in the 
MTP advancing this objective in some way. Furthermore, the MTP includes specific performance measures 
as required by the federal Transportation Performance Management Program. The program is defined by a 
series of rulemakings that delineate a process in which MPO’s and State Departments of Transportation 
coordinate on target-setting and reporting for a series of federal transportation performance measures.  
 
Safety is one area in which states and MPOs are required to set targets. The rule requires state DOTs to 
set targets for five safety performance measures by August 31 each year. The five measures are: 
  

• number of fatalities 

• number of serious injuries 

• fatality rate 

• serious injury rate 

• number of non-motorized fatalities and serious injuries 
 
In July 2024, ODOT reestablished their annual statewide safety targets as a 2% annual reduction for each 
of the five measures. This was based on many factors, including a review of recent trends in safety 
statistics and an ongoing record level of safety investments statewide. 
 
Each MPO across the state is subsequently required to establish safety targets for their respective 
planning areas by February 26 each year. Resolution T-14-24 is necessary to explicitly meet these federal 
planning regulations to establish safety performance measures for the MPO area. 
 



 

 

MORPC was a leader in the U.S. when performance measures were first incorporated into the 2012-2035 
MTP in 2012. As part of the 2024-2050 MTP that was adopted in May 2024, these performance measures 
were reestablished via resolution T-3-24, and the 2025 ODOT targets are consistent with these adopted 
regional targets. 



RESOLUTION T-14-24  
 

 

“SUPPORTING THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION’S 2025 SAFETY 

PERFORMANCE MEASURE TARGETS” 

 

WHEREAS, the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) is designated as the metropolitan 

planning organization (MPO) by the governor acting through the Ohio Department of Transportation 

(ODOT) and in cooperation with locally elected officials; and 

 

WHEREAS, Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) is the federal transportation legislation with 

which MORPC's transportation planning must comply including performance measures; and 

 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) has established transportation 

performance management rules and processes to be incorporated into metropolitan transportation 

planning, which includes state and MPO adoption of certain performance measures; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC adopted the 2024-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) which includes 

strategies with regard to enhancing the safety of the transportation system along with safety 

performance measures; and 

 

WHEREAS, the USDOT rules require the states to set targets for five safety performance measures 

(number of fatalities, number of serious injuries, fatality rate, serious injury rate and number of non-

motorized fatalities and serious injuries) annually by August 31 each year, and that MPOs set targets 

for the five measures annually by February 26 each year; and   

 

WHEREAS, in August 2024 ODOT, in collaboration with the Ohio Department of Public Safety, 

established a 2% annual reduction as the statewide target for each of the five safety performance 

measures for calendar year 2025; and  

 

WHEREAS, these targets established by ODOT are consistent with the targets for the five safety 

performance measures included in the 2024-2050 MTP, adopted via Resolution T-3-24; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its meeting on December 2, 2024, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee at its meeting on December 4, 2024, recommended approval of 

this resolution to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

  



Resolution T-14-24 
Page 2 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

Section 1. That it supports ODOT’s safety targets established in August 2024 as described above. 

Section 2. That it will plan and program projects that contribute toward the achievement of the 

ODOT targets. 

Section 3: That it directs staff to establish safety targets in the 2024-2050 Columbus Area 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan that are consistent with the ODOT targets. 

Section 4: That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption of 

this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee. 

___________________________________

Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

________________________________ 

Date 

Prepared by: Programming Department Staff 



 
Commission Members Present in Person 
LaGrieta Acheampong 
Chris Amorose Groomes 
Joe Antram 
Lourdes Barroso De Padilla 
Paul Brake 
Jamie Brucker 
Gary Burkholder 
Ben Carpenter 
Ben Collins 
Michelle Crandall 
Brad Foster 

Jeremiah Gracia 
Dave Gulden 
Jeff Hall 
Pam Hykes O’Grady 
James Jewell 
Emily Keeler 
Ben Kessler 
Bill LaFayette 
Rory McGuiness 
Eric Meyer 
Megan O’Callaghan 

Eric Richter 
Elissa Schneider 
Kelly Scocco 
Alana Shockey 
Brandon Standley 
Joe Steager 
Christie Ward 
Trenton Weaver 
Andrew Williams 
RC Wise 
Kenneth Wright

 
Commission Members Attending Remotely 
Joe Allen 
Tracie Davies 
Joy Evangelista 
Alexis Fitzsimmons 
Bill Habig 
Daryl Hennessy 
Rebecca Hermann 

Christine Houk 
Laurie Jadwin 
Mark Johns 
Jamie Leesberg 
Joe Long 
Glenn Marzluf 
Mark Mauter 

Bill Narducci 
Nick Shultz 
Chloe Siens-Núñez 
Joe Stefanov 
Robyn Stewart 
Andy Volenik 
Tim Wilson 

 
Transportation Policy Committee Members Remotely 
Matt Allison Kimberly Sharp
 
Associate Members Attending Remotely 
Kristin Sutton 
 
MORPC Staff Present in Person 
Parag Agrawal 
Todd Bradley 
Lauren Cardoni 
Joe Garrity 
Ralonda Hampton 
Shawn Hufstedler 

Jessica Keunzli 
Eileen Leuby 
Kelsey Matson 
William Murdock 
Kyle Probert 
Raj Roy 

Padmini Roy-Dixon 
Shari Saunders 
Maria Schaper 
Robert Williams

 
MORPC Staff Attending Remotely 
Karina Peggau Mary Turner 
 
Guests Present in Person 
Grace Byler, Morrow County 
David Clark, Clinton Township 
Tom Homan 

Anthony Sgro 
Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 

 
Guests Attending Remotely 
Rohn Benedetti 
Gabriel Kelvin, GROW Licking County 

Andy Shifflett, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 
Brent Welch, FCEO

 
Meeting Called to Order – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
Chair Chris Amorose Groomes called the meeting to order at 1:31 p.m. followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  
 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
  

Date: November 14, 2024 
Time: 1:30 p.m. 

Location: MORPC Town Hall 



Commission Minutes 

November 14, 2024 

Page 2 

 
Chair Amorose Groomes led the Commission in a moment of silence for Village of Somerset Mayor 
and MORPC member Tom Johnson who passed away.  
 
Recognition of Guests and New Members – Eileen Leuby, MORPC Membership Services 
Officer 
Eileen Leuby welcomed consultant and transportation engineer Anthony Srgo. 

 
Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 
William Murdock gave the Executive’s Director Report. Mr. Murdock shared the pre-Commission 
luncheon included Steve Steinour, CEO of Huntington Bank and the head of the Columbus 
Partnership. The Columbus Foundation shared their Benchmarking Report. 
 
Mr. Murdock thanked those who ran for office, or work for those in office, and/or had initiatives on 
their ballots. No matter how it went, MORPC appreciates your service to your community. Mr. 
Murdock also thanked the veterans for their service. 
 
Mr. Murdock gave a preview of upcoming agenda items. Ms. Leuby will share new benefits this 
morning. The Return on Investment statements are ready to go. Copies of the summary were 
provided at each seat and will be available online. The Regional Policy Roundtable report includes 
an election update. With a new president, a new congress, and new members of the state 
legislature, MORPC is here to work with you in navigating the new landscape. 
 
The regional housing effort is taking an important step on November 19 at Reynoldsburg’s City Hall. 
The City of Columbus is investing in the next step of how to create a regional housing coalition effort 
to help local governments make housing happen.  
 
Mr. Murdock congratulated the Commission and local leaders on the passage of the LinkUS ballot 
issue. MORPC began working on this about ten years ago with a committee aimed at making the 
region grow better. Mr. Murdock is proud of the MORPC Team’s involvement and thinking about how 
this impacts the whole region. 
 
Nearly 700 people attended the October 29 Summit on Sustainability. The morning plenary session 
featured regional council leaders from across the country. The keynote session with Jeff Speck was 
great and the four Pecha Kucha presenters brought down the house. Fifteen breakout sessions were 
offered throughout the day-long event.  
 
The 208 Process Review Committee met yesterday. Former Delaware City Manager Tom Homan 
chairs the committee that is looking at sewer facility planning that is so important to growth. We are 
able to learn from other regions around the state who have done this for 40-50 years. The committee 
will bring their recommendations to the Commission. 
 
The Regional Water Study is looking at how the region can be prepared to have the water we need 
going forward. The study is slightly delayed. The consultants need more time because of modeling 
efforts. Recommendations are anticipated early next year. Because of the growth issues and 
pressures from Intel, the study results for Licking County should be available by the end of this year. 
 
The STEPZ (Strategic Training on Effective Planning and Zoning) Workshop focuses on elected and 
appointed planning officials and what their responsibilities are, how their role fits into larger-scale 
community planning, what some of the legalities are to be aware of, and how to read site plans and 
interact with engaged members of the public. The November 19 workshop at MORPC also features 
an interactive session in partnership with the Urban Land Institute.  
 

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/11-14-2024-ED-Report.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/morpc-member-benefits/


Commission Minutes 

November 14, 2024 

Page 3 

 
The Grant Opportunity of the Month is the State and Local Cybersecurity Grant Program. The grant’s 
focus is on plans and projects that help with cybersecurity. 
 
Mr. Murdock congratulated MORPC’s Senior Director of Communications & Engagement Ralonda 
Hampton for being named a Who’s Who in Black Columbus. 
 
Tom Homan shared information on the Ohio University’s Voinovich School of Leadership and Public 
Service Governing Essentials for Local Elected Officials program which begins February 28, 2025. 
The program is a hands-on opportunity to learn the essentials of local government using a number of 
facilitators. While it is geared toward newly elected officials, they also encourage folks who have 
been in office for a number of years to consider it as well as appointed officials. Learn more about 
the program at Voinovich Academy Upcoming Training | Ohio University.  
 
Quarterly Membership Update – Eileen Leuby, MORPC Membership Services Officer 
Eileen Leuby presented the Membership Report highlighting the following: 

• Upcoming members 

• Monthly Membership Newsletter 

• Completed events 

• Member visits 

• Upcoming events 

• Member Benefits 

• New member benefits 

• Summer Intern program 

• Return on Investments 
 
Regional Data Advisory Committee – Jessica Kuenzli, MORPC Chief Regional Planning 
Officer & Senior Director of Planning 
Jessica Kuenzli presented the Regional Data Advisory Committee Update.  MORPC and the Center 
for Urban and Regional Analysis (CURA) at The Ohio State University are hosting the third session 
in the fall webinar series “Responding to the Housing Crisis." Escaping the Housing Trap is Friday, 
November 15 at noon and features author and Strong Towns Founder, Charles Marohn. Over 800 
people are registered for the webinar. 
 
Registration is now open for Data Day 2025, February 5, 2025, at Columbus State Community 
College’s Workforce Development Center. The theme is Making Impacts through Trust in Data. The 
call for proposals closes November 30. Learn more at Data Day 2025 – MORPC.org. Contact Jordan 
Inskeep at jinskeep@morpc.org with questions.  
 
Ms. Kuenzli thanked presenters for the Cybersecurity for Local Leaders session held at MORPC. 
Presenters included Kirk Herath (CyberOhio), Lexie Meade (CyberOhio), Mark Bell (Ohio Cyber 
Reserve), Gene Oliver (City of Worthington), and Matika Garrison (MORPC). Ms. Kuenzli asked 
those who were unable to attend the event to submit a Cybersecurity Working Group Interest Form. 
The survey will highlight some of the resources shared at the event and provide additional 
information about cybersecurity that you can utilize in your own communities. For questions contact 
Dave Dixon at ddixon@morpc.org. 
 
Regional Policy Roundtable – Lourdes Barroso de Padilla (City of Columbus), Regional Policy 
Roundtable Chair 
Lourdes Barroso de Padilla presented the Regional Policy Roundtable Update. The Regional Policy 
Roundtable will officially adopt the 2025-2026 Public Policy Agenda at their November 21 meeting. 
Councilmember Barroso de Padilla thanked those who participated in the Public Policy Agenda 
working group and Sloan Spalding for leading the group and Kyle Probert for keeping them on task. 

https://www.ohio.edu/voinovich-school/academy/upcoming-training
https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/11-14-2024-Member-Report.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/11-14-2024-RDAC.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/event/dataday/
mailto:jinskeep@morpc.org
https://forms.office.com/r/fc8qz5y6zh
mailto:ddixon@morpc.org
https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/11-14-2024-RPR.pdf


Commission Minutes 

November 14, 2024 

Page 4 

 
The Roundtable will also be joined by Jo Ingles from the Ohio Public Radio State House News 
Bureau for a post-election update at the November 21 meeting. 
 
With the passage of Issue 47, Central Ohio has a transportation system that matches what our 
residents need today and what our residents will need tomorrow with a forty-five percent increase in 
existing fixed route transit throughout the COTA service area. Councilmember Barroso de Padilla 
thanked the Public Service Team for their work. Issue 47 also means safe and expanded bike and 
pedestrian paths. It will bring in about $60 million annually toward transit supportive infrastructure. 
Over 360 miles and $5 million of bike and pedestrian projects are already identified and prioritized.  
 

• Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter and Joseph Garrity, 
MORPC Senior Director of Government Affairs & Community Relations 
Joe Garrity and Steve Tugend gave the legislative update highlighting the following: 
o Local, state, and federal election results 
o Federal & state lame duck priorities 
o HB 315  
o Passenger rail advocacy 
o Ohio Public Works Commission 
o Ohio House Speaker race 
o Central Ohio Defense Group 

 
Sustainability Advisory Committee – Ben Kessler (City of Bexley), MORPC Sustainability 
Advisory Committee Chair 
Ben Kessler presented the Sustainability Advisory Committee Report. Mayor Kessler thanked the 
MORPC Staff for their work on the Summit on Sustainability. The fantastic event is a gift to the 
region. Mayor Kessler is excited to see what happens next year. 
 
The Sustaining Scioto Board met in October and discussed 2025 priorities including transitioning 
from a board focused on the Scioto Watershed to a broader regional focus under the proposed 
Regional Water Advisory Council. The transition expands the group’s focus to all of MORPC’s 15 
counties. The board is repositioning itself to be a convening body focused on advancing broader 
regional priorities, including 208 planning, and the outcomes of the Regional Water Study. If you are 
interested in being considered for a board appointment, reach out to Edwina Teye at 
eteye@morpc.org. Mayor Kessler thanked Glenn Marzluf for his continued leadership and support 
as the board chair.  
 
The next Sustainable2050 member meeting is December 5 and includes a presentation on the 
Columbus/Franklin County tree canopy assessment. 
 
The next Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting is December 18 at the Jeffrey Mansion. Contact 
Brandi Whetstone at bwhetstone@morpc.org for more information.  
 
Mayor Kessler noted Proposed Resolution 16-24 on the consent agenda regards the $15 million 
grant MORPC recently received for the charging and fueling infrastructure.  
 
Transportation Policy Committee – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
Chair Amorose Groomes called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 2:23 p.m. 
The session adjourned at 2:43 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 
 
Commission Consent Agenda  
Joe Antram made a motion to approve the Commission Consent Agenda, second by Kenneth 
Wilson; motion passed.  

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/11/11-14-2024-SAC.pdf
mailto:eteye@morpc.org
mailto:bwhetstone@morpc.org


Commission Minutes 

November 14, 2024 

Page 5 

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:44 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Ben Kessler, Secretary 
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 



��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� >=Q?OL�T8CC8BFGU�V?A8=O�W8O?JL=O�>?G89?AL8BC�V?OM8J?G��XY4Z6� [=M?FQ?O�\]U�\̂\_��àbcZd46� DO=e=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�\\:\_f�gY3hi./jkj1l�hi,�,m,n3hjo,�h.�,1h,/�j1h.�0l/,,-,1hp�q./�c3rs�tu�vwvx�hi/.3li�X,n,-y,/�xtu�vwvzu�{jhi�hi,�R/01|rj1�d.31hs�b.0/2�.q�d.--jppj.1,/p�q./�0�i.-,�/,}0j/�}/.l/0-~���<?�789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A��7;>DE��<BG�J=AL8AK?9�8LG��=O���8L<�L<?��OBA�C8A�E=KAL��E=FF8GG8=A?OG�N=O�EWP��NKA98A@�N=O�L<?��=F?�>?eB8O�DO=@OBFU�BG�B@O??F?ALG�BO?�BeeO=M?9�Q��L<?��OBA�C8A�E=KAL��E=FF8GG8=A?OG�BA9�L<?�HJ=A=F8J�W?M?C=eF?AL�BA9�DCBAA8A@�W?eBOLF?AL��HWD����7;>DE�BAL8J8eBL?G�NKA98A@�NO=F��OBA�C8A�E=KAL��L=�J=AL8AK?�L<?�B9F8A8GLOBL8=A�=N�B�<=F?�O?eB8O�eO=@OBF�N=O�BA�BF=KAL�Ke�L=����]�F8CC8=A�L=�J=FeC?L?�KO@?AL�<=F?�O?eB8OG�BNL?O�B998L8=ABC�NKA9G�BO?�FB9?�BMB8CBQC?���<8G�O?G=CKL8=A�BKL<=O8�?G�7;>DE�L=�?AL?O�8AL=�B@O??F?ALGU�8AJCK98A@�BAL8J8eBL?9�BF?A9F?AL�G��Ke�L=�L<BL�BF=KAL���<?G?�KA8LG�J=AG8GL�=N�KO@?AL�BA9�?F?O@?AJ��<?BCL<:BA9:GBN?L��O?CBL?9�<=F?�O?eB8OGU�<BA98JBee?9�BJJ?GG8QC?�F=98N8JBL8=AGU�<=F?�G?�B@?�98Ge=GBC�BA9�=O�eO8MBL?��BL?O�G�GL?F�O?eB8OGU�AK8GBAJ?�BQBL?F?ALU�BA9�FB�=O�O?<BQ8C8LBL8=A�N=O�<=F?G�8A��OBA�C8A�E=KAL��=KLG89?�L<?�E8L��=N�E=CKFQKG��T<?O?�e=GG8QC?U�7;>DE��8CC�C?M?OB@?�NKA9G�L<O=K@<�8LG�O?G89?AL8BC�?A?O@��?NN8J8?AJ��eO=@OBFG�BA9�NO=F�=L<?O�B@?AJ8?G�����LLBJ<F?ALf�>?G=CKL8=A�\\:\_��



���������	
����

������������
���
���������
��������
��
�����
����
��������� 
!��
"�#$
%&
'(')
�������
*����+��
,%&
'('-&
.���
���
/���0#��
1����$
2����
�!
1����  ����� 
!��
�
����
��3���
3������4

56���7�8
9:;
<=>?@AB?
CDE?9F
GD>=H
DI
CDJJBKKBD?;=K
>HJB?BK9;=K
9:;
<;H;=>A
CDJJE?B9F
L;M;ADNJ;?9
GADO@
P=>?9
QCLGPR
IE?HB?S
>T>=H;H
UF
9:;
�V�V
L;N>=9J;?9
DI
6DEKB?S
>?H
�=U>?
L;M;ADNJ;?9
Q6�LR
>K
>?
;?9B9A;J;?9
ODJJE?B9F
>E9:D=BW;H
E?H;=
�B9A;
�
DI
9:;
6DEKB?S
>?H
CDJJE?B9F
L;M;ADNJ;?9
7O9
DI
XYZ8
[EUABO
�>T
Y\�\]\8
>K
>J;?H;Ĥ
>?H

56���7�8
9:;
_BH��:BD
�;SBD?>A
[A>??B?S
CDJJBKKBD?
Q_��[CR
:>K
OD?9B?E;H
B9K
TD=@
TB9:
9:;
<=>?@AB?
CDE?9F
GD>=H
DI
CDJJBKKBD?;=K
>?H
T>K
>T>=H;H
>
OD?9=>O98
>?H
>?9BOBN>9;K
=;�O;BMB?S
>?
>J;?HJ;?9
ID=
>HHB9BD?>A
IE?HB?S8
9D
>HJB?BK9;=
>
6DJ;
�;N>B=
[=DS=>J
ID=
:DJ;
K>I;9F
BJN=DM;J;?9K8
;J;=S;?OF
=;N>B=K8
:DJ;
K;T>S;
HBKNDK>A
>?H̀D=
N=BM>9;
T>9;=
KFK9;J
=;N>B=K8
>?H
J>aD=
=;:>UBAB9>9BD?̂
>?H

56���7�8
9:;
K;=MBO;K
N;=ID=J;H
NE=KE>?9
9D
9:;
OD?9=>O9K
ID=
6DJ;
�;N>B=
TBAA
U;
E?H;=
9:;
DM;=KBS:9
DI
_��[C
>?H
U;
BJNA;J;?9;H
9:=DES:
>
ODJUB?>9BD?
DI
_��[C
K9>II
>?H
ADO>A
UEKB?;KK;K
9:>9
>=;
KEUOD?9=>O9;H
B?
_��[CbK
K;=MBO;
>=;>̂
?DT
9:;=;ID=;8

G�
��
�����c�L
Gd
�6�
ef*ghifh
jklfhm�n
on�mmfml
1heefppfhmq

�;O9BD?
XV
 �:>9
9:;
;r;OE9BM;
HB=;O9D=
BK
:;=;UF
>E9:D=BW;H
9D
;?9;=
B?9D
>S=;;J;?9K
TB9:
9:;
<=>?@AB?
CDE?9F
GD>=H
DI
CDJJBKKBD?;=K
ID=
9:;
TD=@
H;KO=BU;H
B?
9:;
OD?9=>O9K
>T>=H;H
ID=
9:;
6DJ;
�;N>B=
[=DS=>J
B?
9:;
>JDE?9
EN
9D
sXVY
JBAABD?V

�;O9BD?
�V
 �:>9
9:;
;r;OE9BM;
HB=;O9D=
BK
>E9:D=BW;H
9D
>NN=DM;
D?;
D=
JD=;
;r9;?KBD?K
ID=
N;=ID=J>?O;
DI
K;=MBO;K
E?H;=
9:;
ID=;SDB?S
>S=;;J;?9K
>?H
O:>?S;
D=H;=K
ID=
>JDE?9K
EN
9D
9:;
IB?>?OB>A
>E9:D=BW>9BD?
A;M;AK
B?
9:;
_��[C
UFA>TK
TB9:DE9
IE=9:;=
>E9:D=BW>9BD?
I=DJ
9:BK
CDJJBKKBD?V


�;O9BD?
\V
 �:>9
9:;
;r;OE9BM;
HB=;O9D=
BK
>E9:D=BW;H
9D
9>@;
KEO:
D9:;=
>O9BD?
>?H
;r;OE9;
>?H
H;ABM;=
KEO:
D9:;=
HDOEJ;?9K
>K8
>O9B?S
TB9:
9:;
>HMBO;
DI
A;S>A
ODE?K;A8
:;
K:>AA
H;;J
?;O;KK>=F
>?H
>NN=DN=B>9;
9D
O>==F
DE9
9:;
B?9;?9
DI
9:BK
=;KDAE9BD?V

�;O9BD?
V

�:>9
9:BK
CDJJBKKBD?
IB?HK
>?H
H;9;=JB?;K
9:>9
>AA
ID=J>A
H;ABU;=>9BD?K
>?H
>O9BD?K
DI
9:BK
CDJJBKKBD?
OD?O;=?B?S
>?H
=;A>9B?S
9D
9:;
>HDN9BD?
DI
9:BK
=;KDAE9BD?
T;=;
9>@;?
B?
DN;?
J;;9B?SK
DI
9:BK
CDJJBKKBD?V



 















































































C:=BK
7JD=DK;
P=DDJ;K8
C:>B=

 
 
 
 
 
 ef*ghifh
jklfhm�n
on�mmfml
1heefppfhm

�II;O9BM;
H>9;q
 L;O;JU;=
X�8
�t�
�EUJB99;H
UFq
 �DU;=9
5BAAB>JK8
�;?BD=
LB=;O9D=8
�;KBH;?9B>A
�;=MBO;K
[=;N>=;H
UFq
 �DU;=9
5BAAB>JK8
�;?BD=
LB=;O9D=8
�;KBH;?9B>A
�;=MBO;K
7E9:D=B9Fq
 
 �:BD
�;MBK;H
CDH;
�;O9BD?
ZX\V�X
<D=
>O9BD?
H>9;q
 L;O;JU;=
X�8
�t�




��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� DBOB@�T@OBUBCV�E<8?N�7=Q8C8LW�X�YANOBGLOKJLKO?�;NN8J?O�X�Z?A8=O�[8O?JL=O�=N�DO=@OBFF8A@��\]4̂ 6� [?J?FQ?O�_V�̀àb��cdef̂g46� DO=h=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�̀i:̀bj�k]3lm./non1p�lm,�,q,r3lns,�2n/,rl./�l.�,1l,/�n1l.�0p/,,-,1lt�unlmv�012�/,r,ns,�w312t�w/.-�lm,�dxcx�\,y0/l-,1l�.w�4/01ty./l0ln.1�012�y/.r3/,�r.1t3zln1p�t,/snr,t�l.�,q,r3l,�lm,�{|{}�~/n./nlno0ln.1�~/.r,tt�~nz.l�~/.p/0-��~~~~��R312n1p�]u0/2���YA�[?J?FQ?O�̀àbV�7;>DE�UBG�BUBO9?9�B�N?9?OBC�98GJO?L8=ABOW�DO8=O8L8�BL8=A�DO=J?GG�D8C=L�DO=@OBF��DDDD��@OBAL�8A�L<?�BF=KAL�=N���VbaaVaaa���=�FBLJ<8A@�NKA9G�BO?�O?�K8O?9�N=O�L<8G�BUBO9���<?�BJL8M8LW�U8CC�Q?�8AJCK9?9�8A�L<?�7;>DE�7?LO=h=C8LBA�DCBAA8A@�;O@BA8�BL8=A�ZLBL?��8GJBC��?BO�à̀��DCBAA8A@��=O��DO=@OBF�M8B�BF?A9F?AL�8A��?QOKBOW�=N�̀à�����>?G=CKL8=A�̀i:̀b�BKL<=O8�?G�L<?�?I?JKL8M?�98O?JL=O�L=�?AL?O�8AL=�B@O??F?AL�U8L<�L<?���Z��[?hBOLF?AL�=N��OBAGh=OLBL8=A�L=�O?J?8M?�L<?�NKA9G��T�h=OL8=A�=N�L<?�U=O��U8CC�BCG=�8AJCK9?�J=AGKCL8A@�G?OM8J?G�BA9�>?G=CKL8=A�̀i:̀b�BKL<=O8�?G�L<?�?I?JKL8M?�98O?JL=O�L=�?AL?O�8AL=�B@O??F?AL�G��U8L<�J=AGKCLBAL�G����7Z��TLLBJ<F?ALj�>?G=CKL8=A�̀i:̀b��



���������	
����

������������
���
���������
��������
��
�����
����
����� ���!
"���#
���
�������
$���!
$�� 
%&'
()*)
+',-.%/'0%
12
3.-04,1.%-%510
-06
,.178.'
710489%50:
4'.;57'4
%1
'<'78%'
%&'
=>=?
@.51.5%5A-%510
@.17'44
@591%
@.1:.-/
B@@@@C
D������
�"���E

FG���H�I
JKL
�LMNLJONP
QR
JKL
�S�S
TLUONJVLWJ
QR
�NOWXUQNJOJYQW
Z�S�S
T��[
YX
O\JKQNY]L̂
JQ
VO_L
̀NOWJX
RQN
JNOWXUQNJOJYQW
UaOWWYẀ
R\ŴX
MQWXYXJLWJ
bYJK
JKL
�WRNOXJN\MJ\NL
�WcLXJVLWJ
OŴ
defg
hij
klldhmn
opge
qresr
og
jtu
vwxyozjxgor
lr{zogjz|ij|zu
}os~�
OŴ

FG���H�I
YW
����
�����
OUUaYL̂
RQN
�NYQNYJY]OJYQW
�NQMLXX
�YaQJ
�NQ̀NOV
Z����[
R\ŴYẀ�
OŴ

FG���H�I
YW
TLMLV�LN
����
�S�S
T��
OWWQ\WML̂
OW
ObON̂
QR
��I���I���
YW
RL̂LNOa
R\ŴX�
OŴ

FG���H�I
JKL
�����
�LJNQUQaYJOW
�aOWWYẀ
�ǸOWY]OJYQW
�JOJL
�YXMOa
�LON
����
�aOWWYẀ
FQN_
�NQ̀NOV
Z�F�[
bYaa
�L
OVLŴL̂
JQ
YWMa\̂L
JKL
�NYQNYJY]OJYQW
�NQMLXX
�YaQJ
�NQ̀NOV
Z����[
HMJYcYJYLX
YW
�L�N\ONP
QR
�����
OŴ

FG���H�I
O
UQNJYQW
QR
JKL
OMJYcYJP
bYaa
\JYaY]L
MQWX\aJOWJ
XLNcYMLX�
WQb
JKLNLRQNL

��
��
�������T
��
�G�
��+�����
��������
@�������
�����**����

�LMJYQW
�S
 �KOJ
JKL
L�LM\JYcL
̂YNLMJQN
YX
O\JKQNY]L̂
JQ
OMMLUJ
R\ŴYẀ
OŴ
L�LM\JL
JKL
̀NOWJ
ÒNLLVLWJ
bYJK
JKL
�S�S
T��
RQN
JKL
����
�NYQNYJY]OJYQW
�NQMLXX
�YaQJ
�NQ̀NOV
Z����[
R\ŴYẀ
ObON̂S

�LMJYQW
�S
 �KOJ
XJORR
YX
̂YNLMJL̂
JQ
UNLUONL
OW
OVLŴVLWJ
JQ
JKL
�����
�LJNQUQaYJOW
�aOWWYẀ
�ǸOWY]OJYQW
�JOJL
�YXMOa
�LON
����
�aOWWYẀ
FQN_
�NQ̀NOV
Z�F�[
JQ
YWMa\̂L
JKL
�NYQNYJY]OJYQW
�NQMLXX
�YaQJ
�NQ̀NOV
Z����[
OMJYcYJYLXS


�LMJYQW
�S
 �KOJ
JKL
L�LM\JYcL
̂YNLMJQN
YX
KLNL�P
O\JKQNY]L̂
JQ
LWJLN
YWJQ
OWP
ÒNLLVLWJX
bYJK
JKL
R\ŴYẀ
ÒLWMYLX
OŴ
bYJK
OWP
MQWX\aJOWJXI
X\�MQWJNOMJQNXI
QN
cLŴQNX
WLMLXXONP
JQ
\ŴLNJO_L
JKL
OMJYcYJYLX
YW
MQWWLMJYQW
bYJK
JKL
�NYQNYJY]OJYQW
�NQMLXX
�YaQJ
�NQ̀NOV
Z����[
R\ŴYẀ
ObON̂S

�LMJYQW
�S
 �KOJ
JKL
L�LM\JYcL
̂YNLMJQN
YX
O\JKQNY]L̂
JQ
R\NWYXK
X\MK
Ô ŶJYQWOa
YWRQNVOJYQW
OX
�S�S
T��
QN
�T��
VOP
NL�\YNL
YW
MQWWLMJYQW
bYJK
JKL
�NYQNYJY]OJYQW
�NQMLXX
�YaQJ
�NQ̀NOV
Z����[
R\ŴYẀ
ObON̂S

�LMJYQW
�S
 �KOJ
JKL
L�LM\JYcL
̂YNLMJQN
YX
O\JKQNY]L̂
JQ
OUUNQcL
QWL
QN
VQNL
L�JLWXYQWX
RQN
ULNRQNVOWML
QR
XLNcYMLX
\ŴLN
JKL
RQNL̀QYẀ
ÒNLLVLWJX
OŴ
MKOẀL
QN̂LNX
RQN
OVQ\WJX
\U
JQ
JKL
RYWOWMYOa
O\JKQNY]OJYQW
aLcLaX
YW
JKL
�����
�PaObX
bYJKQ\J
R\NJKLN
O\JKQNY]OJYQW
RNQV
JKYX
�QVVYXXYQWS


�LMJYQW
�S
 �KOJ
JKL
L�LM\JYcL
̂YNLMJQN
YX
O\JKQNY]L̂
JQ
JO_L
X\MK
QJKLN
OMJYQW
OŴ
L�LM\JL
OŴ
̂LaYcLN
X\MK
QJKLN
̂QM\VLWJX
OXI
OMJYẀ
bYJK
JKL
ÔcYML
QR
aL̀Oa
MQ\WXLaI
KL
XKOaa
̂LLV
WLMLXXONP
OŴ
OUUNQUNYOJL
JQ
MONNP
Q\J
JKL
YWJLWJ
QR
JKYX
NLXQa\JYQWS

�LMJYQW
�S

�KOJ
JKYX
�QVVYXXYQW
RYŴX
OŴ
̂LJLNVYWLX
JKOJ
Oaa
RQNVOa
̂LaY�LNOJYQWX
OŴ
OMJYQWX
QR
JKYX
�QVVYXXYQW
MQWMLNWYẀ
OŴ
NLaOJYẀ
JQ
JKL
ÔQUJYQW
QR
JKYX
NLXQa\JYQW
bLNL
JO_LW
YW
QULW
VLLJYẀX
QR
JKYX
�QVVYXXYQWS




���������	
����
����
�




 















































































�����
�������
��������
�����

 
 
 
 
 
 �� !"#�"
$%&�"'()
*)(''�'&
+"���,,�"'


-..�/0�1�
2�0�3
 4�/��5��
67�
7879
:;5��00�2
5<3
 =���>
�>��?�@�
����.
A�5�@�0<
B
CD.���0�;/0;��
E..�/��
B
:�D���
4���/0��


 
 
 �.
=��>�����D>
=��F���2
5<3
 A����
:/��F���
G��D�F��0�0��D
:0;2<
4���/0��
�;0����0<3
 
 E���
H�1���2
��2�
:�/0��D
I6JK76
L��
�/0��D
2�0�3
 4�/��5��
67�
7879





��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� DBOB@�T@OBUBCV�E<8?N�7=Q8C8LW�X�YANOBGLOKJLKO?�;NN8J?O�X�Z?A8=O�[8O?JL=O��=N�DO=@OBFF8A@���\]4̂ 6� [?J?FQ?O�_V�̀àb��cdef̂g46� DO=h=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�̀b:̀bi�jklmnopqrqst�mnu�uvuwlmqxu�yqpuwmop�mo�usmup�qsmo�0z/,,-,1{|�}~{���012�/,�,~�,��312|��/.-�{�,�d�c��\,�0/{-,1{�.��4/01|�./{0{~.1�012�{�,�5�~.�c{0{,�d1~�,/|~{���5cd���1�3/��e~.-,��01~�|�S,|,0/���g,1{,/���eSg��{.�,�,�3{,�{�,�R����c0�,�c{/,,{|�012�S.02|��./�]�������k���lsyqst�k��py���YA�7BW�̀àbV�7;>DE�UBG�BUBO9?9�B�N?9?OBC�98GJO?L8=ABOW�ZBN?�ZLO??LG�BA9�>=B9G�N=O�TCC��ZZbT��hCBAA8A@�BA9�9?F=AGLOBL8=A�hO=�?JL�BUBO9�8A�L<?�BF=KAL�=N��̀V�̀aVaaa�aa���<?�;Z��YP>E�BA9�TF?O8JBA� =A9B�7=L=O�E=�V�YAJ��BO?�hO=M898A@��¡¢aVaaa�aa�8A�FBLJ<8A@�NKA9G�=O�8A:£8A9�G?OM8J?G�N=O�L<?�BUBO9���<?�BJL8M8LW�U8CC�Q?�8AJCK9?9�8A�L<?�7;>DE�7?LO=h=C8LBA�DCBAA8A@�;O@BA8¤BL8=A�ZLBL?�¥8GJBC�¦?BO�̀à¡�DCBAA8A@�§=O£�DO=@OBF�M8B�BF?A9F?AL�8A�¥?QOKBOW�=N�̀à¡����>?G=CKL8=A�̀b:̀b�BKL<=O8¤?G�L<?�?I?JKL8M?�98O?JL=O�L=�?AL?O�8AL=�B@O??F?AL�U8L<�L<?���Z��[?hBOLF?AL�=N��OBAGh=OLBL8=A�L=�O?J?8M?�L<?�NKA9G�BA9�?AL?O�8AL=�A?J?GGBOW�B@O??F?ALG�U8L<�L<?�hBOLA?O�=O@BA8¤BL8=AG�BA9�B@?AJ8?G�N=O�L<?8O�J=ALO8QKL8=AG��>?G=CKL8=A�̀b:̀b�BCG=�BKL<=O8¤?G�L<?�?I?JKL8M?�98O?JL=O�L=�?AL?O�8AL=�BA�B@O??F?AL�U8L<�L<?�;Z��YP>E�BG�BA�=NN8J8BC�GKQO?J8h8?AL�=N�L<?�ZZbT�@OBAL�L=�J=A9KJL�L<?�hO=�?JL���DT��TLLBJ<F?ALi�>?G=CKL8=A�̀b:̀b��



���������	
����

������������
���
���������
��������
��
�����
����
��������� 
!���"
���
�������
#��� 
#���
$%&
'()(
*&+,-$.&/$
01
2-,/3+0-$,$40/
,/5
$%&
6%40
)$,$&
'/47&-34$8
96)':
;/<=-8
>40.&?%,/4?3
@&3&,-?%
A&/$&-
9;>@A:
$0
&B&?=$&
$%&
CDEF
),1&
)$-&&$3
,/5
@0,53
10-
�GG
HIIJ�K
L������
�!���M

NO���P�Q
RST
�TUVTRWVX
YZ
RST
�[�[
\T]WVR̂T_R
YZ
�VW_̀]YVRWRaY_
b�[�[
\��c
à
WdRSYVaeTf
RY
ŴgT
hVW_R̀
ZYV
RVW_̀]YVRWRaY_
]iW__a_h
Zd_f̀
UY_̀àRT_R
jaRS
RST
�_ZVẀRVdURdVT
�_kT̀R̂T_R
W_f
lmno
pqr
sttlpuv
wxom
yzm{z
wo
r|}
~���w�r�owz
tz��wor��qr��}
�w{��
wz�

NO���P�Q
a_
����
�����
W]]iaTf
ZYV
�WZT
�RVTTR̀
W_f
�YWf̀
ZYV
Pii
b���Pc
�iW__a_h
W_f
\T̂ Y_̀RVWRaY_
Zd_fa_h�
W_f

NO���P�Q
a_
�WX
����
�[�[
\��
W__Yd_UTf
W_
WjWVf
YZ
��Q���Q���[��
a_
ZTfTVWi
Zd_f̀
jaRS
����Q���
a_
̂WRUSa_h
Zd_f̀
YV
a_ga_f
̀TVkaUT̀
ZYV
RST
WjWVf
]VYkafTf
�X
RST
���
����
W_f
P̂ TVaUW_
OY_fW
�YRYV
�Y[Q
�_U�
W_f

NO���P�Q
RST
�����
�TRVY]YiaRW_
�iW__a_h
�VhW_aeWRaY_
�RWRT
�àUWi
�TWV
����
�iW__a_h
NYVg
�VYhVŴ 
b�N�c
jaii
�T
Ŵ T_fTf
RY
a_UidfT
RST
����
���P
]iW__a_h
WURakaRaT̀
a_
�T�VdWVX
YZ
�����
W_f

NO���P�Q
RST
WURakaRaT̀
jaii
]VâWVaiX
�T
iTf
W_f
UŶ ]iTRTf
�X
RST
VT̀TWVUS
RTŴ 
WR
RST
����Q
a_
UYiiW�YVWRaY_
jaRS
�����
W_f
]WVR_TVa_h
iYUWi
WhT_UaT̀�
_Yj
RSTVTZYVT

��
��
�������\
��
�O�
�;*�6�;6
@��;6���
�����;��
A6��;));6� 

�TURaY_
�[
 �SWR
RST
T¡TUdRakT
faVTURYV
à
WdRSYVaeTf
RY
WUUT]R
Zd_fa_h
W_f
T¡TUdRT
RST
hVW_R
WhVTT̂ T_R
jaRS
RST
�[�[
\��
ZYV
RST
����
���P
Zd_fa_h
WjWVf[

�TURaY_
�[
 �SWR
̀RWZZ
à
faVTURTf
RY
]VT]WVT
W_
Ŵ T_f̂ T_R
RY
RST
�����
�TRVY]YiaRW_
�iW__a_h
�VhW_aeWRaY_
�RWRT
�àUWi
�TWV
����
�iW__a_h
NYVg
�VYhVŴ 
b�N�c
RY
a_UidfT
RST
����
���P
]iW__a_h
WURakaRaT̀[



�TURaY_
�[
 �SWR
RST
T¡TUdRakT
faVTURYV
à
WdRSYVaeTf
RY
T_RTV
a_RY
W_X
WhVTT̂ T_R̀
jaRS
RST
]WVR_TV
YVhW_aeWRaY_̀
W_f
WhT_UaT̀
W_f
jaRS
W_X
UY_̀diRW_R̀Q
̀d�UY_RVWURYV̀Q
YV
kT_fYV̀
_TUT̀ ẀVX
RY
d_fTVRWgT
RST
WURakaRaT̀
a_
UY__TURaY_
jaRS
RST
����
���P
Zd_fa_h
WjWVf[

�TURaY_
�[
 �SWR
RST
T¡TUdRakT
faVTURYV
à
WdRSYVaeTf
RY
T_RTV
a_RY
W_
WhVTT̂ T_R
jaRS
RST
���
����
Ẁ
W_
YZZaUaWi
̀d�VTUa]aT_R
YZ
RST
���P
hVW_R[


�TURaY_
�[
 �SWR
RST
T¡TUdRakT
faVTURYV
à
WdRSYVaeTf
RY
ZdV_àS
̀dUS
WffaRaY_Wi
a_ZYV̂WRaY_
Ẁ
�[�[
\��
YV
�\��
̂WX
VT¢daVT
a_
UY__TURaY_
jaRS
RST
����
���P
Zd_fa_h
WjWVf[

�TURaY_
�[
 �SWR
RST
T¡TUdRakT
faVTURYV
à
WdRSYVaeTf
RY
W]]VYkT
Y_T
YV
̂YVT
T¡RT_̀aY_̀
ZYV
]TVZYV̂W_UT
YZ
̀TVkaUT̀
d_fTV
RST
ZYVThYa_h
WhVTT̂ T_R̀
W_f
USW_hT
YVfTV̀
ZYV
Ŵ Yd_R̀
d]
RY
RST
Za_W_UaWi
WdRSYVaeWRaY_
iTkTì
a_
RST
�����
�XiWj̀
jaRSYdR
ZdVRSTV
WdRSYVaeWRaY_
ZVŶ 
RSà
�Ŷ ầ̀aY_[









���������	
����
����
�

�������
��
 ����
���
���������
 �!����!
�"
�����!�#� 
��
��$�
"���
����!
������
�� 
�������
�� 
 �%���!
"���
����!
 ���&���"
�"'
�����(
)���
���
� ����
�*
%�(�%
����"�%'
��
"��%%
 ��&
����""�!+
�� 
�,,!�,!����
��
��!!+
���
���
������
�*
���"
!�"�%������


�������
-�

����
���"
.�&&�""���
*�� "
�� 
 ���!&���"
����
�%%
*�!&�%
 �%�/�!�����"
�� 
������"
�*
���"
.�&&�""���
�����!���(
�� 
!�%����(
��
���
� �,����
�*
���"
!�"�%�����
)�!�
��$��
��
�,��
&�����("
�*
���"
.�&&�""����



 















































































.�!�"
0&�!�"�
1!��&�"'
.���!

 
 
 
 
 
 23456736
89:36;<=
>=<;;3;:
?6223@@36;


A**������
 ���B
 C���&/�!
DE'
EFEG
��/&���� 
/+B
 H�!�(
0(!�)�%'
.���*
I�/�%��+
J
K�*!�"�!����!�
L**���!
J
�����!
C�!����!


 
 
 �*
H!�(!�&&��(

H!�,�!� 
/+B
 M��!��
.�! ���'
0�����
�!��",�!������
�� 
��*��+
H!�(!�&
I���(�!
0����!��+B
 
 L���
N���"� 
.� �
�������
-DO�ED
P�!
������
 ���B
 C���&/�!
DE'
EFEG





��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� >=Q?OL�T8CC8BFGU�V?A8=O�W8O?JL=O�>?G89?AL8BC�V?OM8J?G��XY4Z6� W?J?FQ?O�[U�\]\̂��_̀ abZc46� DO=d=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�\e:\̂f�gY3hi./jkj1l�hi,�,m,n3hjo,�2j/,nh./�h.�,1h,/�j1h.�0l/,,-,1hp�qjhi�hi,�̀r_r�Z1oj/.1-,1h0s�t/.h,nhj.1�Yl,1nu�vZtYw�/,l0/2j1l�Z1oj/.1-,1h0s�012�csj-0h,�b3phjn,�c.--31jhu�ci01l,�x/01hp�t/.l/0-�y312j1l�012�,1h,/�j1h.�/,s0h,2�p3zn.1h/0nhp{��|<?�789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�}7;>DE~�O?J?ALC��BddC8?9�N=O����U���U��̂�M8B�L<?��������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������� �����E<BA@?�¡OBALG�DO=@OBFU�B�J=Fd?L8L8M?�@OBAL�dO=@OBF�JO?BL?9�Q��L<?�¢ANCBL8=A�>?9KJL8=A�£JL¤���¥¦§�����̈��©���ª���������¦«�������¬��������������¬¬��������������¦���������ª�B8FG�L=�Q=CGL?O�O?G8C8?AJ��BA9�8FdO=M?�8A9==O�B8O�®KBC8L��Q��̄?BL<?O8°8A@�<=F?G�BA9�dO=M898A@�?A?O@��?NN8J8?AL�Kd@OB9?G�N=O�MKCA?OBQC?�O?G89?ALG�8A�±OBA²C8AU�D8J²B̄ B��±B8ON8?C9U�BA9�±B�?LL?�E=KAL8?G¤�|<?�dO8FBO��LBO@?L�BK98?AJ?G�BO?�O?G89?ALG�̄<=�BO?�BL�=O�Q?C=̄ ��]�d?OJ?AL�£O?B�7?98BA�¢AJ=F?U�QKL�BCG=�8AJCK9?G�M?L?OBAG�BA9�G8A@C?:dBO?AL�NBF8C8?G�8A�GKQG898°?9�<=KG8A@�BA9�O?G89?ALG�̄<=�O?®K8O?�?A?O@��?NN8J8?AJ��Kd@OB9?G�L<BL�BO?�A=L�JKOO?ALC��BMB8CBQC?�L<O=K@<�?I8GL8A@�N?9?OBC�BA9�GLBL?�dO=@OBFG¤�|<8G�dO=@OBF�<BG�B�L<O??:�?BO�dO=³?JL�d?O8=9¤���7;>DE�8G�L<?�C?B9�BddC8JBAL�=A�L<8G�dO=³?JL�̄8L<�L<?�N=CC=̄ 8A@�dBOLA?OGf�¢7D£E|�E=FFKA8L��£JL8=A�}VLBLKL=O��DBOLA?O~U�́BL8=Ā 89?�E<8C9O?AµG�¶?BCL<��¶=F?GU�D8J²B̄ B��E=KAL��E=FFKA8L��£JL8=AU�·BAJBGL?O:±B8ON8?C9�E=FFKA8L��£JL8=AU�BA9�E=FFKA8L��£JL8=A�E=FF8GG8=A�=N�±B�?LL?�E=KAL�¤���£LLBJ<F?ALf�>?G=CKL8=A�\e:\̂��



���������	
����
������������
���
���������
��������
��
�����
����
����� ���!
"���
���
#$%$
&������ ����'
(���������
�����)
*&(�+
���������
&������ ����'
���
,'� ���
-�!����
,�  ����)
,�����
.����!
(����� 
/������
���
�����
����
��'����
0123456783609

:;���<�=
>?@
ABC�?BD
�@EBDFGH
IHGFFBFE
JDKKBLLBDF
MA��IJN
GOOHB@C
PDQ
PRFCBFE
SBG
>?@
TUVU
WXYZ[\X]̂ X_̀a
b[\_̂c_Z\X
dêXcfgh
iWbdghj
WXYZ[\X]̂ X_̀a
̀Xk
laZ]̀ _̂
mnh_Zĉ
l\]]nXZ_f
J?GFE@
oQGF>L
IQDEQGK=
G
pDKO@>B>BS@
EQGF>
OQDEQGK
pQ@G>@C
qr
>?@
�FPHG>BDF
�@CRp>BDF
<p>s
GFC



:;���<�=
BP
GtGQC@C=
>?@
�I<
tBHH
L@@u
>D
pDF>QGp>
tB>?
A��IJ
>D
BKOH@K@F>
G
pDKO@>B>BS@
EQGF>
GOOHBpG>BDF
>D
t@G>?@QBv@
?DK@L
GFC
OQDSBC@
@F@QEr
@PPBpB@Fpr
ROEQGC@L
PDQ
SRHF@QGqH@
Q@LBC@F>L
BF
wQGFuHBF=
IBpuGtGr=
wGBQPB@HC=
GFC
wGr@>>@
JDRF>B@Ls
GFC



:;���<�=
>?@
L@QSBp@L
O@QPDQK@C
ORQLRGF>
>D
>?BL
pDF>QGp>
tBHH
q@
RFC@Q
>?@
DS@QLBE?>
DP
A��IJ
GFC
q@
BKOH@K@F>@C
>?QDRE?
G
pDKqBFG>BDF
DP
A��IJ
L>GPP
GFC
LRqpDF>QGp>@C
DQEGFBvG>BDFL
GFC
HDpGH
qRLBF@LL@Ls
FDt
>?@Q@PDQ@

x�
��
�����y�z
x{
�;�
|}~���}�
�&.}����
(����}�.
,�||}%%}���

�@p>BDF
��
 �?G>
>?@
@�@pR>BS@
CBQ@p>DQ
BL
GR>?DQBv@C
>D
@F>@Q
BF>D
GF
GEQ@@K@F>
tB>?
����
�I<
PDQ
RO
>D
>?Q@@
r@GQL
>D
R>BHBv@
�FSBQDFK@F>GH
GFC
JHBKG>@
�RL>Bp@
JDKKRFB>r
J?GFE@
EQGF>
PRFCL
>D>GHBFE
���=���=���
GFC
@F>@Q
BF>D
Q@HG>@C
LRqpDF>QGp>L�

�@p>BDF
��
 �?G>
>?@
@�@pR>BS@
CBQ@p>DQ
BL
GR>?DQBv@C
>D
GOOQDS@
DF@
DQ
KDQ@
@�>@FLBDFL
PDQ
O@QPDQKGFp@
DP
L@QSBp@L
RFC@Q
>?@
PDQ@EDBFE
GEQ@@K@F>L
GFC
p?GFE@
DQC@QL
PDQ
GKDRF>L
RO
>D
>?@
PBFGFpBGH
GR>?DQBvG>BDF
H@S@HL
BF
>?@
A��IJ
qrHGtL
tB>?DR>
PRQ>?@Q
GR>?DQBvG>BDF
PQDK
>?BL
JDKKBLLBDF�



�@p>BDF
��
 �?G>
>?@
@�@pR>BS@
CBQ@p>DQ
BL
GR>?DQBv@C
>D
>Gu@
LRp?
D>?@Q
Gp>BDF
GFC
@�@pR>@
GFC
C@HBS@Q
LRp?
D>?@Q
CDpRK@F>L
GL=
Gp>BFE
tB>?
>?@
GCSBp@
DP
H@EGH
pDRFL@H=
?@
L?GHH
C@@K
F@p@LLGQr
GFC
GOOQDOQBG>@
>D
pGQQr
DR>
>?@
BF>@F>
DP
>?BL
Q@LDHR>BDF�

�@p>BDF
��

�?G>
>?BL
JDKKBLLBDF
PBFCL
GFC
C@>@QKBF@L
>?G>
GHH
PDQKGH
C@HBq@QG>BDFL
GFC
Gp>BDFL
DP
>?BL
JDKKBLLBDF
pDFp@QFBFE
GFC
Q@HG>BFE
>D
>?@
GCDO>BDF
DP
>?BL
Q@LDHR>BDF
t@Q@
>Gu@F
BF
DO@F
K@@>BFEL
DP
>?BL
JDKKBLLBDF�


 















































































J?QBL
<KDQDL@
oQDDK@L=
J?GBQ

 
 
 
 
 
 |}~���}�
�&.}����
(����}�.
,�||}%%}��


�PP@p>BS@
CG>@�
 z@p@Kq@Q
��=
����
�RqKB>>@C
qr�
 �Dq@Q>
:BHHBGKL=
�@FBDQ
zBQ@p>DQ
DP
�@LBC@F>BGH
�@QSBp@L
IQ@OGQ@C
qr�
 �@LLBpG
�R@FvHB=
J?B@P
�@EBDFGH
IHGFFBFE
�PPBp@Q
GFC
�@FBDQ
zBQ@p>DQ
DP


 
 
 IHGFFBFE
<R>?DQB>r�
 
 �?BD
�@SBL@C
JDC@
�@p>BDF
������
wDQ
Gp>BDF
CG>@�
 z@p@Kq@Q
��=
����




��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� T?GG8JB�UK?AVC8��E<8?N�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�;NN8J?O�BA9�W?A8=O�X8O?JL=O�=N�DCBAA8A@���YZ4[6� X?J?FQ?O�\]�̂_̂ �̀�abcd[e46� DO=f=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�̂g:̂ h̀�ijklmnopqprs�lmt�tutvklpwt�xpotvlno�ln�trlto�prln�01�0y/,,-,1z�{|z}�z},�R,2,/0~��|y}{0��Z2-|1|�z/0z|.1��R��Z��/,y0/2|1y�e}0/y|1y�012�R3,~|1y��1�/0�z/3�z3/,��eR���/.312����312|1y�012�,1z,/�|1z.�ot��ltx��k�vnrlo�vl����7;>DE�O?J?ALC��BffC8?9�N=O����]��\]����M8B�L<?��?9?OBC��8@<�B���9F8A8GLOBL8=A��������E<BO@8A@�BA9��K?C8A@��ANOBGLOKJLKO?�X8GJO?L8=ABO���OBAL�DO=@OBF��E���DO=@OBF��O=KA9�̂���<?�E���DO=@OBF�8G�B�J=Ff?L8L8M?�@OBAL�fO=@OBF�JO?BL?9�Q��L<?�P8fBOL8GBA��ANOBGLOKJLKO?��B��L=�GLOBL?@8JBCC��9?fC=��fKQC8JC��BJJ?GG8QC?�?C?JLO8J�M?<8JC?�J<BO@8A@�BA9�BCL?OABL8M?�NK?C8A@�8ANOBGLOKJLKO?�8A�L<?�fCBJ?G�f?=fC?�C8M?�BA9��=O����KOQBA�BA9�OKOBC�BO?BG�BC8�?���8A�B998L8=A�L=�BC=A@�9?G8@ABL?9��CL?OABL8M?��K?C� ¡¢¢£¤¡¢¥�¦§̈  ¥©ª�«¬® ̄¥�fO=f=G?9�fO=°?JL]�H±�HE;]��8CC�N=JKG�=A�E=OO89=O�E<BO@8A@�����N�NKA9?9]�7;>DE��8CC�C?B9�BA�?NN=OL�L=�QK8C9�L�=�XE��BGL�E<BO@8A@��XE�E��<KQG�G?OM8A@�F?98KF:�BA9�<?BM�:9KL��V?O=:?F8GG8=A�M?<8JC?G��²H±G�]�BG��?CC�BG�J=AL8AK8A@�L=�QK8C9�=KL�B�A?L�=O��=N�fKQC8JC��BJJ?GG8QC?�XE�E�<KQG�G?OM8A@�C8@<L:9KL��fBGG?A@?O�²H±G�8A�GBN?]�BJJ?GG8QC?�C=JBL8=AG�8A� ³́µ¢¶·�¬̧ £¡̄¥�¹¢º¶́�¶́¤�¢¹¢¶·�¹́¤³¢¥³¢»³¤�¼¡½½¹́£µ£³¥ª�¾̧³�¼¡½º£́³¤�¿À�¥£µ³¥�Á£··�Â¢¡»£¤³�¶µ�C?BGL�Ã̀ �̀B998L8=ABC�Ã�_:���J<BO@8A@�f=OLG�8A�C=JBL8=AG�JO8L8JBC�L=�LOBAG8L�J=OO89=OG�L<BL�BO?��8L<8A���F8C?G�=N�BA���E���<?�fO=°?JL��8CC�Q?�NKOL<?O�?A<BAJ?9�Q��?9KJBL8=A�BA9�?A@B@?F?AL�=ff=OLKA8L8?G�L<BL��8CC�@BOA?O�GKff=OL�NO=F��?���=O�N=OJ?�9?M?C=fF?AL�fBOLA?OG���<8G�8G�B�J=CCBQ=OBL8M?�?NN=OL��8L<�ÃÄ�G8L?�<=GLG�BA9�fBOLA?OG�8AJCK98A@�DO=C=@8G�7=Q8C8L�]�WFBOL�E=CKFQKG]�ÅBL8=ABC�E?AL?O�N=O�ÆOQBA�W=CKL8=AG]�L<?��AL?OABL8=ABC�PO=L<?O<==9�=N�HC?JLO8JBC��=O�?OG]�HC?JLO8N8JBL8=A�E=BC8L8=A]��=CC?G�EBO??O�Ç��?J<A8JBC�E?AL?O]�L<?�>8J�?AQBJ�?O�HA?O@��E=AG=OL8KF]�ÃÃ�C=JBC�@=M?OAF?ALG]�fKQC8J�B@?AJ8?G]�A=A:fO=N8LG]�BA9�L<?�fO8MBL?�G?JL=O����LLBJ<F?ALh�>?G=CKL8=A�̂g:̂ �̀�



���������	
����
������������
���
������ !�
" #���$#
�$
�%��#
 %�$
&%
&'#��(�%�
) �*
�*�
+�"�#&,
- '*)&.
/"( % 0�#&� $%
1+-2/3
#�'&#" %'
4*&#' %'
&%"
+��, %'
5%6#&0�#����#�
14+53
#$�%"
7
8��9���
:�9
�����
����
��;:��9
<�=>����:>�<?

@A���B�C
DEFGHFI
JKJLG
MENEOPHQFC
REGELJN
AHISKJT
BGUHFHMPLJPHQF
VRA@BW
UJT
OQFPLJOP
KHPS
PSE
XHG�SHQ
�EIHQFJN
YNJFFHFI
ZQUUHMMHQF
VX��YZW
PQ
HUDNEUEFP
J
OQUDEPHPH[E
ILJFP
JDDNHOJPHQF
PQ
\]HNG
PKQ
D]\NHONT
JOOEMMH\NE
̂Z
RJMP
ZSJLIHFI
V̂ZRZW
S]\M
MEL[HFI
UEGH]U
JFG
SEJ[TG]PT
_ELQEUHMMHQF
[ESHONEM
V̀�aMWC
JM
KENN
JM
JGGHFI
bb
D]\NHONT
JOOEMMH\NE
̂ZRZ
S]\M
MEL[HFI
NHISPG]PT
DJMMEFIEL
̀�aM
HF
MJcEC
deefgghijf
jkedlhkmg
hm
nfmlodj
pqhkrg
soidm
JFG
L]LJN
]FGELMEL[EG
OQUU]FHPHEM
KHPSHF
cH[E
UHNEM
Qc
JF
BNPELFJPH[E
R]EN
ZQLLHGQLt
JFG

@A���B�C
PSE
DLQuEOP
KHNN
\E
EFSJFOEG
\T
EG]OJPHQF
JFG
Q]PLEJOS
JOPH[HPHEM
PQ
HFOLEJME
PSE
JKJLEFEMM
Qc
�a
OSJLIHFI
HFcLJMPL]OP]LEC
JFG
KHNN
HF[QN[E
KQLvcQLOE
GE[ENQDUEFP
DJLPFELM
PQ
DLQUQPE
PSE
PLJHFHFI
FEOEMMJLT
cQL
JGGLEMMHFI
JF
EUELIHFI
KQLvcQLOE
GEUJFGt
JFG


@A���B�C
PSE
RA@B
ILJFP
JKJLG
Qc
]D
PQ
wxxCxyzCxxyC
KSHOS
LE{]HLEM
JF
JGGHPHQFJN
UHFHU]U
�|
DELOEFP
UJPOS
LE{]HLEUEFPC
KHNN
\E
]PHNH_EG
PQ
OQ[EL
X��YZ
MPJcc
PHUE
JFG
SHLE
M]\OQFPLJOPQLM
PQ
HUDNEUEFP
PSE
DLQILJUt
JFG

@A���B�C
PSE
MEL[HOEM
DELcQLUEG
D]LM]JFP
PQ
PSHM
OQFPLJOP
KHNN
\E
]FGEL
PSE
Q[ELMHISP
Qc
X��YZ
JFG
\E
HUDNEUEFPEG
PSLQ]IS
J
OQU\HFJPHQF
Qc
X��YZ
MPJcc
JFG
M]\OQFPLJOPEG
QLIJFH_JPHQFM
JFG
NQOJN
\]MHFEMMEMt
FQK
PSELEcQLE

}�
��
�����a�̂ 
}~
�A�
�5���-5�
���5��/�
��/��5��
4���5��5���

�EOPHQF
b�
 �SJP
PSE
E�EO]PH[E
GHLEOPQL
HM
J]PSQLH_EG
PQ
EFPEL
HFPQ
JF
JILEEUEFP
KHPS
RA@B
cQL
]D
PQ
EHISP
TEJLM
PQ
]PHNH_E
ZSJLIHFI
JFG
R]ENHFI
�FcLJMPL]OP]LE
ILJFP
c]FGM
PQPJNHFI
wxxCxyzCxxy
JFG
EFPEL
HFPQ
LENJPEG
M]\OQFPLJOPM�

�EOPHQF
��
 �SJP
PSE
E�EO]PH[E
GHLEOPQL
HM
J]PSQLH_EG
PQ
JDDLQ[E
QFE
QL
UQLE
E�PEFMHQFM
cQL
DELcQLUJFOE
Qc
MEL[HOEM
]FGEL
PSE
cQLEIQHFI
JILEEUEFPM
JFG
OSJFIE
QLGELM
cQL
JUQ]FPM
]D
PQ
PSE
cHFJFOHJN
J]PSQLH_JPHQF
NE[ENM
HF
PSE
X��YZ
\TNJKM
KHPSQ]P
c]LPSEL
J]PSQLH_JPHQF
cLQU
PSHM
ZQUUHMMHQF�



�EOPHQF
��
 �SJP
PSE
E�EO]PH[E
GHLEOPQL
HM
J]PSQLH_EG
PQ
PJvE
M]OS
QPSEL
JOPHQF
JFG
E�EO]PE
JFG
GENH[EL
M]OS
QPSEL
GQO]UEFPM
JMC
JOPHFI
KHPS
PSE
JG[HOE
Qc
NEIJN
OQ]FMENC
SE
MSJNN
GEEU
FEOEMMJLT
JFG
JDDLQDLHJPE
PQ
OJLLT
Q]P
PSE
HFPEFP
Qc
PSHM
LEMQN]PHQF�

�EOPHQF
��

�SJP
PSHM
ZQUUHMMHQF
cHFGM
JFG
GEPELUHFEM
PSJP
JNN
cQLUJN
GENH\ELJPHQFM
JFG
JOPHQFM
Qc
PSHM
ZQUUHMMHQF
OQFOELFHFI
JFG
LENJPHFI
PQ
PSE
JGQDPHQF
Qc
PSHM
LEMQN]PHQF
KELE
PJvEF
HF
QDEF
UEEPHFIM
Qc
PSHM
ZQUUHMMHQF�


 















































































ZSLHM
BUQLQME
�LQQUEMC
ZSJHL

 
 
 
 
 
 �5���-5�
���5��/�
��/��5��
4���5��5��
�ccEOPH[E
GJPE�
 ÊOEU\EL
b�C
�|��
�]\UHPPEG
\T�
 �EMMHOJ
�]EF_NHC
ZSHEc
�EIHQFJN
YNJFFHFI
�ccHOEL
JFG
�EFHQL
̂HLEOPQL
Qc


 
 
 YNJFFHFI
YLEDJLEG
\T�
 }LHJF
RHNHJPLJ]PC
�EFHQL
�FELIT
JFG
�]MPJHFJ\HNHPT
YLQILJU
XJFJIEL
B]PSQLHPT�
 
 �SHQ
�E[HMEG
ZQGE
�EOPHQF
yb���b
RQL
JOPHQF
GJPE�
 ÊOEU\EL
b�C
�|��




 
 

 William Murdock, AICP 
Executive Director 

Chris Amorose Groomes 
Chair 

Michelle Crandall 
Vice Chair 

Ben Kessler               
Secretary 

Memorandum 
 
TO: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 
Officers and Board Members 
 

FROM: Robert Williams 
Senior Director, Residential Services 
 

DATE: December 9, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 27-24: “To authorize the executive director to enter into 
agreements with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) for $2,000,000 to be utilized over a time period of 42 months to 
perform the remediation of health and safety hazards in homes” 

 
MORPC applied for a Healthy Homes Production (HHP) Program grant. The HHP addresses safety 
issues in the homes of eligible residents. The program takes a comprehensive approach to 
addressing multiple childhood diseases and injuries in the home by focusing on housing-related 
hazards. The HHP Program Grant was originally instituted in 1999. The Mid-Ohio Regional 
Planning Commission (MORPC) would administer all production elements of the HHP grant. 
 
MORPC has been providing free residential home repairs and energy efficiency services in Franklin 
County to eligible residents for over 30 years through public-private partnerships utilizing public and 
private funds. MORPC will coordinate with our other in-house Housing and Weatherization 
programs to maximize the number of housing units identified with and to perform remediation of 
health and safety hazards within our targeted areas. 
 
If awarded, MORPC will identify and prioritize units for remediation of health and safety hazards 
that are privately owned, low-income rental or owner-occupied housing, especially in units and/or 
buildings where families with children, older adults sixty-two (62) years and older, or families with 
persons with disabilities reside. MORPC will leverage funding from the Franklin County Home 
Repair program to maximize all funding sources.  
 
MORPC will work with our staff and the staff of Franklin County Public Health (FCPH) to distribute 
information and educate program clients and the general public through media and events, on 
Health and Safety including but not limited to, asthma triggers, radon, lead poisoning, trip and fall 



 

 

Proposed Resolution 27-24 
Memo 
Page 2 

hazards, indoor air quality, and many others. Our staff and FCPH staff are committed to education 
of Health and Safety in the home. 
 
 
 
Attachment: Resolution 27-24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION 27-24 
 

“To authorize the executive director to enter into agreements with the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for $2,000,000 to be utilized over a time period of 
42 months to perform the remediation of health and safety hazards in homes” 
 
WHEREAS, MORPC applied for a Healthy Homes Production (HHP) Program grant. The HHP 
addresses safety issues in the homes of eligible residents. The program takes a comprehensive 
approach to addressing multiple childhood diseases and injury in the home by focusing on 
housing-related hazards. The HHP Program Grant was originally instituted in 1999. The Mid-
Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) would administer all production elements of the 
HHP grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, MORPC has been providing free residential home repairs and energy efficiency 
services in Franklin County to eligible residents for over 30 years through public-private 
partnerships utilizing public and private funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, MORPC will coordinate with our other in-house Housing and Weatherization 
programs to maximize the number of housing units identified with and to perform remediation of 
health and safety hazards within our targeted areas; and 
 
WHEREAS, MORPC will identify and prioritize units for remediation of health and safety 
hazards that are privately owned, low-income rental or owner-occupied housing, especially in 
units and/or buildings where families with children, older adults sixty-two (62) years and older, or 
families with persons with disabilities reside. MORPC will leverage funding from the Franklin 
County Home Repair program to maximize all funding sources; and  
 
WHEREAS, MORPC will work with our staff and the staff of Franklin County Public Health 
(FCPH) to distribute information and educate program clients and the general public through 
media and events, on Health and Safety including but not limited to, asthma triggers, radon, 
lead poisoning, trip and fall hazards, indoor air quality, and many others. Our staff and FCPH 
staff are committed to education of Health and Safety in the home; now therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 
 
Section 1. That the executive director is hereby authorized to enter into agreements with 

HUD for work described in the forthcoming contracts, if awarded for health and 
safety assessment and remediation repairs in the amount up to $2,000,000 and 
enter into related subcontracts. 

 
Section 2. That the executive director is hereby authorized to approve one or more 

extensions of time not to exceed 180 days in the aggregate for performance of 
services under the foregoing agreements and contract changes not to exceed 20 
percent of the total agreement price without further authorization from this 
Commission. 

 
Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute 

and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he 
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 
Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and 

actions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this 
resolution were taken in open meetings of this Commission. 



Resolution 27-24 

Page 2 

 
 
 
 

                                                                                
Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 
Effective date: December 12, 2024 
Submitted by: Robert Williams, Senior Director, Residential Services 
Prepared by: Robert Williams, Senior Director, Residential Services 
Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 
For action date: December 12, 2024 
 
 



 
 

 William Murdock, AICP 
Executive Director 

Chris Amorose Groomes 
Chair 

Michelle Crandall 
Vice Chair 

Ben Kessler               
Secretary 

Memorandum 
 
TO: Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 
Officers and Board Members 
 

FROM: Robert Williams,  
Senior Director of Residential Services 
 

DATE: December 9, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 28-24: “To authorize the executive director to enter into 
agreements with the Ohio Department of Development (ODOD) for 
$2,000,000 to be utilized over a time period of 36 months to perform the 
testing and remediation of mold and radon” 

 
 MORPC applied for a Weatherization Assistance Program Enhancement Innovation grant. The  
 grant will allow MORPC to provide additional health and safety measures to HWAP clients. These 
 additional measures will include mold and radon testing and remediation. The remediation of mold  
 will also enable MORPC to complete weatherization measures on properties that we deferred from  
 service due to the presence of mold. 
 
 MORPC has been providing free residential home repairs and energy efficiency services in Franklin  
 County to eligible residents for over 30 years through public-private partnerships utilizing public and 
 private funds. MORPC will coordinate with our other in-house Housing and Weatherization  
 programs to maximize the number of housing units identified with and to perform remediation of 
 mold and radon.  
 
 If awarded, MORPC will identify units for mold and radon remediation through its existing HWAP  
 Program. These units will be privately owned, low-income rental or owner-occupied units. All  
 potential HWAP clients will have their homes evaluated for mold and tested for radon as part of  
 the HWAP inspection process. 

 
Attachment: Resolution 28-24 

 



RESOLUTION 28-24 
 

“To authorize the executive director to enter into agreements with the Ohio Department 
of Development (ODOD) for $2,000,000 to be utilized over a time period of 36 months to 
perform the testing and remediation of mold and radon”  
 
WHEREAS, MORPC applied for a Weatherization Assistance Program Enhancement 
Innovation grant. The grant will allow MORPC to provide additional health and safety measures 
to HWAP clients. These additional measures will include mold and radon testing and 
remediation.  The remediation of mold will also enable MORPC to complete weatherization 
measures on properties that we deferred from service due to the presence of mold; and 
  
WHEREAS, MORPC has been providing free residential home repairs and energy efficiency 
services in Franklin County to eligible residents for over 30 years through public-private 
partnerships utilizing public and private funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, MORPC will coordinate with our other in-house Housing and Weatherization 
programs to maximize the number of housing units identified with and to perform remediation of 
mold and radon; and 
 
WHEREAS, if awarded, MORPC will identify units for mold and radon remediation through its 
existing HWAP Program.  These units will be privately owned, low-income rental or owner-
occupied units.  All potential HWAP clients will have their homes evaluated for mold and tested 
for radon as part of the HWAP inspection process; now therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 
 
Section 1. That the executive director is hereby authorized to enter into agreements with the 

Ohio Department of Development for work described in the forthcoming 
contracts, if awarded for health and safety assessment and remediation repairs 
in the amount up to $2,000,000 and enter into related subcontracts. 

 
Section 2. That the executive director is hereby authorized to approve one or more 

extensions of time not to exceed 180 days in the aggregate for performance of 
services under the foregoing agreements and contract changes not to exceed 20 
percent of the total agreement price without further authorization from this 
Commission. 

 
Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute 

and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he 
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 
Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and 

actions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this 
resolution were taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 
 
 

                                                                                
Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 



Resolution 28-24 

Page 2 

 

Effective date: December 12, 2024 
Submitted by: Robert Williams, Senior Director, Residential Services 
Prepared by: Robert Williams, Senior Director, Residential Services 
Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 
For action date: December 12, 2024 
 
 



��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG��RS5+6� DBOB@�T@OBUBCV�E<8?N�7=Q8C8LW�X�YANOBGLOKJLKO?�;NN8J?O�X�Z?A8=O�[8O?JL=O�=N�DO=@OBFF8A@��\]4̂ 6� [?J?FQ?O�_̀V�̀àb��cdef̂g46� DO=h=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�̀i:̀bj�klmnopqrsrtu�nov�vwvxmnryv�zrqvxnpq�np�{r|v�0}}~��0��.1���,�,�3�,�0�/,,-,1���������012�/,�,��,��312���/.-���,�5��.�\,}0/�-,1��.��4/01�}./�0��.1��./��/01�����/.3�����,�d�c��\54�R,2,/0~�]2-�1���/0��.1��R4]��012���,�c�0�,�.��5��.��0��03��./��,2�312,/���,�R,2,/0~�4/01�����0���012���,�c�0�,�.��5��.�~0���,�,�3��1��0��.1�/0����������,�5��.�\,}0/�-,1��.��4q�t��pqn�nrpt�m�pt��qp�vxn����qpy�|���7;>DE�8G�GKQF8LL8A@�BA�BhhC8JBL8=A�L=�L<?�;<8=�[?hBOLF?AL�=N��OBAGh=OLBL8=A��;[;���N=O�NKA9G�L=�J=AL8AK?�L<?�hCBAA8A@�BA9�B9F8A8GLOBL8=A�=N�L<?�>?@8=ABC�7=Q8C8LW�DCBA���<?�>?@8=ABC�7=Q8C8LW�DCBA�8G�L<?�E==O98ABL?9�DCBA�N=O�;[;��G��KFBA�Z?OM8J?G��OBAGh=OLBL8=A�E==O98ABL8=A���Z�E��>?@8=A��V�8AJCK98A@�[?CBUBO?V��OBA�C8AV��B8ON8?C9V��BW?LL?V��8J�8A@V��=@BAV�7B98G=AV�D8J�BUBWV�BA9��A8=A�E=KAL8?G������=O�ZLBL?��8GJBC��?BO��Z����̀à�V�U<8J<�Q?@8AG� KCW�_V�̀à¡V�7;>DE�8G�O?¢K?GL8A@�£̀aaVaaa�=N�;[;���OBAG8L�NKA98A@���<?�7;>DE�C=JBC�G<BO?�N=O�L<?G?�@OBALG�8G�£baVaaa���7ZjD;���TLLBJ<F?ALj�>?G=CKL8=A�̀i:̀b����



RESOLUTION 29-24 
 

“Authorizing the executive director to file applications, execute agreements with, and          
receive funds from the Ohio Department of Transportation for grants through the U.S. 
DOT Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and the State of Ohio, as authorized under the 
Federal Transit Laws and the State of Ohio laws executing a contract with the Ohio 
Department of Transportation upon project approval” 
 

WHEREAS, the Director of the Ohio Department of Transportation is authorized to make grants 
for the U.S. DOT Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funds and the State of Ohio; and 
 
WHEREAS, MORPC currently oversees the planning and administration of The Regional 
Mobility Plan which serves as the Coordinated Plan for ODOT’s Human Services Transportation 
Coordination (HSTC) Region 6 including Delaware, Franklin, Fairfield, Fayette, Licking, Logan, 
Madison, Pickaway, and Union Counties; and 
 
WHEREAS, MORPC intends to apply for $200,000 of Ohio Department of Transportation 
(ODOT) Transit funding for SFY 2026 to continue the planning and administration of the 
Regional Mobility Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, MORPC would provide matching funds in the amount of $40,000 in SFY 2026; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is required by the U.S. Department of Transportation in accordance with the 
provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, that in connection with the filing of an 
application for assistance the applicant gives an assurance that it will comply with Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the U.S. Department of Transportation requirements thereunder; 
now therefore 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 
 
Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to execute and file: proposals to aid in 

the financing of capital, operating, and planning assistance projects; grant 
agreements with ODOT for the financing of capital, operating, and planning 
assistance projects; an assurance or any other document required by the U.S. 
Department of Transportation effectuating the purposes of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964; and set forth affirmative disadvantage business policies in 
connection to any procurement made as part of the project. 

 
Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to furnish such additional information as 

U.S. DOT or ODOT may require in connection with the proposal for the program 
of projects submitted to the Federal Transit Administration and the State of Ohio. 

 
Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute 

and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he 
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 
Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and 

actions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this 
resolution were taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 
 
 
 
 



Resolution 29-24 

Page 2 
 
 

                                                                                
Chris Amorose Groomes, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 
Effective date: December 12, 2024 
Submitted by: Parag Agrawal, Chief Mobility & Infrastructure Officer & Senior Director of 

Programming 
Prepared by:  Patty Olmsted, TDM Program Manager, Programming 
Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 
For action date: December 12, 2024 


	Final 2025 Budget Book 12-2-2025.pdf
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23.pdf
	Budget-compressed
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-01-23
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-30-22.pdf
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget - Executive Summary - 11-12-22










	Narrative for Executive Summary With Formatting-Comments Deleted - 12-03-23

	2024 Budget Book
	Summary Sch 1

	2024 Budget Book
	Dues Sch 2

	2024 Budget Book
	approp 3

	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-01-23
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-30-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget - Executive Summary - 11-12-22











	2024 Budget Book-Det. Rev..pdf
	2024 Budget Book
	subcontr Sch 11

	2024 Budget Book
	ICAP Sch 15

	2024 Budget Book.pdf
	programs

	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23
	Budget-compressed

	Table of Contents and Appendix.pdf
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23.pdf
	Budget-compressed
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-01-23
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-30-22.pdf
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget - Executive Summary - 11-12-22










	Narrative for Executive Summary With Formatting-Comments Deleted - 12-03-23

	2024 Budget Book
	Summary Sch 1

	2024 Budget Book
	Dues Sch 2

	2024 Budget Book
	approp 3

	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23
	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-01-23
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-30-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-28-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget Book - Final - 11-25-22
	2023 Budget - Executive Summary - 11-12-22











	2024 Budget Book-Det. Rev..pdf
	2024 Budget Book
	subcontr Sch 11

	2024 Budget Book
	ICAP Sch 15

	2024 Budget Book.pdf
	programs

	2024 Budget Book - Complete - 12-04-23
	Budget-compressed


	2025 Budget Book - 2024-11-29 draft.pdf
	Budget Book covers -2025
	TOC Appendix
	Final 2025 Narrative for Executive Summary 11-29-24.pdf
	Budget Book 11-29-24 draft.pdf
	TOC Appendix.pdf
	Budget Book 11-29-24 draft
	Budget Book covers -2025.pdf


	Resolution T-13-24 Amending the State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program.pdf
	T-13-24 Memo
	T-13-24 TIP Amendment
	T-13-24 Attachment 1
	5310_Recommended FY24 PoP_20241120

	Resolution T-14-24 Support the 2025 ODOT Safety Performance Measure Targets.pdf
	T-14-24 Support the 2025 Ohio Department of Transportation Safety Performance Measure Targets - Memo
	T-14-24 Support the 2025 Ohio Department of Transportation Safety Performance Measure Targets - Resolution

	29-24 - Mobility Management.pdf
	Blank Page




